


---A...n-olll"l‘lilliuo.“"""'
. "

[}
..||!"‘

"ll.
L]
e e e

.'.

-"'c
l".

‘-,.
&,

-
-

Corporate Profile
NG b

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRG”) on 28 December
2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability. The Company’s A shares were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 3 August 2010. The Company’s H shares
were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment manufacturer in the PRC. It focuses on the manufacturing and sales of hydraulic roof
supports, and is the largest hydraulic roof support manufacturer in the PRC. The Company is also engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of and servicing for auto parts, as well as the trading of steel and other raw materials. The established operating history, high quality products,
strong research and development capabilities, advanced manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network of the Company and its subsidiaries are the
keys to its success and enable it to maintain its leading position in the coal mining and excavating equipment market and auto parts market.
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Registered Office in the PRC

No. 167, 9th Street, Zhengzhou Section (Econ-Tech Development Zone) of
China (He'nan) Pilot Free Trade Zone, PRC
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Shanghai Branch, China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited
No. 188 Yanggao South Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai
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H Share: 00564 (The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)
A Share: 601717 (Shanghai Stock Exchange)

Principal Banks

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Jianshe Road Branch, Zhengzhou

No. 11 West Jianshe Road, Zhongyuan District,
Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC

China Construction Bank Zhengzhou Jinshui Branch
No. 29 Jinshui Road, Jinshui District, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC
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Mr. Zhang Haibin
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Haiwen & Partners
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Chairman’s Statement EE R &=

Dear Shareholders, BRME

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Review Period”), the Company adhered REZE202F 128318 It2FE([EEH
to the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a Bl REBEBUELEHERPESETE
New Era, and earnestly implemented the important instructions of General Secretary Xi FEBEARESE REEMEETOTRER
Jinping on his site inspection of ZMJ. Facing the severe and complex external situation, RERBEMRAEZ R TES  BHRIEEHD
the Company strengthened the top-level planning, maintained development determination, SNEBFEES - NSRTEERE - (RIFERE S -
clarified strategic objectives, deepened reform and innovation, accelerated digital PAREERE B2 - RIERERIF - MREE
transformation, and achieved stable growth in operating results, laying a solid foundation ER BRCEEENEBTER  ABER
for building a new pattern of high-quality development. In 2022, the Group’s revenue was EEERMEF/EE TREEM - 202FE A
RMB32,043.31 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 9.39%; profit for the year EENWABARES204331H5E 7T [F L1
attributable to shareholders of the Company was RMB2,538.24 million, representing a £9.39% : AR FIREEEF NN ABARE
year-on-year increase of 30.31%. 2,538.24B 87T + [ &K30.31% ©
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Chairman’s Statement EE R EE

. 2022 Business Review

() Deepened the reform and innovation -and set
up aggressive goals to drive innovation and
development

1.

Defined new strategies and adhere to the development
driven by aggressive goals

Under the background of “dual-carbon” development with the
notion of “Looking Forward, Emancipation of Mind”, we have
clearly defined the strategic goals and transformation paths of
ZMJ Group and its various business segments for the next 5-10
years, and have formulated the implement initiatives for entering
the new energy field, building a market-oriented mechanism
and driving development by aggressive goals. The Company
has firmly adhered to the strategic goal of “50 billion in 5
years”, and driven the Company to take the path of high-quality
development with a brand-new spirit and vibrant enterprise
vitality.

Established the business partner mechanism and
completed the mixed ownership reform of subsidiaries

The Company has formulated the Regulations Governing the
Investment of Business Partners, established and improved
the business partner mechanism of risk bearing and gains
sharing, and formulated a team of business partners who
have consensus of concepts, create the common values, bear
risks and share gains with the shareholders and the Company,
S0 as to form a common destiny, effectively address future
risks and challenges and promote the sustainable and healthy
development of the Company.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical
Control Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Electric Gontrol
Company”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
implemented the business partner share ownership scheme by
way of capital increase and share expansion, and introduced
strategic investors to hold shares, so as to enhance the capital
strength of Electric Control Company, improve the incentive
and restraint mechanism, stimulate endogenous power, and
facilitate the implementation of intelligent strategy.

—. 2022F ¥ O B
() bR ERIF - = BIEES A
R
1. BRFEE RESAEEHRR

FEIEHpERNEST @ [ERKRR -
WBAE ] - PAREEL K B I B AR
RIRE-10FHIEEE B 1R - BERIBRAC - 7o
FHRLIREE - RIS EHES S BER
SREHES HEEKEEE - BESF
5008 TEEE B2 - U HRBEER
EHDIPOCEENRBEERLEH
RAYER o

BUSXAEBARE  TRFARRBEMR
BHlRE

HE(EREARAREEEWE) - BT
ZRBAENMRERZNERER AR
B IEERREARIES AR - EEHR
Bl EREE - WaEKEFNEXARAE
B - FERaE RIS - ARUBEIRREE
BRANkE - B ABSERRER -

EE2ETRREMNERBBEERER AT
(TRl BEAT ) MEEEBNAER
ZXRARABRGTE RS ABKKRE
EFR - EREERREAES  REH
BYA RIS - BBEAER N - BN
BRE ©



Participated in the mixed ownership reform of Luoyang
Bearing and actively undertook overall planning on
emerging industries of strategic importance

By establishing a partnership enterprise, the Company took
the lead in forming a transfer transferee entity to participate in
the mixed ownership reform of Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd.,
and currently holds 15% of its equity interests. Participation in
the mixed ownership reform of Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd.
is conducive to the Company’s transformation and exploration
into strategic emerging industries, broadening the industrial
layout, enhancing the Company’s ability to resist risks, and
also contributing to the development of Henan’s manufacturing
industry.

Accelerated digital transformation and reconstructed
corporate core values

Digital transformation is a must for manufacturing enterprises
to change lanes and lead the way. On the basis of business
digitalization, the Company coordinated and promoted the timely
and effective flow of data such as products, production, supply
chain and customers, and realised the deep integration of
information technology with business processes and operation
management models, so as to drive the transformation of the
entire business process with digitalization.

The intelligent industrial park of ZMJ was officially put into
operation, integrating digitalization into the whole process
from product design to service, building a leading intelligent
laser cutting production line, intelligent welding production
line, intelligent warehousing, logistics transfer system and
highly intelligent manufacturing execution system in the coal
mining machinery industry, and further accelerating the pace of
transformation from a manufacturing enterprise to a technology
service enterprise.
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() Reform and transformation of each business
segment to achieve high-quality development

1.

The coal mining machinery segment seized market
opportunities externally and achieved record high in
major operating indicators

During the Review Period, the Company’s coal mining machinery
segment adhered to the operating policy of “innovation-
driven, intelligent-led, reform to increase efficiency, complete-
set and high-end”, implemented the “four-transformation”
development strategy supported by digitalization, seized
market opportunities externally, and strengthened process
capacity building internally. Major indicators such as market,
production, operation management, among others, have hit a
record high, and our leading position in the industry was further
consolidated. The Company won a number of honours such as
the Top 50 Chinese Coal Enterprises, the Top 50 Chinese Coal
Machinery Industry, and the commendation award of the 7th
China Industrial Award.

The complete-set effect has gradually emerged. Focusing
on the domestic and overseas markets, the Company continued
to build a complete set of benchmark projects, and the
complete-set projects such as Pingmei No. 2 Mine, Yunnan
Xiongda and Turkey Ozsen preliminarily formed the benchmark
demonstration effect; we have developed a pre-sales, in-sales
and after-sales digitalisation system and an industrial internet
digitalisation service system for the complete-set projects, so as
to transform from a physical set of hardware to an “organic” set
under software system integration, and to establish a leading
edge in complete sets.

Intelligent promotion is becoming more practical and
deeper. We planned the “6S” architecture system for intelligent
product development, took multiple measures to develop new
products and expand business lines, including self-research
and cooperative development. Based on the ZMOS intelligent
mining operating system, the Company deeply integrated the
software and hardware of mining, support, transportation and
liquid subsystems; deepened the application and scenario
development of advanced technologies such as video
monitoring of the comprehensive mining face, machine vision
and digital twin system of the whole mining face; the intelligent
control system opened up the market for high-end customers of
national energy, and blossomed in the markets of Shaanxi Coal,
Ningxia Coal and Datong Coal Mine, and our intelligent business
maintained a leading market share in China.

O BXBRBNEEEY - BRFE
SR
1L REERE M SE TR

BRAIHS

REEEEARE - R R AR IR E 4R 81T R
B BEesIE  BERM KESKIN
RETE - BERUABEH A EN L]
BHRERS - WIMRITTISZHE - BRI
BIZRENER W5 HE  KEEES
TERFEELHE - TRERMAE—
HEE - RARIREDBEFREEL0R - B
B R T 55058 ~ ELEFBETEX

RRYBELZRLE -

RECKEESBE - ElRBEAINTS -
SEITENE(LRRER - PR _E - F
FOMEE - TEHRBAMEKEBB VT
PSR REE : RERERBE ERIET
EREREH TN I ETRER TR
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The international market has achieved remarkable
results, and the high-end market has been gaining
popularity. The Group successfully entered into the high-
end markets of Signal Peak Energy and Peabody Energy of the
United States, with the total bidding and direct order amount
exceeding RMB1 billion therein, and the bidding amount hit
a record high. As the “general contractor of hydraulic roof
support and control system”, the Company won the bid for the
Australian customer project for the first time, and completed
product testing and batch manufacturing with high quality.
The Company won the bid for the Qinfa Project in Indonesia,
the self-developed large-set project of Boshida and Baxter
in Turkey, and completed the installation and commissioning
of Kinetic Coal in Russia, which further enhanced the market
awareness and competitiveness of ZMJ in international market.

Taking multiple measures to increase production
capacity vertically. With a market-oriented approach and
focusing on the overall requirements of production capacity and
quality improvement, the Company optimised and upgraded
the internal production organisation mode, opened up high-
quality supporting resources externally, and realised the
digitization and online operation of supplier management
business. While improving the hard production capacity, we will
continue to strengthen the construction of soft capacity, learn
advanced production management ideas, methods and tools
such as lean management, Six Sigma management and TOC
bottleneck theoretical management, and continuously improve
quality, reduce cost and improve efficiency. The Company
continued to strengthen the integrated management and control
model of complete set products through internal and external
collaboration, and achieved on-time delivery of complete set
projects, creating favourable conditions for meeting customer
needs and facilitating market development.
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ASIMCO’s New Energy and international business
reached a new level and accelerated business
transformation

During the Review Period, ASIMCO accelerated its business
transformation and upgrading. On the one hand, it consolidated
its leading position in the existing market segments, reached
ultimate perfection for its traditional business, broadened its
customer base, deepened its products, expanded exports, and
developed multiple new customers and products to solidify its
foundation for development. On the other hand, in the face of
the fast-changing automobile industry landscape, it focused on
electrification, intelligence and light weight, further clarified the
overall development strategy of transformation and upgrading,
rapidly expanded its new energy parts business, quickly entered
the high-end market of systems and assemblies, and increased
the proportion of new energy products in sales to achieve
transformation to new energy; ASIMCO expanded overseas
market to enhance its global competitiveness and achieved
sustainable business growth. It accelerated digital and intelligent
transformation and upgrading, and continued to reduce costs
and improve efficiency.

During the Review Period, under the situation of decline in the
domestic commercial automobile sales, especially where the
sales volume of medium and heavy-duty trucks declined by a
half or so, the export business of ASIMCO Shuanghuan and
Shanxi Company increased significantly, achieving an export
business revenue of RMB590 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 34%; ASIMCO seized the rising trend of the
domestic passenger vehicle industry in 2022, strengthened the
management of NVH business and rapidly promoted the growth
of passenger vehicle business. ASIMCO Anhui made every effort
to develop the new energy automobile parts market, and its
shock-absorbing seals (mounting, sealing, chassis products,
etc.) have newly obtained fixed-point new energy business from
Chang’an, Dongfeng, Xiaopeng, Leapmotor, BYD, and Jinkang
Wenjie. It has basically covered domestic mainstream new
energy vehicle brands. ASIMCQ’s revenue from new energy
business was approximately RMB190 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 130%.

ERHTRLHT R R I B LR AR - i
B E R

R EIEEEARS - RTRIINER HEHE e A T
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REA RSB =R TS - R FTREIR
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BREBHELER  IEEEHRT 2
BB - SRR -

REIEHRME - FEREmAEHEE T - 5
RIRREREEFNOFELT - BHEE
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The new energy business has broken ice, clarified the direction
of new energy product development, and completed the
establishment and operation of the new energy team; the digital
and intelligent transformation achieved remarkable results. With
the construction of a new intelligent demonstration factory as
the starting point, we rapidly promoted the digital upgrading
of enterprises. ASIMCO Shuanghuan was selected as a smart
manufacturing demonstration factory in Jiangsu Province,
ASIMCO Camshaft was selected as an Internet benchmarking
factory in Jiangsu Province, and ASIMCO Shanxi was awarded
as a smart manufacturing pilot demonstration enterprise in
Shanxi Province, which effectively improved the enterprise’s
technical strength, production efficiency, product quality and
cost competitiveness, realised the intelligence, digitalization and
automation of the manufacturing process, and enhanced the
core competitiveness of enterprise.

The project of SEG high-voltage electric motors achieved
a breakthrough and accelerated the transformation to an
integrated electromechanical system supplier

SEG adjusted its management team, continued to optimise its
global structure and layout, continuously increased its market
share, reduced costs and improved efficiency in the European
market, vigorously promoted 48V BRM products, and achieved
rapid development in emerging markets such as India and
South America. While consolidating the business advantages
of 12V power generators and 48V BRM, SEG clarified the
development strategy of comprehensive transformation to high-
voltage electrification. With the vision of “smart drive future
— make travel better for tomorrow”, SEG gave full play to its
deep development capabilities in motor hardware, software
and system integration, excellent production processes and
lean production capabilities, and simultaneously developed a
high-voltage drive motor platform around the world, which can
provide a complete set of high-voltage drive solutions according
to customer needs. SEG was awarded the Level 2 certification
of the European Electric Driving Project ASPICE, which is the
Automotive Software Process Improvement and Capability
determination.

During the Review Period, we invested in the establishment of
SEG Automotive Electric Systems Co., Ltd., focusing on local
customers, strengthening global research and development
collaboration, and providing the market with high-voltage drive
solutions with technical advantages and cost competitiveness.
The Company has obtained a purchase order for the high-
voltage flat-wire motor stator rotor mass production project
from a leading new energy smart vehicle solution provider. The
Company has entered the supply chain of electric drive system
for new energy vehicles from a high starting point, completed
the installation of the first high-voltage electric drive production
line, and at the same time, a number of high-voltage electric
drive motor projects for domestic and foreign customers are
under negotiation.
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The integration of “Entrepreneurship and Innovation” in
Zhima Street continued to promote investment attraction
and image improvement

Zhima Street continued to promote the operation of the “Zhima
Street 1958 Innovation and Entrepreneurship Park” with the
transformation and upgrading of the Company’s old plant
area as the main content. As the sub-venue of the “National
Mass Entrepreneurship and Innovation” Week for the second
consecutive year, it undertook a number of activities, which
were widely reported by the central, provincial and municipal
governments and major media, and its popularity and influence
were further enhanced, which was fully recognised by the
national ministries and commissions and provincial and
municipal leaders.

The Company’s joint stock company was listed on
the stock market, and the investment boosted the
implementation of intelligent strategy

Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Bestway Intelligent Control”) in which the Company
invested, obtained the China Securities Regulatory Commission’s
reply approving the registration after its application for listing
on the ChiNext Board, and was officially listed on the ChiNext
Board on 1 August 2022. After the listing of Bestway Intelligent
Control, the Company holds approximately 6% of its shares. The
investment brought industrial synergy and capital appreciation
to the Company, which was a successful trial of the Company’s
capital-empowered industry chain.

ZhE Ea Me  BEADEERER
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Industry landscape and trends

() Coal mining machinery industry

According to the Guiding Opinions on the High-quality Development
of the Coal Industry in the 14th Five-Year Plan issued by the China
National Coal Association, by the end of the 14th Five-Year Plan
period, the domestic coal output will be controlled at approximately
4.1 billion tonnes, the national coal consumption will be controlled
at approximately 4.2 billion tonnes, and the average annual
consumption will increase by approximately 1%. The number of coal
mines in China is controlled at around 4000, with more than 1000
intelligent mining faces built, and the degree of mechanisation of coal
mining shall be around 90%.

The Central Economic Work Conference pointed out that
“strengthening domestic exploration and development of important
energy and mineral resources, increasing reserves and production,
accelerating the planning and construction of a new energy system,
and improving the ability to safeguard national strategic material
reserve.” The government work report pointed out that “promoting
clean and efficient use of energy and technology research and
development, accelerating the construction of a new energy system,
and increasing the proportion of renewable energy.” As one of the
main energy sources in China, the clean, efficient and low-carbon
utilisation of coal will be promoted, the green transformation of the
coal industry and the optimisation of the combination of coal and new
energy will be realised. In recent years, China has successively issued
policies such as the “Catalogue of Key Research and Development
of Coal Mine Robot”, the “National Energy Technology Innovation
Action Plan (2016-2030)”, the “Guiding Opinions on Accelerating
the Intelligent Development of Coal Mines” and the “Guidelines for
the Intelligent Construction of Coal Mines”, which, together with
the introduction of supporting policies by major coal-producing
regions, are conducive to promoting safe and efficient intelligent
mining and clean and efficient intensive utilisation of coal, and have
a clear direction for the construction of intelligent coal mines. At the
same time, the intensified and leading effect of the coal industry
has become more obvious, the supply and demand relationship
in the market was further improved, the concentration of the coal
mining machinery industry continued to increase, the competition
was increasingly crowded, and the pace of internationalisation,
informatization, digitization and intelligent transformation was
accelerated. ZMJ will seize the opportunities arising from the rapid
development of intelligent coal mine construction, provide customers
with high reliability, intelligence, green and complete sets of
equipment, and contribute to the protection of customer needs and
national energy security.
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(I) Automobile industry

In recent years, with the full implementation of the China VI emission
standards and the tightening of fuel consumption limits on an annual
basis, the traditional automobile market structure and product
structure will be accelerated and adjusted. The continuous reduction
of financial subsidy policies and the implementation of the trading
mechanism of carbon credits and new energy credits will accelerate
the transformation of the development of new energy vehicle industry
to market-driven. According to the Development Plan of New Energy
Automobile Industry (2021-2035), the sales volume of new energy
vehicles will account for approximately 20% of the total sales volume
by 2025, which will further promote the high-quality development of
the new energy automobile industry. The electrification, networking,
intelligence and sharing will become the development trend and
trendy practice of the automobile industry. The “Energy-saving and
New Energy Vehicle Technology Roadmap 2.0” issued by the Society
of Automotive Engineers of China proposed that hybrid electric
vehicles shall account for more than 50% of traditional energy
passenger vehicles by 2025. Full electrification will drive a high
degree of integration between the industry chains of energy-saving
and new energy vehicles.

In 2023, China will continue to adhere to the general tone of
making progress while maintaining stability, vigorously boost
market confidence, combine the implementation of the strategy
of expanding domestic demand with the deepening of supply-side
structural reform, highlight the work of stabilising growth, stabilising
employment and stabilising prices, effectively prevent and resolve
major risks, and promote the overall improvement of economic
operation. China will strive to expand domestic demand, prioritise
the recovery and expansion of consumption, increase income of
urban and rural residents through multiple channels, and stabilise
bulk consumption such as automobiles. The further recovery of the
economy, the increase and gradual recovery of consumer confidence,
and the driving force of infrastructure investment are expected to
jointly promote the development of China’s passenger vehicle and
commercial vehicle industries to make steady progress.

With the further advancement of global carbon neutrality, the market
share of fuel-powered vehicles will be further shrinked, the market
share of new energy vehicles will continue to increase, and the
number of new vehicle models developed by traditional automobile
enterprises will decrease. The high-end vehicle market and new
energy vehicle market have greater growth potential, and the leading
effect of the automobile industry will become more obvious. On the
other hand, the automobile market still faces great challenges: the
market competition is becoming increasingly fierce, and the price
of orders has stabilised after hitting the bottom; at the same time,
customers have higher requirements for product production cycle,
technical performance, comfort and quality.
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As the upstream industry of the automobile industry, the automobile
parts and components industry are the foundation for the
development of the automobile industry. The automobile industry is
in the window period of new energy transformation, we are facing not
only the opportunities of industry reform, but also the challenges of
sustainable development. The Company will continue to explore the
passenger vehicle market, steadily expand the commercial vehicle
market, vigorously explore the new energy market, actively provide
customers with high-quality products and services, and enhance
market competitiveness in various fields.

lll. Future Development Outlook

()

Development strategy of the Company

The 20 major reports of the Party pointed out that the focus of
economic development should be placed on the real economy,
promoting new industrialization, and accelerating the construction
of a country with manufacturing and quality power. The Company
will adhere to the development concept of “technology changes the
world, intelligence leads the future” and the vision of “becoming a
high-end intelligent equipment industry group with global influence”,
continue to strengthen innovation-driven development, accelerate
digital transformation, develop high-end manufacturing and intelligent
manufacturing, and strive to achieve the development goal of “50
billion in 5 years”, and build a high — end intelligent equipment
industry group with international influence.

1. Deeply developing the coal mining machinery segment
based on the current long-term plan

As the main energy source in China, coal will remain
indispensable and important in the energy supply system
for a long time in the future. In the next five years, the coal
mining machinery industry will experience rapid development
represented by intelligence and internationalisation. In the
next five to ten years, the coal mining machinery industry will
experience rapid development represented by complete sets
of equipment. In the next 10 to 15 years, the coal mining
machinery sector will continue to lead the development of
the coal mining machinery equipment manufacturing industry
by adhering to the principle of “intelligent driving product
development and digital driving business transformation
throughout the whole process”. With the development direction
of whole-set, intelligent, international and socialised, the
Company will increase investment in research and development
to meet customers’ increasing needs for “service experience”
instead of focusing on “equipment itself”, promote the
development of coal mining towards green, intelligent, efficient
and safe development, and build the Company into a supplier
of complete sets of comprehensive mining equipment, a service
provider of full life cycle and a digital operator.
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Accelerating the transformation of the auto parts
segment riding on the switch to modern electric
alternatives

With the global wave of electrification of automobiles, the
transformation of the Company’s auto parts segment is
imperative. In terms of ASIMCO, first, we will continue
to maintain the continuous growth of core advantageous
businesses and the continuous increase of market share, further
promote intelligent manufacturing, expand customer base,
broaden product lines, and expand exports, so as to maximise
traditional products. On the other hand, we will accelerate the
transformation of new energy, continue to develop the shock
absorption and noise reduction parts business of new energy
vehicles, rapidly expand the new energy business field, promote
the transformation of ASIMCO from parts to components
and even system integration, and transform from domestic
business to international business. In terms of SEG, we will
focus on profitability and growth, rapidly transform the new
energy business, accelerate the promotion of the new energy
drive motor business, focus on the research, development and
manufacturing of electric control systems for new energy vehicle
motors, base in China, develop in China, and radiate globally,
S0 as to build a world-class automotive electrification system
solution provider.

Focusing on emerging areas and striving to develop new
businesses

We will seize the new industrial opportunities under the
background of “dual carbon” and focus on the existing
segments while unswervingly entering into new fields and
developing new businesses. Adhering to “leaving the industry
without leaving the profession” and paying more attention to
business opportunities in the new energy, high-tech equipment
and intelligent equipment industries.

Promoting high-quality development with the help of
capital

The Group will actively study the capital market policies,
cultivate the relevant businesses of the Group to enter the
capital market independently, make full use of the flexibility,
inclusiveness and liquidity of the capital market, increase the
excess income for the Group, expand the scale of the Group
and increase the investment value.
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Accelerating digital transformation and enhancing new
momentum for development

Digital transformation is the main theme of the Company in the
next five to ten years. The key is to replace manual labour with
machinery and digital technology, improve per capita labour
efficiency, and help save energy and reduce emissions. The
Company will promote the digital upgrade at all levels of the
Company, promote the interconnection and collaborative sharing
of multiple segments and businesses, build a digital enterprise,
and empower the high-quality development of enterprises with
digitalization and intelligence.

() Business Plan for 2023

Continue to deepen reform and transformation and
consolidate the foundation for high-quality development

(1) Continuing to promote digital transformation and
enhancing new momentum for development

Complete the top-level design of the Group’s digital
management, explore the form of management cockpit,
and assist in management decision-making; Promote
the digital construction of key business processes such
as research, production, sales and operation, and open
up the connexion channels of various business systems;
We will explore the application model of digital products,
continuously promote customer experience improvement,
business efficiency improvement, and business and
operation model innovation, and empower the high-
quality development of enterprises with digitalization and
intelligence.

(2)  Starting a second venture and carrying forward the spirit of
hard work

In the face of the complex global economic environment,
the Company will start the “second venture” with a “return
to zero” attitude, carry forward the spirit of hard work,
establish a more market-oriented system and mechanism
through reform and innovation, and achieve people-
oriented, talent-oriented, and struggling people-oriented,
so that people who are willing to work, capable, and hard
work can have a stage, transforming from professional
managers to business partners. We dare to break the
comfort zone, dare to be involved in self-revolution, break
through the ceiling of ideology, seize the first opportunity,
innovate, work hard, and create greater value for
customers and shareholders.
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(8) Focusing on emerging areas and promoting development

with investment

The Group will carefully study the flexible investment
mechanisms and models such as industrial investment and
financial investment, seize the new industrial opportunities
under the background of “dual carbon”, pay attention to
industries such as “new energy, high-tech equipment and
intelligent equipment”, explore and expand new fields and
develop new businesses, and lay out new industries for
the future, so as to further enhance the competitiveness
and profitability of the Group and achieve the benign
complementation between industrial operation and capital
operation.

Continue to promote business reform and innovation in
each segment and strive to reach a new high

(1) Coal mining machinery business

Guided by the annual policy of “intelligent complete
market expansion, scientific and technological innovation
to expand advantages, resource integration to improve
production capacity, capacity building to promote
development”, the Company will better meet customer and
market demands, and accelerate the implementation of
the four strategies of “complete, intelligent, international
and social” in the coal mining machinery segment.

Firstly, the Company will expand the market with
intelligent whole-set products, focus on customers,
deepen the development of intelligent comprehensive
procurement technology, make up for the shortcomings
of whole-set single machine, expand the categories of
intelligent products, strengthen comprehensive marketing
services, and continue to provide customers with one-
stop solutions for intelligent comprehensive procurement
technology and equipment. Hengda Intelligent Control
promotes the construction of intelligent manufacturing
demonstration bases and research and development
centres for intelligent control systems with high standards,
expands the production capacity of intelligent control
systems, and leads the intelligent development trend of
the coal mining machinery industry.
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Secondly, the Company will expand its advantages
in scientific and technological innovation, strengthen
the construction of technological innovation system and
mechanism, and build a technology system that meets
the requirements of five-year strategic planning and four-
strategy; We will promote product innovation, focus on
customer needs, promote smart mine business planning,
expand new product and new business such as high-
end intelligent pumping stations, roadway repair robots,
transportation robots and various special downhole
operation robots, build a multi-tiered business structure
of “core business + growth business + reserve business”
with rapid iteration and upgrading, and improve the core
competitiveness of enterprise technology.

Thirdly, the Company will integrate resources to
improve production capacity, and implement the
guiding ideology of “making sure that there is no room for
improvement, asset-light operation, resource integration,
and internal and external focus”. Through tapping internal
capacity potential, improving external production capacity,
and improving intelligent manufacturing level, the Company
will continue to build a flexible, agile, professional and
timely production supporting system, and establish
flexible production capacity with “large market and large
production capacity”, so as to achieve the shortest time
in the complete set of complete machine delivery industry
and meet market demand.

Fourthly, capacity building promotes development,
carries out organisational capacity building around the
aspects of “process capacity building, digital capacity
building, and human resource capacity building”,
increases the cultivation and introduction of high-end
talents, creates more certainty through organisational
capacity improvement, and responds to uncertainties in
the environment.
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(2)  Automotive components business

Firstly, we will continue to consolidate and
enhance the advantageous position of our core
business. To achieve the ultimate goal of traditional
products, rapid internationalisation and cost reduction.
Promote the completion and production of high-end
automotive parts and components manufacturing projects
of ASIMCO Shuanghuan, ASIMCO Anhui and ASIMCO
Shanxi to reduce manpower and improve efficiency with
digital and automated factories, and expand the core
business advantages from domestic to global, leading the
transformation and upgrading of the industry; SEG will
continue to promote the business integration after the
restructuring, continue to promote the 48V BRM products,
strive to increase market share and improve profitability.

Secondly, rapid development of new energy
business. ASIMCO has concentrated its resources to
vigorously develop the new energy shock absorption and
noise reduction market, rapidly promoted the research and
development of new energy products, and successfully
obtained customers’ positioning. At the same time, it
has explored opportunities for the transformation and
development of other potential projects to accelerate the
pace of new energy. Leveraging the advantages of the
global system and the benchmark effect of projects on
hand, SEG rapidly promoted the R & D and sales of high-
voltage electric drive system/electric control/motor/high-
voltage relay, built supporting capacity, completed the
mass production and delivery of orders on hand with high
quality, and obtained more business.
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Strengthening comprehensive risk management and
promoting healthy development of the enterprise

The Company will accelerate the progress of the digital
transformation of the Group’s management and control,
and achieve all-round penetrating management through the
management of cockpit. The Company will further improve
the risk management system, promote the implementation of
comprehensive risk management, give full play to the functions
of the Board of Supervisors, internal audit, internal control and
discipline inspection and supervision institutions, form a joint
supervision force, ensure the legal compliance of corporate
operations and asset safety, and serve the realisation of
corporate strategic goals.

2023 is the first year for the full implementation of the spirit
of 20th CPC National Congress, an important year for the
continuous implementation of the Company’s five-year strategic
plan, and a critical year for the Company to accelerate industrial
transformation and upgrading. Based on the new development
stage, the Company will fully, accurately and comprehensively
implement the new development concept, focus on the goal
of high-quality development, adhere to the combination of
technological innovation, management innovation and system
and mechanism innovation, maintain our tireless zeal and
combat attitude, adapt to the new normal and meet new
challenges, create new advantages and expand new space, S0
as to reach a new record high for 2023, achieve the Company’s
five-year strategic planning goal, and strive to build a high-end
intelligent equipment industry group with international influence!

Jiao Chengyao

Chairman

29 March 2023
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Technology Changes the World

Intelligence Leads the Future
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Review of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group achieved sales revenue
of RMB32,043.31 million, representing an increase of 9.39% from the
corresponding period of last year. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
was RMB2,538.24 million, representing an increase of 30.31% from the
corresponding period of last year. Earnings per share was RMB1.45. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had borrowing balances of RMB7,549.97 million.

Overview

The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
and auto parts manufacturer in the PRC. Our established operating history,
high quality products, strong research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network are the keys
to our success and allow us to maintain our leading position in the PRC coal
mining and excavating equipment market. With the completion of ASIMCO and
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH acquisition, the Group has duly entered the
auto parts market and is engaged in two principal businesses, namely coal
mining machinery and auto parts.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary, for the year ended 31 December
2022 indicated, of our consolidated results of operations.

RERE
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BRERERE -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET ARBEETT
Revenue WA 32,043.31 29,293.53
Cost of sales SHE KA (25,644.60) (23,221.70)
Gross profit E7 6,398.71 6,071.83
Other income Hublg A 476.43 385.25
Other losses,net H g8 5 (120.05) (3.57)
Selling and distribution expenses THE ko R (831.59) (828.13)
Administrative expenses TR (1,072.97) (1,284.32)
Research and development expenses i g ==z (1,385.96) (1,271.74)
Restructuring costs EHAAMAR = (210.84)
Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets SR RERBEEREBIETRE (137.28) (16.53)
Share of profit of associates i AN vl 23.15 39.42
Share of profit of joint ventures FE(LEEDEST 5.05 5.64
Finance costs L ID%N (265.41) (263.69)
Profit before tax MREL BTG R 3,090.08 2,623.32
Income tax expense FriSHiR > (462.07) (553.45)
Profit for the year FEREFR 2,628.01 2,069.87
Profit for the year attributable to: AR AT FREF
Owners of the Company ViN/NEI )3 2,538.24 1,947.79
Non-controlling interests eI 89.77 122.08
2,628.01 2,069.87
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Results of Operations (continued) BEEE
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB miillions RMB millions
AREEET ARBEETT
Other comprehensive income: Hih2mEK -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to "BRAEEF S IEE 185
profit or loss: EHA :
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations BT ERKRENERE 46.48 70.56
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value AFEE2EHEZS) A
through other comprehensive income HEtezmbiEnesmiE
NG 247.31 2.76
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJEEER DI BB -
Exchange differences arising on translation MEELEMNENZ5E 9.53 24.53
Cash flow hedging WEmEE T 14.72 (12.56)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FREM2ERE(FX)
net of income tax HIBRFATISEL 318.03 85.29
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEWKFLEE 2,946.04 2,155.16
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: AFATEEFEFREZEKEREE
Owners of the Company PN &S 2,856.27 2,033.07
Non-controlling interests FEIERRHE 89.77 122.09
2,946.04 2,155.16
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
— Basic (RMB cents) —ERARES) 145.38 112.42
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#EARESD) 144.55 111.90
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Revenue A

Our revenue increased by 9.39% from RMB29,293.53 million for the year AEBRABREE021F1I2ANBLEFENARKE

ended 31 December 2021 to RMB32,043.31 million for the year ended 31 29,293.53 5 & TG N19.39% 2 H, £ 2022F 12 A31 H 1L F

December 2022, mainly because the increase of sales for the year. EMARKES043JNEET TERHRBEENTFR
BRTIEN -

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by product and TRETIRNEBIRE @R EBE D WA (B -
business(in RMB millions): AREBET) :

Year ended 31 December 2022
BZE2022F12A1BILEE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total

B
SUERTESW 4 5t
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
ARBBEET AR¥EER AREBEERT

Sales of auto parts RETEEREE - 15,170.89 15,170.89
Sales of hydraulic roof supports TRIER S B SHE 9,239.80 - 9,239.80
Revenue from steel and other materials trading $f#] 52 B 4th R 5 iU A 4,330.81 74.77 4,405.58
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery EEREEILED HE 856 2,399.57 - 2,399.57
Sales of other coal mining equipment H R Em e 636.78 - 636.78
Other revenue E A 150.35 40.34 190.69

16,757.31 15,286.00 32,043.31

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A31ALFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERIERE,  BUERETEM #aEt
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions

ARBEET ARBBEST ARBBEST

Sales of auto parts RETEREE - 16,080.41 16,080.41
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIS BERSHE 6,873.99 - 6,873.99
Revenue from steel and other materials trading $$8; & E-4th R R 5 B U A 3,730.77 75.69 3,806.46
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery B in B (- 8054 & 2,202.97 - 2,202.97
Sales of other coal mining equipment H R L EEE 155.52 - 155.52
Other revenue Ha A 119.84 54.34 17418

13,083.09 16,210.44 29,293.53
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Cost of Sales

As the Group recorded an increase in our revenue, our cost of sales increased
by 10.43% from RMB23,221.70 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to RMB25,644.60 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Gross Profit

Driven by the above factors, our gross profit increased by 5.38% from
RMBG6,071.83 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB6,398.71
million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The decrease of gross profit during the year was primarily contributed to the
increase of raw materials price. The gross profit margin of the coal mining
machinery segment decreased from 25.96% for the year ended 31 December
2021 to 24.79% for the year ended 31 December 2022. As of 31 December
2022, the gross profit margin of the auto parts segment of the Group decreased
from 16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 14.68% for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Therefore, the overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased from 20.73%
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to 19.97% for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Other Income

Our other income increased by 23.67% from RMB385.25 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB476.43 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, mainly because the group gained more government grants
and interest income.

Other Losses, Net

Our other losses, net increased by 3,257.59% from a loss of RMB3.58 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to a loss of RMB120.03 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily as a result of the increase on
impairment of goodwill.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by 0.42% from RMB828.13
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB831.59 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, which was align with the increase of revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by 16.46% from RMB1,284.32 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB1,072.97 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, mainly due to the decrease of expense related to
the long-term super profit incentive scheme,which was completed by end of
2021.
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gkl

HERA

AR AREERAEFTIE N - AEEHEKANHEZE2021
F12A3TBIEFEMAREE?23,221.708 & T AHFEE N
10.43% = E E2022F12 A31 B IEFEH A R #25644.60

i —

BETT e
EF

2 Pl AEEE) - AEEEFHEE2021F12 74315 1
FERAREG,071.838 & JTIEIN5.38% 2 &, £2022F 12
A31BEIEFEMAREESI8.71HETT °

FEEFRLOEZEAREMRHER EFA o HRERS
BREER R B & F2021412 A31 B I EE #925.96% T Bk
ZEEHZE2022F12 A31 B IEFERI24.79% © FZE2022F12
A3+ REEMNRET IS HENEHEZE20214
12431 A IEFERI16.5% NEEEE20225612 A31H 1E
FEHI14.68% °

it - AEBEMEEEFNERHEZ2021F12A318
IFFER20.73% NS EE ZE 2022912 831 B IEFEH
19.97% o

HApWA

NEEEMRABEE2021F12831B ILFENARE
385.25F & JTIB N23.67% 2 & £ 2022F 12 A1 B L F &
MARKEAT6.43H 8T - T EAEREBUEE ZBITH
B R FI BULA o

Ht g8 35

AEEEMEBFEMREE2021F12A318 L FEHE
BARKE3.58'5 8 Ui 13,257.59% 2 & £ 2022412 A 31
HIFFERNEBARKEI2003HET  TEhNEER
EIEANFTEL

HERDHAX

AEBHE M HEASTAEZ2021F12A31HLEFEN
ANRH828.13 8 B ITIE iN0.42% E & 22022412 A31H &
FREHARES50EETT - HIRAIEII—B

ITHEIX
RATHEASMEAEZ2021FE12A31BILEENARE

1,284.32 8 B LH A 16.46% 2 H £2022F 12 A31 H I
EMARE1029788T - TEEHMNE021FK T

e REIBE N B SRR E R
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Staff Costs and Remuneration Policy

Our staff costs decreased by 13.65% from RMB3,610.84 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to RMB3,117.88 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of basic
salary and bonus payment, which is determined with reference to the operating
results of the Group and results of performance assessment on the employees.
The Group adheres to the orientation towards efficiency and results as well as
the focus on top-tier staff. It also strives to ensure scientific and reasonable
allocation of income.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses increased by 8.98% from
RMB1,271.74 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB1,385.96
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly due to more research
and development activities incurred from manufacture of coal mining machinery
segment during the year.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs kept flat in 2022, with only 0.65% increase compared with
2021.

Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit before
tax increased by 17.79% from RMB2,623.32 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to RMB3,090.08 million for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense decreased by 16.51% from RMB553.45 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB462.07 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, primarily as a result of the additional deductions for qualified
equipment expenditure and tax benefits. Our effective tax rate decreased to
14.95% for the year ended 31 December 2022 from 21.10% for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Total comprehensive income for the year

In view of the combined effect of the above factors, our profit for the year
and the aggregate of comprehensive income increased by 36.70% from
RMB2,155.16 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB2,946.04
million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

ETHARFHMBER
KEBEIRAGEHE2021F12A3BILFENARKE

3,610.84 B & T T B&13.65% =& =2022F 12 A31H IEF
EMARKEII78EET - AEBETHMAEART
AT TEMIDMHEK - BETERBAEEKLEE
BEREBEMEZIEARET - NEBERARGEMESR
BEE - BREAEETER  BAORREBASDERE
B3 o

MEREH
REBERERAEREZ2021F12 A3 B ILFENARE

1,271 74 B 8 TiE hN8.98% EH = 2022F 12 A31 B I F /&
FAREE1,385.96 B 27T © £ 2w FE R EEE TR

7 BREVE B R BY GNP EL o

A& B AR
ZREE E B B0 E A AN 2022F 45 - 22021 F AR L 24 1
0.65% o

BR B A2

SZEAEMGETE  ASENBRB NN BRES
2021 F12 A3 IEFEM ARE2623.325F & g hn
17.79% 2 & £ 2022F 12 A31 B IE FE &9 A KR #3,090.08
BHETT

FrigHim

AEEMAERBYMEZ20215F12 A31B ILFERHA
R#55345 8 BT 2 16.51% 2 8 £20224F12 318 I+
FEMARBIBTEET TESHARERBRESZ L
R EENEIMNIRAS - AEEERREHES
202112 A31 A IEFERI21.10% N EE Z 2022512 A
31 IEFEM14.95% °

FREEWHEATE

THMAZNGATE  AEENFREN K2 EREE
MR T2 FE12831 B ILEENARK215516 5
BT EA36.70% 2 E E2022F 12 AT HIEFENARE

e —

2,946.04B 87T °
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 30.31% from RMB1,947.79 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to RMB2,538.24 million for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Trade and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2022, trade and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB9,118.63 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB1,744.55 million as compared to approximately RMB7,374.07 million as at
the end of 2021, the increase of trade and other receivables mainly due to the
increase of revenue.

Liquidity

The Group’s net current assets were approximately RMB14,613.54 million (31
December 2021: RMB12,844.18 million) and the current ratio was 1.75 as
at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: 1.85). The decrease in current
ratio was mainly attributable to the increase in trade and other payables and
borrowings.

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had RMB3,613.44 million in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of
cash and bank deposits.

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

gkl

ZSNGI) & ]

HR Pl FEAE - AR RREER G BEZE2021F
12A31HIEFENARKE1947.795 BT N30.31% =
HE2022F 12318 IEFEMARE2 53824 E T ©

B 5 R HMEWRRE

M2022512A318 - ES5 R EMERFIBESEOAAR
#09,118.63 A BT © B2021F K ARKT7,37407EETT
AR 74455 E 70 B 5 R EMERIE
FEHRUAIEINFTER ©

NEERBEEFENBARE14613545 BT (2021
F12H31H : ARKE1284418BETT) » MHA20225F 12
A3 B8REN & A1.75(20215E12 A31H - 1.85) < i
B ERTREFEHANE S RE MM FIBN R E S
DOFREL

RERREAXH

HZE2022F12A31H - AEEHAHRERESEEMA
R¥36134485 &8 - AEBERS KRS EEBYEER
RS RRITER -

2022 2021

20224 20214F

RMB millions RMB millions

ARBEET AREBET

Net cash from operating activities REEBNFT5IR S FEE 2,429.20 2,384.97
Net cash used in investing activities WA EREFTEIR S F5E (3,543.68) (1,449.76)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BMEEBRE(FrAR)IREFE 1,475.60 (606.56)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RE RBSEEYILINERE 361.12 328.66
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fERESHHF L 56.65 111.72)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year REVHRE MRS EEY 3,195.67 2,978.73
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year RERNIRS RIREEED 3,613.44 3,195.67
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Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities in 2022 was RMB2,429.20 million. Cash
inflow primarily comprised profit before taxation of RMB3,090.08 million,
primarily adjusted for: (i) finance cost of RMB265.41 million; (ii) depreciation of
property, plant and equipment of RMB582.89 million; (iii) increase in inventories
of RMB1,892.13 million; (iv) increase in trade and other receivables of
RMB2,085.52 million; (v) increase in trade and other payables of RMB1,575.70
million; (vi) increase in notes receivable of RMB502.91 million; (vii) increase in
contract liabilities of RMB1,471.53 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash outflow in investing activities in 2022 was RMB3,543.68 million,
primarily comprising: (i) payment of RMB1,300.70 million for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment; (i) withdrawal of bank deposits with
original maturity over three months of RMB2,569.83 million; (i) payment
of RMB8,006.83 million for other financial assets, structured deposits and
certificate of deposit; (iv) proceeds of RMB6,109.93 million from other financial
assets and structured deposits; (v) payment of pledged bank deposits of
RMB665.61 million; (vi) withdrawal of pledged bank deposits of RMB374.27
million; (vii) placement of bank deposits with original maturity over three months
and restricted cash of RMB2,736.83 million.

Financing Activities

Net cash inflow from financing activities in 2022 was RMB1,475.60 million,
primarily consisting of (i) net cash inflow from borrowing of RMB1,777.48
million; (i) cash inflow from contribution from non-controlling interests in the
amount of RMB871.65 million; (jii) cash outflow used in the dividends paid to
Company’s shareholders in the amount of RMB774.08 million; and (iv) cash
outflow used in the lease payments in the amount of RMB191.31 million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB1,412.85 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, for purchase of property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets.

REER

F20229F - EEB TSRS FEAARK2429208
BT o BeRAEZERERTAEF A RYS090.085H
BT EEFBT  ()BENEARE265.4EETT (i)
Y BEMEEITEARKES2.808E T ; (i)fFEHE
IMARA89213FHETT : (WE 5 K& H b fEUGKIELE N
AREE2,085.52E BT (VE S R EA B FIBEMA
R¥E1575.708 87T ¢ (v)ERERIZINARES0291EE
TC ViR B EEMAREATI3HETT -

REEE

20224 - WEIEEIR M FREAARKS543.68H
B XEEE (BRESYE  BERREMITA
R#1,300.70B &7t ; ()REURE|EAE =8 A LA L A94R
THERARE256983BET  (IXTEMEREE
HEREFERNFEARKS00683EE T  (WEMAEH
BENMEBMETHREHRIBAREG,109.938ET  (v)
T NBEERITERARE665.61H 8T (VijFRBE R
HIRITIFRAREI7427TE &L (i)FHIREIEHR A=
EANEMRITEREZBRHIRE ARYE2736.835 8
ﬁ:o

BEEE

R20224F - BB EBIFTIS IR I FEAARKE1475608
B FERE  (EENBRESFRAARE777488
BT () FEERERLENRESRAARKSIHES
TC (iR R EREZ MR EMARESTHARKE
77408E &L MwWHENFBReREARK191318
)

BEAXXH

HZE202F12 A3 HIEFE - AEEAREEYE - K
EREEARBEREENEARAST N AARE1412858
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2022, our commitments consisted of capital commitments
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that have been authorized
and contracted for in the amount of RMB999.16 million.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to
the Group that may result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised
notes receivable at the end of each Reporting Period is as follows:

AERBAREE
AV

HE2022F12 A31H » AEERFEESFBEWIEDE - K
BEREHEHEEEBCTHNEIREARKI.16H
BT

SNEE

RAFE  REBEHEMKRIEERE TREREE - )
HEAXHMEBRENE S REMBEMNFIE - ARRES
RE - ARFTAEAERKEEMEER ITHPREET
B MIRHER  MANEEERKEEOEBRTAK
REREHR  AEBA RN ZESERKILER
REWZEMARENZARRIT

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB millions RMB millions
AREBEET AREBET

i

Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse HEBREOMARERDREE

LS

1,922,511 2,133.20
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Working Capital and Indebtedness

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and liabilities as of 31

December 2022 (in RMB millions):

CEETRAE

BEML - ARKBST)

TREIEE2022F12 AN BAEBRBDEE KA EFH

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET ARBEETT
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion RERERWHIE - REE S 50.96 4212
Long-term receivables, current portion REAFEUIE » RENEE D 88.03 30.32
Inventories wE 7,909.82 6,242.41
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EW IR 9,118.63 7,374.08
Transferred trade receivables BEEEMNE Z ERGIE 269.41 687.47
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss WA B2 AHEEE ABLR
HWEmMEE 5,228.18 3,236.29
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive UAFEAEBEEE T AHM
income THENRENESEE 4,494.33 4,111.05
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIE 4.89 15.37
Tax recoverable A U B 55 18 19.15 43.67
Bank deposits IRITIER 3,402.44 2,944.10
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIRESZEEY 3,613.44 3,195.67
34,199.28 27,922.55
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and other payables E 5 R EMFERRIE 11,480.60 9,978.41
Contract liabilities AaREAaE 3,748.35 2,272.37
Income tax liabilities FissiasE 115.21 132.29
Borrowings ==Y 3,237.23 1,167.95
Lease liabilities HERE 146.26 103.22
Provisions B 571.28 687.34
Liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables HEBENE S EYGIE
BHENAaE 269.41 687.47
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 17.40 49.32
19,585.74 15,078.37
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 14,613.54 12,844.18

HZE202F12A310 - AEBERHEEFENAARE
14613548 &L (2021F 128318 « ARM12,844188
SBIT) - MRENEL % A1.75(20214F12 4318 © 1.85) ° /it
B ETREEHNE S REMERFIEL REEEM
FIrER

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB14,613.54 million (31 December 2021: RMB12,844.18 million) and
current ratio of 1.75 (31 December 2021: 1.85). The decrease in current
ratio was mainly attributable to the increase in trade and other payables and
borrowings.
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Working Capital and Indebtedness (Continued)

As of 31 December 2022, the balance of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
was RMB7,549.97 million, of which RMB3,237.23 million are current portion (31
December 2021: outstanding borrowings was RMB5,798.61 million, of which
RMB1,167.95 million was current portion).

As of 31 December 2022, our available credit line from various financial
institutions amounted to RMB28,707.40 million. As of 31 December 2022,
approximately RMB20,853.13 million of our credit lines from various domestic
and foreign financial institutions remained unused.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Debt to capital ratio is calculated by dividing the total liabilities at the end of the
year by total equity at the end of the year and multiplying by 100%.

As of 31 December 2022, our debt to capital ratio was 139% (31 December
2021: 139%).

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255
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gEEEREE®

HZE202F12A318 - AEEREEREHEAAR
K7 549.97TE BT - HPRBIHO BARKES 2372388
JC(2021F12A31H « KMEEEBEEAARKS579861HE
TT HPREEs AARE1167.958ET) ©

BE2022F12A310 - AEEBRBEZ RS aEER 7]
BIEEHEE ARE28,707.408 87T  H 2202212 A31
A AEBERAZRENIINCBIEBENEEEEOAR
#20,853.13B B ILAER ©

EXRELR

BEREBEARLENRFRAGRRER AT RERREE -
BIE100%TE -

B E2022F 128318 - AEBERKEE AR EA139%
(2021412 A31H : 139%) °

Liquidity Risk MENE E R
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 months to 1yearto 2yearsto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cashflows amount
i)
RERS, RéfE
MELHRZ  HRYMER  MEREIE 1582 2ERGE &% REE
RMBmilions ~ RMB milions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMB millions  RMB millions
AREBEL AREBER AREAER ARWREL AREKEET AREKBER
The Group by |
As at 31 December 2022 2020512 A31A
Non-Gerivative financial liabiities HiELRAR
Trade and other payables BAREMEMNTIE
(excluding non-financial liabiltes) (TefEEeRERE) 8,476.54 1.801.58 - - 1027812 10,278.12
Liabilties associated with transferred 7 IS A0E 5 felizuE
frade receivables BAMERE 2.6 24780 - - 269.42 269.42
Borrowings - 240 1,498.44 1,866.92 543.48 397497 7,883.81 754997
Lease liabilities REaR 290 59.35 109.59 146.35 1,207.14 192244 1,397.00
Derivative financial liabiities iTEeRasE
Designated as hedging instruments ~ $5E A% T A - - = - - -
Not designated as hedging instruments g2 AR T A 1740 - - o 1740 1740
10,073.35 402589 669.83 51821 19,971.18 19,511.90
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative assets, loan receivable
from associates and a joint venture, pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the Group placed them in
or entered into the contract with the banks with high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to reputable and
creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and an appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorization of credit limits
to individual customers and recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business of manufacture of coal
mining machinery, the Group generally receives advances in the form of notes
receivable or cash from customers (which approximate 30% of the contract
price) before delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts, normally a
credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognized certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment of
the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable are
issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 1R E

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate borrowings (see Note 32 for details). Currently, the Group does not have
a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but management will closely
monitor interest rate exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Group’s interest risk.

Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various non-functional currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is primarily with
respect to non-functional currency bank balances, and receivable (collectively
“Non-Functional Currency Items”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
certain foreign currency exposure by using foreign exchange forward contracts
when the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk between USD/RMB,
EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB. Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statement
prepared under IFRSs for more quantitative information about the Group’s
currency risk.
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Jiao Chengyao (&%), male, was born in May 1963 in Gongyi County,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a professor-level senior engineer with
postgraduate qualifications. He graduated from China Institute of Mining and
Technology (4P EI#E 2 22F5%) (now known as China University of Mining and
Technology (FP B#E 3 A 22)), majoring in mechanical design, manufacture
and automation, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985.
He obtained a master’s degree in engineering from China University of Mining
and Technology in December 2003, and a doctoral degree in economics from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (& A fH% K £2) in December
2007. From July 1985 to May 1992, he served as a technician, a production
dispatcher and an engineer of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 1992 to May 1993, he was the
manager of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station (ZF)73 O /B4 (&
). From May 1993 to January 1998, he was the deputy plant manager and
plant manager of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From January 1998 to July 2000, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to
October 2002, he was the plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From October 2002 to December 2008, he served as the chairman and
general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. (ZCMM).
From July 2015 to May 2020, he acted as the chairman of Henan Machinery
Investment Group Co., Ltd. (which changed its name to “Henan State-owned
Capital Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd. (o] /g B & A& & & B %
BAHBRAT) on 14 April 2023). Since December 2008, he has been the
chairman of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Jiao Chengyao held 4,426,964 A
Shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.288% of all its A Shares
and approximately 0.249%of all its Shares.
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Xiang Jiayu (A% /), male, was born in August 1965 in Guangshan
County, Henan. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with postgraduate
qualifications. From September 1980 to July 1984, he studied at the
Department of Electrical and Mechanical Engineering of Jiaozuo Mining
Institute (£5 ERZ 3 £2F5%), majoring in mechanisation. He studied at the China
University of Mining and Technology, Master’s Department (Beijing) (7 Bl%&
2K B AT A= EB) from September 1988 to January 1991, majoring
in mining mechanical engineering and obtained a master’s degree. From July
1984 to August 1988, he lectured at Yima Mining Technical School (= 55 5&
& BEAR). From May 1991 to December 1992, he was a designer at the
research centre of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December
1992 to July 1995, he was the executive officer of the No. 2 research centre
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August 1995 to November
1998, he was the deputy plant manager at Huanghe Electric Vehicle Plant (&
JAIEENELH) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November
1998 to July 2000, he was the executive officer of the hydraulic project centre
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002,
he served as the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From October 2002 to October 2008, he was the deputy general
manager and standing deputy general manager of ZCMM. From October 2008
to December 2008, he was a director and the general manager of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December 2008 to February 2015, he
was a director and the general manager of the Company. From February 2015
to February 2018, he has been the vice chairman of the Company. From July
2015 to December 2020, he was a director of Henan Machinery Investment
Group Co., Ltd. (which changed its name to “Henan State-owned Capital
Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd. (RAIEE B A NELEFIRER
FRZ2R])" on 14 April 2023). From December 2014 to March 2021, he was
the secretary to the Party Committee of the Company. From February 2018 to
March 2021, he was a Director of the Company. He has been the vice chairman
of the Company since March 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Xiang Jiayu held 2,921,420 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.190% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.164% of all its Shares.
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Jia Hao (E %), male, was born in March 1970 with Han ethnicity. He holds
the qualification of a master’s degree. Mr. Jia graduated from University of
Shanghai for Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
manufacturing technology and equipment in 1991. In 2001, he obtained a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from China Europe International
Business School. He successively served as an engineer and an assistant to the
director of Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical Scientific Research Institute
of China National Machinery Industry Corporation. He also served as a sales
manager of Parker Hannifin Motion & Control (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a standing
deputy general manager of Shanghai Ziyan Mould Industry Co., Ltd. of Zijiang
Group, a general manager of the investment department of Salim Wanye Group
(China) Co., Ltd., the president of Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited and
the chairman of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd.
From March 2014 to February 2018, he was the deputy general manager of the
Company. From February 2018 to March 2021, Mr. Jia was the vice chairman
and the general manager of the Company. He has been an employee Director
and the general manager of the Company since March 2021. He has also
served as the chairman of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited (34
FHOEEE (uF) AR A R) since January 2021,

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Jia Hao held 1,973,300 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.129% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.111% of all its Shares.

Fu Zugang ({4ER4), male, was born in November 1965 in Gong'an County,
Hubei. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with undergraduate
qualifications. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at Wuhan
Technology College (% T 26;) (now known as Wuhan University of
Technology (42 F8 T X &2)), majoring in casting, and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to July 2000, he served as a technician,
an assistant engineer, an engineer, a senior engineer, a team leader of
technology team, an assistant to the plant manager, a deputy plant manager
and a plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002
to November 2006, he was the chairman of labour union of ZCMM. From
November 2006 to December 2008, he was a director and a deputy general
manager of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was a deputy
general manager of the Company. From February 2012 to February 2015, he
was a director and a deputy general manager of the Company. From February
2015 to February 2018, he served as the general manager of the Company.
Since February 2018, he has been a Director of the Company and the general
manager of the coal mining machinery segment.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Fu Zugang held 3,543,620 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.231% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.199% of all its Shares.
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Wang Xinying (£ #7%), male, was born in October 1965 in Xin'an County,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with postgraduate
qualifications. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at the
Department of Mining Engineering of Chongqing University (B2 A 2),
majoring in mining machinery. From September 2004 to July 2007, he studied
at the School of Mechanical Engineering of China University of Mining and
Technology and obtained postgraduate qualification and a master’s degree
in engineering. From July 1985 to October 1992, he was an engineer of
the equipment division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, and
worked and studied in Toyota Motor Corporation between January 1991 and
January 1992. From October 1992 to July 1994, he was a deputy manager
of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station. From July 1994 to December
1996, he was a deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of machinery repair
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1996 to July
2000, he was a deputy director of the production division of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to January 2005, he was the head
of corporate planning department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From January 2005 to December 2008, he was a deputy general manager of
ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2015, he was a director and deputy
general manager of the Company. Since February 2015, he has been a Director
of the Company. He has been the chairman of Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd.
since June 2016. From May 2020 to March 2023, he was a director of Henan
Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. (which changed its name to “Henan
State-owned Capital Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd. (7] B3B3 & Z<:&
e B35 E B PR T)” on 14 April 2023).

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wang Xinying held 1,425,040 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.093% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.080% of all its Shares.
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Cui Kai (££5]), male, was born in September 1974 in Jincheng City, Shanxi.
He holds postgraduate qualifications, CPC membership and the title of senior
economist. Mr. Cui graduated as a finance major from Henan University
of Economics and Law (JA] &8 BA 48 BUE A Z2) with a bachelor’s degree
in economics in 1997, and as a finance major from Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (77 &g B &S B A K E2) with a master’s degree in
economics in 2001. He successively worked for Henan Provincial Investment
Company (] £ & i2 5% 1% & 482 =), Henan Venture Investment Co., LTD (AT
Bl %35 & P& B R A 7)) and Henan Investment Group Company Limited
(IR &£ E AR A 7)) from August 1997 to September 2017. He served
as the vice president of Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. (A Fa & EE
A PR A a]) from September 2017 to December 2019. Since December
2019, Mr. Cui has become the president of Henan Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. Since May 2018, he has also served as the chairman of Henan Asset Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (AR EEE S EIEHR A R]). Since December
2020, Mr. Cui has also been the legal representative and general manager of
Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited (5Aze > 2EE T2 (r[Fg)
ABRAa]). Since March 2021, he has been a Director of the Company.
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Fei Guangsheng (&), male, was born in January 1965 in Hefei City,
Anhui Province. He holds CPC membership and postgraduate qualification
with a master’s degree, and serves as a senior economist, an engineer and a
senior human resource manager. He also has the qualifications for serving as
an independent director, secretary to the board and fund practitioner. Mr. Fei
Guangsheng majored in welding technology and equipment at Hefei University
of Technology from September 1985 to July 1989, obtaining undergraduate
qualification with a bachelor’s degree. From September 1995 to April 1999,
he studied at Tsinghua University majoring in business administration, and
obtained postgraduate qualification with a master’s degree. From August 1989
to June 1995, he successively served as a technician, director assistant and
manager of the tooling department at Xuzhou Loader Factory (5 1 5 S A% 5).
From May 1999 to April 2000, he headed the securities department of Xugong
Construction Machinery Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (&1 T F2 et
A% {5 AR A &)). From April 2000 to July 2007, he served as the secretary
to the board and the head of the securities department of Xugong Construction
Machinery Science & Technology Co., Ltd., as well as the deputy general
manager of Jiangsu Hangao Information Industry Co., Ltd. (T &2 =1{= &
EXRRH AR ). From July 2007 to November 2009, he served as the
deputy general manager, secretary to the board and the head of the securities
and audit department of Xugong Construction Machinery Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. From November 2009 to February 2010, he was the secretary to
the board and the head of the securities department of XCMG Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd. (& TEE TRE##R %% B R 2 7)) and the deputy
general manager of the technology branch of XCMG Construction Machinery
Co., Ltd. From February 2010 to November 2011, he served as the secretary
to the board and the head of the securities department of XCMG Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd. Since November 2011, he has been the secretary to
the board and the head of the securities department of XCMG Construction
Machinery Co., Ltd., and the director and general manager of Xuzhou Xu Gong
Investment Company Limited (5114 T 3% & A FR /A &)). Since August 2021,
he has been a director of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited
(L% (M) BRRA ). Since October 2021, he has been a
Director of the Company. Mr. Fei Guangsheng has also served as a director and
the general manager of Xuzhou Xu Gong Equity Investment Company Limited (&
M1 T PEAER & AR A 7)), the chairman of Xu Gong Hongshu (Shanghai)
Asset Management Company Limited (& TAT# ( &) EEEEABRA
7)), a director of XCMG Hanyun Technology Co., Ltd. (& T2 E R M D4
R /A a]) and a director of Qinghai Road and Bridge Construction Co., Ltd. (&
B RER N ARAT).
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Cheng Jinglei (f28 ), male, was born in September 1967. He is a CPC
member and a professor-level senior engineer with a master’s degree in
business administration. Mr. Cheng served for SAIC VOLKSWAGEN as an
engineer in logistics and industrial engineering, head of the planning and
logistics department, head of the production planning department and head
of the product engineering department, and served at SAIC Motor as the
general manager of its technology and quality department, president of the
engineering academy, as well as general manager of the strategy and business
planning department and chief engineer. Mr. Cheng was also the chairman
of SAIC Silicon Valley Venture Capital (5= E % E A 7)), Dalian
Sunrise Power Company (Fuel Cell) (A:E#F RN 7] (PAEIEM) ) and
DIAS Automotive Electronic Systems Co., Ltd. (#8538 EFHR A 7)),
a director of SAIC VOLKSWAGEN and SAIC GM, the vice president of China
Society of Automotive Engineers, and the president of Shanghai Society of
Automotive Engineers. From June 2018 to April 2020, he served as the partner
and president of AGRC. He has been the founder and chairman of Shanghai
Shengshi Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (b8 A& EIRERAER A7)
since January 2020. From April 2018 to January 2020, he was an independent
director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited. He has been an independent
director of Shanghai Carthane Co., Ltd. (/@8 BRI EHZIR D BR A
7)) (603037) since August 2019. Since October 2019, he has been a Director
of the Company. Since November 2021, he has been the chairman of Qingdao
SunHydro Group Co., Ltd.

Ji Feng (Z=%), male, was born with Chinese nationality in 1970. He is a
certified public accountant and a certified appraiser with a master’s degree in
accounting. In July 1992, he graduated from Jilin College of Finance and Trade
(& #RBF B E2B5%) (now Jilin University of Finance and Economics) and obtained
a bachelor’s degree in accounting. In December 2010, he obtained a master’s
degree in accounting from the Business School of Jilin University. From July
1992 to December 1992, he served as a staff member of the First Division
of Industry and Finance (T84 — &) of the Bureau of Finance of Changchun.
From January 1993 to March 1995, he served as the financial manager of both
Dalian Company and Jilin Company of China National Chemical Construction (77
B0k, T 322%). From March 1995 to December 2001, he served as the deputy
general manager of Jilin Zhaoxian Qiushi Accounting Firm (F B &K E
A E TS FT). Since January 2002, he has been a partner, a managing
partner, and a quality control managing partner of Dahua Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership). Since 26 March 2015, he has been
an independent director of Beijing Municipal Road and Bridge Co., Ltd. From
20 April 2020, he has been an independent director of Beijing Tieke Shougang
Railway-Tech Co., Ltd. He has been an independent non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2021.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Guo Wenqing (Z832 &), female, was born with Chinese nationality in Beijing
in 1967. He possesses postgraduate qualifications and professional lawyer
qualifications. In July 1990, she graduated from the Law School of Renmin
University of China and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law. She obtained a
master’s degree in economics from Renmin University of China in January
1996 and an EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School
in August 2011. From August 2010 to June 2022, She has been a chief legal
counsel of the private banking department of China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd. She served as a partner and lawyer of Beijing Dentons Law Firm (3t =%
AR RENEFEFT) from 1994 to 2001, a partner of Beijing Tongwei Law
Firm (Jb R R 4 2= B =75 Fr) from 2001 to 2005, and a partner of Beijing
Kangda Law Firm from 2005 to 2010. She also served as independent director
of Shanghai Phichem Material Co., Ltd., from March 2011 to March 2017, and
an independent director of Beijing Ctrowell Technology Corporation Limited from
October 2011 to September 2017. She has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since March 2021.

Fang Yuan (/5 %), male, is the founding managing partner of Starquest
Capital, a China-based private equity investment firm with its investment
strategies focused on consumer, healthcare and technology sectors. Prior to
founding Starquest Capital in 2018, Mr. Fang served as the head of LGT Capital
Partners in China for 12 years. Before joining LGT Capital Partners in early
2007, Mr. Fang worked for AXA Private Equity Group in Singapore, focusing
on fund investment and direct investment in the Pan-Asia region. Mr. Fang
has a total of 20 years of experience in the financial sector. Mr. Fang holds a
bachelor’s degree in accounting from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, a MBA
degree from INSEAD Business School and an EMBA degree from Tsinghua
University PBC School of Finance. Mr. Fang also holds the Chinese certified
public accountant qualification. He was appointed as an independent non
— executive director of VCREDIT Holdings Limited (listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange; stock code: HK02003) on 19 August 2020. He has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since March 2021,
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EX ESERENEEE

Supervisors

Liu Qiang (2)3&), male, was born in June 1969 in Yongcheng City, Henan. He is
a CPC member and a senior auditor. From September 1986 to July 1990, Mr.
Liu studied at Nankai University, majoring in economics management and law,
and obtained bachelor’s degrees in law and economics. From September 2001
to July 2004, he studied at Wuhan University, majoring in world economics, and
obtained a master’s degree. In July 2009, he graduated from Henan University,
majoring in regional economics, and was admitted as a doctoral candidate. He
obtained a doctoral degree in economics in December 2009. From July 1990
to November 2002, he successively worked at the agriculture audit division,
general office and division of legal affairs under the Department of Audit of
Henan Province, and his last position was the department-head-level officer.
From November 2002 to July 2012, he was the deputy section-level supervisor
of the Supervisory Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by
Henan Provincial Government (Al fi 4 & & B G B £ D). From July
2012 to November 2012, he served as the department-head-level supervisor
of the Supervisory Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by
Henan Provincial Government. From November 2012 to September 2014, he
was a researcher of Provincially Administered Medium and Small Enterprise
Department (& B /NP &) of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government. He also
served as a researcher of Economic Cooperation Department of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government from September 2014 to December 2014. Since December 2014,
he has been the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Company. From
February 2015 to February 2018, he was a Director of the Company. Since
February 2018, he has been the chairman of the Board of Supervisors and the
chairman of the Labor Union of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Liu Qiang held 11,500 A shares of the
Company, which accounted for approximately 0.0007% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.0006% of all the shares of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Cheng Xiangdong (F2#3R), male, was born in December 1973 in Qixian
County, Henan. He is a CPC member and a political analyst with a master’s
degree in management. From September 1993 to July 1995, he studied at
the History Department of Shanggqiu Teachers College (3 A& 5% =
RIEF). From July 1995 to September 2000, he was a staff member of the
Office of the Bureau of Materials of Shangaiu (75 £ ¥ & Bt A Z). From
September 2000 to December 2002, he was a deputy director of the Office of
the Party Committee of the Bureau of Materials of Shangqiu. From December
2002 to June 2008, he was a deputy director of the Office of Shanggiu Material
Circulation Centre (7 Fr T 40 & /7R 8 AR /0182 =) (during which, he studied
at Zhengzhou University with undergraduate qualifications from September
1996 to June 2000, majoring in administration management). From June 2008
to August 2008, he worked at the human resources department of Yongcheng
Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd. From August 2008 to December 2009, he
worked at the Beijing Office of Yongcheng Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd.
From December 2009 to October 2010, he was a general manager assistant
and a sales director of Shanggiu Longyu Chemical Co., Ltd. From October
2010 to January 2011, he was a deputy general manager of Shanggiu Longyu
Chemical Co., Ltd. From January 2011 to September 2013, he was a director
of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary Commission (42 Z& 2 {442
& =) of Henan Coal Chemical Industry Group. From September 2013 to
August 2015, he was a director of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary
Commission of Henan Energy and Chemical Industry Group (during which, he
enrolled in EMBA studies at Beijing Jiaotong University from December 2012
to January 2015 and obtained a master’s degree in management). From
August 2015 to November 2017, he was a director of the Case Supervision
Office of the Disciplinary Commission, a member of the Party Committee and
the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Sales Company of Henan
Energy and Chemical Industry Group. From November 2017 to May 2020, he
was a member of the Party Committee and the secretary to the Disciplinary
Commission of “Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. (which changed
its name to Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd.
(A ENESEEIRERRAR) on 14 April 2023). Since May
2020, he has been a member of the Party Committee, the secretary to the
Disciplinary Commission, and a director of Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (which changed its name to “Henan State-owned Capital Operation
Group Investment Co., Ltd. (R E B ABLEEIREGRAF)" on
14 April 2023). Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Wang Yue (£ %), male,was born in July 1970 in Nanyang County, Henan.
He is a CPC member and a certified public accountant with a master’s degree.
In July 1993, he graduated from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics (JA]
R ACE57) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring in
industrial economics. In July 2006, he obtained an MBA degree from Zhengzhou
University (&8/1X£2). From October 1993 to October 1998, he was an
accountant in Zhengzhou Running Water General Corporation (25N 7 & 2&
7K #4872 @]). From November 1998 to March 2001, he was the deputy head
of the department of accounting and finance of Zhengzhou Dongzhou Water
Supply Company Limited (286 7 52 /& £k A PR 2 &1). From June 2004 to
December 2009, he was successively the deputy head and head of the finance
department and the financial controller of Zhengzhou Running Water General
Corporation. From December 2009 to November 2013, he was the chief
accountant of Zhengzhou Running Water Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (ZF/1
B KR EIZE A R A 7). From November 2013 to September 2015, he
was the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Development Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (BB 2% RITE £ BB R /AF). Since September 2015, he has
been the deputy general manager of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. (which changed its name to “Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group
Investment Co., Ltd. (Al BB EAE L &£ EIREFR A )" on 14 April
2023). Since February 2018, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Zhang Minglin (3R a5 4K), male, was born in January 1963. He is a CPC
member and a professor-level senior engineer with a doctoral degree. From
September 1979 to July 1983, he studied at Huainan Mining Institute (£
%% 285%), majoring in mining. He obtained an EMBA degree from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (£ fH% A £2) in December 2004
and a doctoral degree in economics in December 2007 from that university.
From August 1983 to August 1987, he was a section member of Henan Coal
Mine Supply Company (7] & B AE L E 2 7). From August 1987 to May
1996, he worked as a section member, a deputy senior section member and
a senior section member of Henan Coal Industrial Department. From August
1995 to February 1996, he went to Zhenggiao Village, Huzu Town, Gushi
County in Xinyang to participate in the party construction in rural areas which
was organised by Henan Provincial Committee of Chinese Communist Party.
From May 1996 to May 1999, he was the deputy general manager of Henan
Coal Mine Supply Company. From May 1999 to April 2004, he served as the
general manager and the secretary to the Party Committee of Henan Coal Mine
Supply Company. From October 2000 to November 2004, he served as the
general manager of Henan Coal Sales Company Limited (7] B 44 i 84 &
ARRE {FA 7). From November 2004 to December 2008, he served as a
deputy general manager of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2018, he
has been the deputy general manager of the Company. Since February 2018,
he has been a researcher of the Company. Since March 2021, he has been a
supervisor of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang Minglin held 75,000 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.005% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.004% of all the shares of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Bao Xueliang (§2Z R), male, was born in March 1963 in Jiangyin City,
Jiangsu. He holds undergraduate qualifications. He graduated from China
University of Mining and Technology (H E#% £ X £2), majoring in mechanical
design and automation. From August 1985 to June 1998, he successively
served as a technician, engineer and deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of
Tianjin Coal Mine Specialised Equipment Factory (K2 /5 i = F 35 /25 ).
From July 1998 to December 2000, he successively served as an investment
manager and a deputy director of the project investment department of Tianjin
Science and Technology Development Investment Corporation (<2 % %
RIZE 42 7)). From January 2001 to May 2007, he successively served
as the administrative director and standing deputy general manager of Tianjin
Bohai Venture Capital Investment Management Company (X &85 &l 2
$&°& & 38 2 aA)). From June 2007 to October 2008, he served as the assistant
to the chairman of ZCMM. From October 2008 to December 2008, he served as
the board secretary (deputy general manager level) of ZCMM. From December
2008 to February 2015, he severed as the board secretary of the Company.
Since February 2015, he has been a researcher of the Company. Since March
2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Cui Zonglin (£ 5= #k), male, was born with Han nationality in May 1963. He,
with Chinese nationality but without the right of permanent residence abroad,
is a CPC member, a senior economist and a human resource manager. In July
1983, he graduated from Zhengzhou Coal Management Institute, majoring
in labour economics. In July 1986, he graduated from Zhengzhou University,
majoring in law. In December 1995, he graduated from the Party School of CPC
Central Committee, majoring in economic management. He has been working
in the Company since 1983, successively serving as a principal staff member,
section chief, an assistant to the head and a deputy head of the human
resources department, and a deputy head (in charge of work) and the head of
the legal affairs department. He has been a special expert of the Company since
February 2018. Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.
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Senior Management

Mr. Jia Hao (&%) is a general manager of the Company. Please refer to
“Directors” of this section for his biography.

Fu Qi (133%), male, was born in November 1969 in Biyang, Henan. He is a
member of the Chinese Communist Party and a senior engineer. He is a deputy
general manager of the Company. From September 1988 to July 1992, he
studied at China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical
design and theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section
member of the first development division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December
1996, he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first
development division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he
was a section officer and the deputy head of the sales planning division, the
deputy head of the marketing department, and the deputy head of the sub —
plant of installation of the Company. From January 2006 to March 2008, he
was the head of the production and manufactory department of the Company.
From March 2008 to April 2010, he was the general manager of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Material Trading Co., Ltd. From April 2010 to
February 2012, he was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee
of Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been
the deputy general manager of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Fu Qi held 611,700 A shares of the
Company, which accounted for approximately 0.040% of all the A shares of the
Company and approximately 0.034% of all the shares of the Company.

Zhang Haibin (3&3&5®), male, was born in September 1981 in Xinmi, Henan
and is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He is the secretary to the
Board and company secretary of the Company. He graduated from China
University of Mining and Technology and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law in
July 2005. From July 2005 to March 2007, he was a secretary of the general
office of ZCMM. From March 2007 to December 2008, he served as the chief
secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From December 2008 to March
2010, he was the chief secretary of the general office of the Company. From
March 2010 to September 2010, he served as an assistant to the head of the
general office of the Company. From September 2010 to January 2012, he
served as the deputy head of capital operation department and representative
for securities affairs of the Company. From January 2012 to February 2015,
he was the head of general office, head of capital operation department and
representative for securities affairs of the Company. From July 2012 to February
2015, he was the head of division of party and masses’ affairs. From February
2015 to February 2018, he has been the deputy general manager and the
board secretary of the Company. From July 2017 to February 2018, he has
concurrently been the chief financial officer of the Company. Since February
2018, he has been the board secretary of the Company. Since January 2021,
he has also served as the director of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan)
Limited (AR B2 B2 ORlEg) AR AR,

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang Haibin held 611,700 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.040% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.034% of all the shares of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Huang Hua (&), female, was born in January 1969 in Zhongshan,
Guangdong. She is a chartered financial analyst (CFA) and an engineer. She is
the chief financial officer of the Company. In July 1987, she graduated from
Central South University majoring in metal physics and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in science. In August 1990, she obtained a master’s degree in
engineering majoring in inorganic non-metal materials granted by the Institution
of Metal Research under Chinese Academy of Sciences. In December 2000,
she obtained a master of business administration (MBA) degree from China
Europe International Business School. From August 1990 to November 1991,
she served as an assistant researcher at the Institution of Metal Research
(Shenyang) under Chinese Academy of Sciences. From December 1991 to
April 1999, she served as the plant manager of sub-plant, manager of the
corporate management department, chief engineer and assistant general
manager of Shenzhen Jinke Special Materials Co., Ltd. From September 2000
to May 2001, she served as a senior project manager at the capital operation
department of China Online (Bermuda) Company Limited ((F Bl 4% (B &
K) AR ]). From August 2001 to July 2003, she served as investment
manager of Shenzhen Innovation Centre Co., Ltd. (EFIBIFTRHRE AR A
al). From August 2003 to March 2005, she served as the general manager
and director of Shenyang Jinchangpu New Materials Company Limited (%15
& BT EHMEAR A ). From May 2005 to December 2006, she served
as the general manager of Jinco Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd. From January
2007 to June 2008, she served as a project manager and senior analyst at
VALE INCO LIMITED (formerly the headquarters of Inco Ltd. (& KBIB42 2
Zxa)). From July 2008 to September 2017, she served as the treasurer and
risk officer of Vale Minerals (China) Co. Ltd. (A7) A A EE fa R B A R A
aJ). From October 2017 to February 2018, she has been the consultant for the
acquisition of Bosch by the Company. Since February 2018, she served as the
chief financial officer of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Huang Hua held 611,700 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.040% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.034% of all the shares of the Company.
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EX ESERENEEE

Senior Management (Continued)

Li Weiping (Z=1& ), female, was born in February 1974 in Hengshan,
Hunan. She is a deputy general manager of the Company. From October
2003 to June 2005, she studied under the MBA programme in the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. From September 1995 to August 2002, she
served as the human resources commissioner/supervisor/manager of ABB
Xinhui Low Voltage Switchgear Co., Ltd. (ABB ¥ & KB R AR A 7).
From September 2002 to September 2004, she served as the senior human
resources manager of Bosch Heating System Co., Ltd. (1B tt-4%8% R4 H R
7~ al). From September 2004 to September 2008, she served as the director
of human resources at Bosch Automotive Diesel Systems Co., Ltd. ({& ;55
L8 Z 4 A R 22 &)). From July 2008 to December 2009, she served as the
director of Asia-Pacific human resources at the German headquarters of Bosch
Rexroth (Rohr, Germany). From January 2010 to March 2012, she served as
the director of human resources at Bosch Rexroth Hydraulic (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
(B h+46% B (485 BBR A 7). From January 2012 to August 2018,
she served as the director of human resources and chief business officer of
Bosch Automotive Components (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (58 2R (BRM)
AR 72 7). Since October 2018, she has been the deputy general manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Li Weiping held 617,500 A shares of
the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.040% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.035% of all the shares of the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. Zhang Haibin is the company secretary. Please refer to “— Senior
Management” of this section for his biography.

Ms. Chan Yin Wah (B #2£), aged 47, is the assistant to the company
secretary. Ms. Chan is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. She has over 20 years of professional experience
in handling the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters
for listed companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various internationally
well-known professional firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan
holds a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree in professional
accounting. She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. She is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective and reasonable corporate governance
practices are essential to the development of the Group and can safeguard and
enhance the interests of the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Review Period”), the
Company complied with the requirements in the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company in
a responsible and effective manner, being responsible for execution of the
resolutions passed at general meetings, deciding on the Company’s operating
plans, investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units, preparing the Company’s annual financial budgets, final accounts and
profit distribution plans, and appointing members of its senior management.
Meanwhile, the Board has established four Board committees, namely,
the Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee. These Board committees are assigned respective
responsibilities according to their terms of reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in the best interests of
the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and act in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, which at least include the following:

e 1o develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e 1o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board will convene at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve the active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the regular Board meeting.
For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors five days prior to the meeting. When an
extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early as possible in
case of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given by telephone
or in other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener explains at the
meeting. A written notice of meeting shall at least include the business to be
considered and the meeting information as necessary for the Directors to vote.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal, nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is concluded. The participating Directors shall
sign the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorise them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the name; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Meetings (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Board convened 10 meetings in total, one on
each of 28 March 2022, 26 April 2022, 8 June 2022, 15 June 2022, 19 July
2022, 4 August 2022, 30 August 2022, 6 September 2022, 26 October 2022
and 21 December 2022.

Attendance of meetings by each Director during the Review Period is recorded as
follows:

Number of

Board meetings

attended

Name of Directors in person
EEpg ELEESENY
Mr. Jiao Chengyao ERELE 10
M. Xiang Jiayu MEREE 10
Mr. Jia Hao BAEE 10
Mr. Fu Zugang RmELE 10
Mr. Wang Xinying IHesrs 10
M. Cui Kai gt 10
M. Fei Guangsheng BEBLE 10
Mr. Cheng Jinglei BEZLE 10
Mr. Ji Feng Flkk 10
Ms. Guo Wenging dxant 10
Mr. Fang Yuan RERE 10
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Board of Directors (Continued)
General Meetings

During the reporting period, the Company convened a total of two general
meetings, which was attended by some of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management. Attendance of general meetings by the Directors is recorded as
follows:

BEgnm
N
WEHN  AATHBET2OAREAS  BHES -

EERARERARLRTREAS - LT AEEHE
BEARER :

2022 First
2021 Annual Extraordinary Attendance Actual

Name of Directors General Meeting  General Meeting required attendance  Attendance rate

22

AN%E E-RER
BEfZ FERRAE BRAE ELRERE  BREERE L=
Mr. Jiao Chengyao ERELE | | 2 2 100%
M Xiang Jiayu PEGERS V V 2 2 100%
Mr. Jia Hao Bk | | 2 2 100%
M. Fu Zugang fHERAEE | | 2 2 100%
r. Wang Xinying Trast V V 2 2 100%
Mr. Cui Kai EkL | / 2 2 100%
Mr. Fei Guangsheng BEBLL | V 2 2 100%
Mr. Cheng Jingle REELA V V 2 2 100%
Mr. Ji Feng BN St | | 2 2 100%
. Guo Wenging El gk | | 2 2 100%
Mr. Fang Yuan FEEE | | 2 2 100%

Board Composition BEE2HKX

During the Review Period, the Board consisted of eleven Directors, comprising
five executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. One-third or more of the members of the Board of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors.

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors possess extensive
experience in equipment manufacturing industry, and the independent non-
executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications in law and
accounting as well as financial management expertise. In accordance with the
Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in
all corporate communications.

As at the end of the reporting period and the date of this annual report, the
members of the Board were:

Executive Directors: Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Vice
Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao, Mr. Fu Zugang and Mr. Wang Xinying.

Non-executive Directors: Mr. Cui Kai, Mr. Fei Guangsheng.

Independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Cheng Jinglei, Mr. Ji Feng, Ms. Guo
Wenging and Mr. Fang Yuan.
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Board Composition (Gontinued)

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report. Save as disclosed in such
section, there is no other material relationship among the members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships).

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board of the Company has, at all times, complied with the requirements
under the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors (accounting for more than one-third of the number of
Directors), one of whom shall possess appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management knowledge.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the
Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

The Company recognises that the independence of the Board is pivotal in good
corporate governance and board effectiveness. The Board has established a
mechanism to ensure that the independent views and opinions of any Director
of the Company can be communicated to the Board, including but not limited to
reviewing from time to time that independent non-executive Directors possess
appropriate qualifications and professional skills and have devoted sufficient
time to the Group, the number of independent non-executive Directors has
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules, and channels have been
established to assess the contributions and opinions of the independent non-
executive Directors. The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of
the relevant mechanism each year.

During the reporting period, the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company strictly complied with relevant laws and regulations, the Company’s
Articles of Association, the relevant rules of procedure and the provisions of
the Company’s independent Director system, adhered to the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors, performed supervisory functions,
participated in the making of various major decisions and the review of
regular reports, financial reports and related-party transactions, and played an
important role in the Company’s standardized operation, thereby safeguarding
the legitimate rights and interests of minority shareholders.

Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. During the Review
Period, Mr. Jiao Chengyao was the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Jia
Hao was the General Manager. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring that all significant
and key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board timely
and constructively. The General Manager is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to manage the Company’s day-to-day business in all aspects
effectively, implement major strategies and coordinate the overall business
operation.
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Internal Control

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives. In accordance with the requirements set out in paragraph D.2 of
the CG Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board has established a
risk management and internal control system, and has continuously supervised
and reviewed the effectiveness of the system’s operation. The system is
aimed at managing, instead of eliminating, the risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, fostering effective and highly efficient operation, and
offering reasonable assurances as to the reliability of the financial reports and
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, and safeguarding the
Group’s assets.

Structure of Risk Management and Internal Control
Functions

To ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training courses and the related budget available to the Company in respect
of risk management and internal audit, the Company has established a sound
organisational structure of risk management and internal control that includes
the Board, the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the management of the
Company, the Audit and Legal Department, the Risk Management Department
and various departments of the Company.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal control
of the Company by determining the overall risk preference and risk tolerance of
the Company based on the strategic development objectives and ensuring the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee under the Board monitors the operation of the
Company’s risk management and internal control system, advises the Board and
makes recommendations on major decisions regarding the building of the risk
management and internal control system. The management of the Company is
responsible for laying down the risk management and internal control structure
and basic requirements, and continuously improving the scope, substance,
methodology and procedure of work of the structure. The Audit and Legal
Department and the Risk Management Department of the Company conducts
internal audit and supervision for risk management, and is responsible to the
management of the Company. As the first line of defence in risk management
and internal control, various departments of the Company organise and carry out
the daily work in risk management and accept the organisation, coordination,
guidance and supervision by the management, the Audit and Legal Department
and the Risk Management Department of the Company in doing their part of risk
management and internal control in their respective professional areas.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Structure of Risk Management and Internal Control Functions
(Continued)

Commencement of risk management work

Risk prevention determines the course in building the Company’s system and
internal control structure. During the Review Period, based on the methodology
of risk management covering risk identification, risk assessment, risk response,
risk reporting and monitoring, the Company focused on its overall operating
objectives, combined the internal and external circumstances, as well as the
management conditions of the Company, fully reorganised and identified the
possible risks from different aspects, such as strategy, operation, finance,
market, law and others, and thereby built up a risk incident database that was
unique to the Company.

On the basis of risk identification, each responsible department for risks
performs an in-depth analysis of the risks identified from two perspectives,
namely vulnerability to the occurrence of risk and the extent of impact from
the occurrence of risk, in order to determine the different levels of risk and,
through evaluation, ascertain the major risks the Company is faced with.
This is to ensure that appropriate management resources are allocated to
the management of major risks in an effort to step up the risk prevention and
control in key areas.

The Risk Management Department of the Company is responsible for internal
audit in risk management. By organising and commencing the supervision
and assessment of risk management, the Audit Department of the Company
continuously monitors and controls the major risks and information on changes
in risks in the course of operation and management of each responsible
department for risks, supervises and assesses whether each department is
able to commence risk management work in accordance with the relevant
regulations and the results of the work, and makes recommendations on
improving the effectiveness of implementing risk management work.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Structure of Risk Management and Internal Control Functions
(Continued)

Operation of the internal control system

The building and improvement of internal control is an effective response
to risks. Every year, the Company reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, and evaluates all the key areas of
control, including financial control, operations control and compliance control.

On the basis of adequately identifying and evaluating risks, the Company
implements the basic response measures to risks for internal control through
specific business processes. In view of the management and business
processes involved in major risks, the Company has formulated whole-process
control measures covering every stage, including management procedures and
internal control measures for important processes, such as the preparation
and disclosure of financial reports, as well as the handling and dissemination
of inside information. Through gradual formation of a sound internal control
environment, characterised by well-defined powers and responsibilities, effective
checks and balances, and coordinated operation, the Company has laid a solid
foundation for enhancing the level of internal control and risk management.

Risk management and internal control for the Review Period was reviewed at
the Board meeting on 29 March 2023. The results of the commencement of
risk management and internal control work in 2022 indicated no control failure
for major risks in the Company and revealed no weakness in major risk control.
The Company has been in strict compliance with the requirements about risk
management and internal control in the CG Code. The Board has assessed
the Company’s risk management and internal control system as effective and
adequate.
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Internal Control (continued)
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). In
accordance with Article 153 of the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be
elected or replaced at the shareholders’ general meeting and can be removed
from their office prior to the expiry of their term by the general meeting, with a
term of 3 years. At the expiry of such term of office, the term is renewable upon
re-election.

Employee representatives in the Board shall be elected or removed at employee
representatives’ general meetings, employees’ general meetings or other
demaocratic elections.

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or up-to-date version of the
relevant laws, rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors and executives to enroll in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organised by
professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so
that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the Directors are provided with written training
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills.

The Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in continuous
professional development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be
improved and updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the
Directors by seminars and provision of training information.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all the Directors had been given
relevant guideline materials and attended trainings regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, as well as the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors.

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

2B EEE ()
T ERNERES

RE ERREBRLESNHIEMEFRERARARER
(ERFKRRER))ER R XM - RIFZIZE153
- EFEHBRAGESENESR - WAl EEHEMATH
BERA S B EBTS - EFEH3F - EHEmAEE
A o

EFTETMRIARBARABTEERTIARAS B
TREFFEMTARTERELMES -

ARRNE|EEMES BRI LEMRBA G (R
R—FAERIRR AR —FANMIEEE OCRERER
SN TS LEEY A HIBRSN) ©

EEHIIRERER
EHEAEFONEREZARERIR - 2EMYS

2 URREFHARDEBRELFES IR -

WD BB ETRARAREIEER TEST 2R

EETEMBEHBRAN - RRNSIROZERT S RH R
Ao fphh - ARB—EBBEERITRABRRELETE
BXER  BUKEME LEERREELTHRA
RENGHEPI R EEEAER 2 2EERERRIER
BEE - BREAREE - SRR AME N - E
ENIE R H S IR R AR R ERF R -

ARABBEBEF2ARETERRABIUSHER
FHMRBRMB R ZITES REH - ARBREEMNE
FARBIEDIE R T A REE LRSS -

REZE2022F12A31BILFE - 2RESCEREHERH
B ER R EERESRELEE  BARESEHN
AR RRRRET o

59



60

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2022

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Internal Control (Continued)
Insurance for Directors

To mitigate the exposure to liabilities of the Directors, at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2013, the Company resolved to take out an insurance
plan at a total premium of not more than US$30 million for the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives to cover their liabilities (the “Liability
Insurance”) and confirmed that arrangements regarding the Liability Insurance
had been completed. The Liability Insurance covered the periods from 19 July
2014 10 18 July 2015, from 19 July 2015 to 18 July 2016, from 19 July 2016
to 18 July 2017, from 18 July 2017 to 17 July 2018 and from 18 July 2018
to 17 July 2019. At the annual general meeting held on 20 June 2019, the
Company resolved to take out an Liability Insurance plan at a total premium of
not more than US$10 million, the Liability Insurance covered the periods from
18 July 2019 to 17 July 2020, from 18 July 2020 to 17 July 2021 and from
18 July 2021 to 17 July 2022. At the annual general meeting held on 30 May
2022, the Company resolved to take out an Liability Insurance plan at a total
premium of not more than US$10 million, the Liability Insurance covered the
period from 18 July 2022 to 17 July 2023.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Gode”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and the Supervisors. The Company has made
specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors, who have confirmed
their compliance with the Model Code during the Review Period.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its Directors, Supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration system
for Directors, Supervisors and senior management is based on the principle
of combining incentives and disciplines, and market-oriented adjustment and
governmental regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in different forms, including salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme
contributions made on their behalf.

During the Review Period, Ms. Guo Wenging, as an independent non-executive
Director, has waived her remuneration for January to May 2022,

Save as disclosed above, there was no other arrangement under which a
Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All the Directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Board Committees

During the Review Period, the Board has set up four committees, namely,
the Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code. These Board
committees are assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of
reference. The composition and main functions of these committees and their
work during the Review Period are set out as follows:

Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy and
Sustainable Development Committee comprised Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman),
Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Fei Guangsheng, Mr. Jia Hao and and Mr. Cheng Jinglei.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy and Sustainable Development
Committee are:

()  to study the long-term development strategies and key investment
decisions of the Company and table proposals;

(i)  to study and table proposals on major investment and financing plans that
are required to be approved by the Board of Directors under the “Articles
of Association”;

(i) to study and table proposals on major capital operation and asset
management projects that are required to be approved by the Board of
Directors under the “Articles of Association”;

(iv) to study and table proposals on other major matters affecting the
development of the Company;

(v)  to conduct inspections on the implementation of the above matters;

(vi) to study and table proposals on the Company’s sustainable development
strategies, plans and programmes, and to assist the Board in discharging
its responsibilities regarding sustainable development management; and

(vii) exercising other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

The Strategy and Sustainable Development Committee did not convene any
meeting during the year.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit and Risk Management Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee comprised Mr. Ji Feng (Chairman), Mr. Cui Kai and
Ms. Guo Wenging. The Audit and Risk Management Committee is chaired by an
independent non-executive Director and comprises a majority of independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
are to review and supervise the Company’s financial reports and auditing
work, including: (i) proposing appointment and replacement of the Company’s
independent auditors; (ii) supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies
and their implementation, supervising the financial statements and annual
reports and accounts of the Company, and reviewing material opinions
regarding financial reporting as stated in financial statements and reports; (iii)
coordinating the communication between our internal Audit Department and
the independent auditors; (iv) reviewing the Company’s financial information
and disclosure of such information; (v) reviewing the Company’s internal control
system and auditing on the material connected or related party transactions; (vi)
reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk management
systems and to evaluate whether there is material failure or weakness in the
risk management and internal control of the Company; (vii) discussing the risk
management and internal control system with the management to ensure that
the management has performed its duty to establish such effective systems; (viii)
researching on major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters and the management’s response to these findings as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative; (ix) evaluating the changes in the nature
and extent of significance of the material risks the Company faces after the
previous year and its ability to respond to the changes in the business and the
changes in external environment; and (x) exercising other functions and duties as
authorised by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Audit and Risk Management Committee convened
four meetings, with full attendance of the entire committee:

U

On 25 March 2022, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
fourth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2022, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on 2021 Audited Domestic and
Overseas Financial Report of the Company, the Proposal on 2021 Annual
Report and Summary of the Company, the Proposal on the 2021 Report
on Internal Control Assessment of the Company, the Proposal on the 2021
Report on the Performance of Duties of the Audit Committee of the Board
of the Company, the Proposal on the Provision for Impairment of asset, the
Proposal on the Reappointment of External Audit Institution and Internal
Control Audit Institution for 2022, the Proposal on the Daily Connected
Transactions of the Company in 2021 and the Expected Daily Connected
Transactions of the Company in 2022, the Proposal on the Changes of
the Company’s accounting policies; the Proposal on the Adjustment of
the name and functions of the Audit Committee and amendment of the
Implementation Rules of the Audit Committee, the Proposal on Reviewing
the Comprehensive Risk Management System of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited and the Proposal on Reviewing the
Internal Control System of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited;

On 26 April 2022, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
fifth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2022, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on the 2022 First Quarterly Report
of the Company;

On 29 August 2022, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
fifth session of the Board convened its second meeting in 2022, where
it considered and approved the Proposal on 2022 Interim Report of the
Company;

On 26 October 2022, the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
fifth session of the Board convened its third meeting in 2022, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on the 2022 Third Quarterly Report
of the Company.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprised Ms. Guo Wenging (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu and Mr. Cheng
Jinglei. The Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
Director and is composed of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) advise
on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the position of
the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding structure; (ii)
formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the Company’s
Directors and management personnel; (iii) search for qualified candidates of
Directors and management personnel; (iv) review the qualifications and other
credentials of the candidates of Directors and management personnel; (v)
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors; (vi) make
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
Directors; and (vii) exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the
Board.

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board. Given its view that the Company had no
reason for urgency to change the structure, size and composition of the Board,
the Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting during the reporting period.

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprised Mr. Ji Feng (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao and
Mr. Fang Yuan. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee is chaired
by an independent non-executive Director and is composed of a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to: (i) formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes
for the Company’s Directors and management personnel; (ii) evaluate the
performance of the Company’s Directors and management personnel and
assess the appropriate remuneration package for such Directors and officers;
(iii) supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and (iv)
exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration and Assessment Committee (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
convened three meetings, with full attendance of the entire committee:

U

On 28 March 2022, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the fifth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2022, where it
considered and approved the Proposal on Confirming the Provision Amount
of Super Profit Incentive Payment for the years 2019 to 2021, and the
Proposal on Distribution plan of 2019-2021 super profit incentive scheme
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd.;

On 15 June 2022, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of the
fifth session of the Board convened its second meeting in 2022, where it
considered and approved the “Proposal on Reviewing the Results of the
2021 Annual Performance Assessment of the Participants of the 2021
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”, the “Proposal on the Adjustment to
the repurchase price of the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”,
the “Proposal on the Repurchase and cancellation of partially Restricted
Shares which are granted but not yet released under the 2021 Restricted
Share Incentive Scheme”, and the “Proposal on Meeting the Unlocking
Conditions for the First Unlocking Period of the 2021 Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme”;

On 21 December 2022, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the fifth session of the Board convened its third meeting in 2022, where
it considered and approved the “Proposal on the Adjustment to the List
of Participants and the Number of Options under the 2019 Share Option
Incentive Scheme and Cancellation of Certain Options”, the “Proposal
on Reviewing the Results of the Annual Performance Assessment of the
Participants for the Second Exercise Period of the 2019 Share Option
Incentive Scheme”, and the “Proposal on Meeting the Conditions of
Exercise for the Second Exercise Period of the 2019 Share Option Incentive
Scheme”.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB’000)
AR (AR T T
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Board Diversity Policy
Purpose

With a view to achieving sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and maintaining its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates for the Company’s Directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company each year.

In order to implement the board diversity policy, the following measurable
objectives have been adopted: (i) the Company shall comply with the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the composition of the Board from
time to time; (ii) the number of independent non-executive Directors shall not
be less than three and one-third of the number of Board members; (jii) at least
one Director shall possess appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise; and (iv) at least one female Director.
The Board has achieved such measurable objectives for the year.

The Company has also taken, and will continue to take, steps to promote
diversity in its workforce at all levels. All qualified employees shall have access
to equal employment, training and career development opportunities without
discrimination. During the year, female employees accounted for 23.7% of the
total number of employees of the Company. During the year, the training rate,
average number of training hours and employee turnover rate by gender are as
follows:

Indicator

BZ

Training rate I =R
Male S

Female 2z

Average number of training hours SEA T RFE
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Employee turnover rate BIMAL®
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In order to promote the diversification of the Company’s management and
employees, the Company will give due consideration to increasing the proportion
of female members when selecting and recruiting employees.
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Board Diversity Policy (continued)
Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review annually on the Board’s composition
in respect of diversity, and monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers and BDO China Shu Lun
Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic auditors
of the Company, respectively. The Company has not changed auditors in the
past three years. Details of fees paid or payable to the auditors by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:
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Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Zhang Haibin (“Mr. Zhang”),
who also acts as the Board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the
Company and has knowledge of the Company’s day-to-day affairs.

In addition, the Company appointed Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) as the
assistant to the company secretary, to work closely with Mr. Zhang and to
provide assistance to Mr. Zhang to discharge his duties and responsibilities as
company secretary such as organising meetings of the Board and meetings
of holders of the H Shares and gaining the relevant experience as required
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan is an
associate director of a corporate service provider, SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. The primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Mr. Zhang, whom Ms. Chan will contact on matters relating to
corporate governance, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong as well as other laws
and regulations which are relevant to the Company and other affairs of the
Company.

Mr. Zhang and Ms. Chan took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period, respectively.
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Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information. The
Company formulated the “Investor Relations Management System of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd.,” which clarifies the communication
methods of shareholders and the organisation and implementation of investor
relations activities.

Information of the Company is communicated mainly through the Company’s
corporate communications including interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars, etc. These publications are sent to the shareholders in
a timely manner and are also available on the website of the Company
(http://www.zmj.com). The means of communication between the Company and
the shareholders also include general meetings, analysts meetings or seminars,
one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation, advertisements, media interviews
and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.

The Company publishes its solutions and products, market expansion
information and updates on its official website, so that investors can keep
abreast of the Company’s latest developments. At the same time, in order to
promote the communication between the Company and investors, the Company
will report the annual operating conditions and financial data and answer the
questions of investors and analysts in the form of results presentations. The
Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event of the
Company during the year, and the Directors and key senior management try
their best to attend and communicate with investors.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s
investor relations policies. Taking into account the implementation of diversified
communication channels and participation channels, the Board believes that the
Company has properly implemented effective investor relations policies for the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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Shareholders’ Rights

According to the “Articles of Association”, shareholder(s) individually or in
aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the Company shall have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to propose an extraordinary general
meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance with laws, administrative
regulations, and the Articles of Association, make a response in writing on
whether or not it agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting, within
ten days upon receipt of such requisition. If the Board agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, a notice convening the extraordinary general
meeting shall be issued within five days to all shareholders after the Board
resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving the request,
shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the Company’s
shares shall have the right to propose to the Board of Supervisors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board of
Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original proposals
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue a notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for over 90 consecutive days shall have
the right to convene and preside over the meeting on their own. All reasonable
expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the shareholders as a result of
the failure of the Board and the Board of Supervisors to convene a meeting as
required by the above request(s) shall be borne by the Company, and any sum
S0 compensated shall be set-off against sums owed by the Company to the
defaulting Directors.

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or jointly
holding 3% or above of the Company’s shares shall have the right to submit
proposals to the Company. Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3%
or above of the Company’s shares can submit a temporary proposal to the
convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations department of the Company:

Strategic Development Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

Address: No. 167, 9th Street,
Zhengzhou Section (Econ-Tech Development Zone) of
China (He’nan) Pilot Free Trade Zone, PRC
Telephone: (86 371) 6789 1199
Fax: (86 371) 6789 1000
Postal Code: 450016

Amendments to the Articles of Association

During the Review Period, the Articles of Association of the Company has been
revised once. The amendments were considered and approved at the Annual
General Meeting held on 30 May 2022. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 28 March 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 14
May 2022 respectively for details.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to
allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits and the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth (the “Dividend Policy”).

In accordance with the “Articles of Association”, the Dividend Policy is as
follows:

() Profit distribution of the Company shall reflect reasonable investment
returns to the investors and, by giving considerations to the reasonable
capital demands of the Company, work out a profit distribution plan in
conformity with the sustainable development requirement and profit
optimisation principle of the Company by referring to factors such as the
size of share capital, development strategies, investment plans, profit
growth and cash flows.

() The Company may pay dividends in the form of cash or shares and may
conduct interim dividend distribution in the form of cash. If the cash flow
allows, profit distribution should be conducted in the form of cash dividend.
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Dividend Policy (continued)

()

The conditions of cash dividend of the Company: when the Company
records a profit for the year and the cumulative undistributed profit for the
year, after making up for losses in previous years and allocation to the
common reserve fund in accordance with laws, is positive in value, and
where the auditing firm issues an unqualified audit opinion on the financial
report of the Company for the year, the Company may prioritise distribution
of dividend in cash. If the Company distributes dividend in cash, it shall
follow the rules below:

1. If the Company is in a mature development stage without significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 80%;

2. If the Company is in a mature development stage with significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 40%;

3. If the Company is in a growth stage with significant capital
expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend in profit
distribution shall be 20%;

If it is difficult to determine the Company’s stage of development while
it has a significant capital expenditure plan, the profit distribution may
be dealt with pursuant to the rules applied in the previous distribution.
Major investment or significant cash expenditure refers to the proposed
external investment by the Company within the next twelve months,
asset acquisition (including land use rights) or facilities procurement with
accumulated expenditure amounting to or exceeding 10% of the latest
audited net assets of the Company.

Specific conditions for share dividend distribution: provided that the
Company’s business is in a sound condition and the reasonable scale
of share capital of the Company is ensured, and when the Board of the
Company believes the share dividend distribution will be in the interests of
all shareholders of the Company, the Company may propose to distribute
the share dividend and implement upon the consideration and approval at
the general meeting.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

V)

(Vi)

(vii

The profits of the Company to be distributed shall not go beyond the scope
of cumulative distributable profits.

When profits are recorded in the current year and after the Company has
sufficiently allocated to the statutory reserve fund, the cumulative profits
distributed in cash for the last three years shall not be less than 30% of
the average distributable profits realised for the last three years.

Where there is a change in the Company’s control resulting from securities
issuance, material asset reorganisation, merger, division or acquisition,
the Company shall disclose in details the cash dividend policy and relevant
arrangements after such offering, issuance, reorganisation or change in
the control, as well as the Board’s explanation of the aforesaid, in the
prospectus, offering proposal, material asset reorganisation report, report
of change of interest or acquisition report.

(VIll) On the premise that the returns to shareholders has been thoroughly

considered and the legitimate rights and interests of the public
shareholders are guaranteed, if the Company realises profits at the current
year, the Board of Directors shall bring forward scientific and reasonable
profit distribution suggestions and proposal and submit them to the
shareholders’ general meeting for voting. The Company shall practically
secure the right of public shareholders to attend the shareholders’
general meeting; and the Board of Directors, independent Directors and
shareholders meeting certain conditions may solicit the right to vote at the
shareholders’ general meeting from shareholders of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (continued)

(IX) Decision-making processes and mechanisms for profit distribution of the
Company:

1.

The Board of Directors of the Company shall devise a reasonable
dividend distribution recommendation and proposal based on the
profitability, capital requirements and shareholders’ returns plan of
the Company and implement after the consideration and approval
at the general meeting upon the consideration and approval by the
Board. Any adjustment thereof shall go through the procedures above
again. The independent Directors of the Company shall examine the
profit distribution proposal and issue independent opinions thereon;
independent Directors may solicit opinions of minority shareholders,
prepare a dividend distribution proposal and submit it directly to the
Board for consideration.

The Company shall strictly implement its cash dividend policy as
determined in the Articles of Association and the specific cash
dividend proposal as considered and approved at the general
meeting. If the Company needs to adjust or change the cash dividend
policy as determined in the Articles of Association, it is required to
satisfy the conditions under the Articles of Association and execute
appropriate decision-making procedures after substantiation. The
adjustment or changes shall be passed by shareholders representing
not less than two-thirds of voting rights held by all shareholders
present at the meeting; the independent Directors shall give
explicit opinion on matters such as the truthfulness, adequacy
and reasonableness of the reasons for adjustments and changes,
truthfulness and validity of the approval procedures as well as its
compliance with the conditions required in the Articles of Association,
and communicate and exchange ideas with minority shareholders
before the general meeting and give timely reply to issues that
concern minority shareholders. Independent Directors may collect
opinions from shareholders through the online voting system, if
necessary.

Specific conditions for the Company to adjust the cash dividend
policy: (1) the Company suffers from losses or has issued a loss
warning announcement; (2) the balance of cash, excluding cash
raised from capital markets and cash within special funding for
special purposes or special account management funding such as
government special financial funds (including bank deposits and
bonds with high liquidity), is not sufficient to pay the cash dividends
within two months from the date of general meeting approving the
profit distribution; (3) execution of the established dividend policy
will render it impossible for the material investment projects and
material transactions approved by the general meeting or the Board
to be implemented according to established transaction plans; (4)
the Board has reasonable grounds to believe that execution of the
established dividend policy will have a material adverse impact on the
continuing operation and profitability of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(X)  Mechanism for supervision and restraint on cash dividend

1.

The Board of Supervisors shall supervise the implementation of the
Company’s dividend distribution policy and shareholders’ returns
plan by the Board and the management, and the decision-making
procedures thereof;

The Board and the general meeting of the Company shall, in the
decision-making and substantiation process in respect of the
profit distribution policy, fully consider the opinions of independent
Directors and minority shareholders. When considering the specific
plan on cash dividend distribution in the general meeting, active
communication and exchange with shareholders, especially minority
shareholders, shall be conducted via different channels, including but
not limited to telephone, facsimile, e-mails, letters and the Internet,
to thoroughly listen to the views and needs of minority shareholders,
and reply to questions concerned by minority shareholders shall also
be made in a timely manner;

If profit is recorded but the Board of the Company does not put
forth a cash dividend distribution proposal, reasons therefor and
the capital retained by the Company that may otherwise be used as
dividends shall be disclosed in its periodic report, and independent
non-executive Directors shall express explicit independent opinions
thereon;

The Company shall fully disclose the formulation and execution
of the cash distribution policy in its periodic reports. The report
shall explain: whether the profit distribution is in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association or with the general meeting
resolution; whether the standard and proportion of profit distribution
is precise and clear; whether the decision-making procedures and
mechanisms are adequate; whether the independent Directors
have fulfilled their responsibilities and played their role; whether
the minority shareholders have the opportunity to fully express their
views and needs; whether the legitimate rights and interests of
minority shareholders are fully protected and so forth. In the event
that adjustment or change of the cash distribution policy is carried
out, full explanation shall also be given as to whether the conditions
and procedures for the adjustment or change are compliant and
transparent.
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Board of Supervisors
Composition of the Board of Supervisors

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors was composed
of six members, three of whom were nominated by the shareholders and three
were nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of
three years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

As at the end of the Review Period, the members of the Board of Supervisors
were Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Cheng Xiangdong, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Zhang Yonglong,
Mr. Zhang Minglin, Mr. Bao Xueliang and Mr. Cui Zonglin.

As at the date of this annual report, the members of the Board of Supervisors
were Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Cheng Xiangdong, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Zhang Minglin,
Mr. Bao Xueliang and Mr. Cui Zonglin.

The list and biographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under
the section “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. Save as disclosed in that section, there is no other material relationship
among members of the Board of Supervisors.

Duties of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and
exercise the following duties and powers in accordance with law:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting
written opinions regarding the same;

e examining the financial affairs of the Company;

e monitoring the performance of duties of Directors and senior management,
and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior management who
have violated laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association
or resolutions of the general meetings;

e demanding for remedy in the event of any damage to the interests of the
Company caused by the Directors or senior management;

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening
and chairing general meetings in the event that the Board fails to perform
its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to the
“Company Law”;
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Board of Supervisors (Continued)

Duties of the Board of Supervisors (Continued)

proposing motions to general meetings;

liaising with the Directors on behalf of the Company or instituting legal
proceedings against the Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 151 of the “Company Law”;

in case of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company
identified, to investigate; and if necessary, to engage professional
institutions such as accounting firms or law firms to assist in its work at
the expense of the Company;

reviewing the financial information, such as financial report, operation
report and profit distribution plan, to be submitted by the Board to the
general meetings; and may, in the name of the Company, appoint a
certified public accountant or a qualified auditor to re-examine such
documents if a suspicious item is identified;

exercising other duties and powers specified in the “Articles of Association”.

During the Review Period, the Board of Supervisors held eight meetings in total.
Details of the meeting of the Board of Supervisors are set out under the section
“Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2022” of this annual report.
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Report of the Board of Directors

EEEHREE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, the Group was engaged in two principal businesses, namely,
coal mining machinery and auto parts.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Review Period, to the knowledge of the Company, the Group
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that had a material impact on
the business of the Group in all material aspects and there were no material
breaches of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavours to achieve long-term sustainable development in the
environment and community where it operates. The Group actively gives back
to society and engages in public welfare activities in addition to striving for good
performance, with an aim to foster credibility and build a good corporate image.
Besides, the Group acts in an environmentally responsible way and strives
to comply with the relevant environmental laws and regulations. In addition,
the Group also adopts effective measures to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources, reduces wastage, and advocates water and electricity conservation.

Business Review

Please refer to the sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis. The sections of Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis form part of this Report of the Board of
Directors.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the financial
position of the Group as at that date are set out in the audited consolidated
financial statements on pages 117 to 275 of this annual report.

A relevant resolution was passed at a meeting of the Board held on 29 March
2023, and the Board proposed the payment of a final dividend (the “Dividend”)
of RMB5.60 (tax inclusive) per 10 shares for the year ended 31 December
2022. Based on the Company’s total share capital of 1,782,245,970 shares as
at 29 March 2023, the total dividend is RMB998,057,743.20.If the proposal
in relation to the profit distribution is approved by the shareholders at the
2022 annual general meeting to be held on 25 May 2023 (the “2022 Annual
General Meeting”),the final Dividend for H Shares of the Company will be
distributed on or before 14 July 2023.
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EEZMAREFE 2 REERAEEEF2022F12
3B I FEREEZI B ®RE -

FEXRBRHEAR

RARNEZEBRRRGRGERERE - EHB L
BB EEFHIBEN M IERKRM 48 - R EEEHIR
ARE BRI A TR A N IE B R

BPEERER

CIEEHIA - ARFIMAM  ARECERERTEEST
BAKREEBEEATENBERERIES - BERE
ERITETEMERIERNER -

BEBERRE

REBEYMNIREBREMERRE LM BRAERO AR
Bt - ARBERBEAERTEENRE - BREEL
g FARSEADAE  WYRFNEBMEETLR -
AN REBUSIREAEN T ATE - BHIETEAH
RIREVERIER © WO AEEGRRB RS EEHE
RRAEBHA  RDRE - BEHHRAKAE -

E 3 E):

FR2REERMEENEEETWMENTES - EER
BEENEEENRENMELNRAESTEREZM

{/\ °
EERERER

AEEEE202F12A31HIEFEMNEEIUARTERR
E AP SR SR A F RO ENTE275 B EEZN
BB IRE -

EEYR2023F3A0BRITE R T ABABRER -
EHIREEET202F12A31B I FERARS(TKRE )
FI0RAREE5.607T (EF) o LB ZE2023F3 A29H 4
DA AN AR E1,782,245,970/8 5T E - AFTEIREEARE
998,057,743.207C ° fim M) 5 AL TEZ 7 2023F5 A25H 4
2022 F ERREFAE ([2026FERRAFTAE])
R ERALE - BIAA R R BB S8 72202347 A 14
B k2 AR

7



/8

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2022

Report of the Board of Directors
ESEREE

Results and Dividends (Continued)

If the total share capital of the Company changes from the date of announcement
of the proposed payment of annual dividend to the Record Date for implementation
of interest distribution, the Company will propose to maintain the same total
amount of distribution and adjust the distribution ratio per share accordingly. For
any subsequent changes to the total share capital, the Company will make further
announcement(s) on the specific adjustments.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (R A R £ F1E
> EFTEFUE) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the tax
rate of the enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident
enterprise deriving from the PRC is 10%. For this purpose, any H Shares
registered under the name of a non-individual enterprise, including the H Shares
registered under the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or
trustees, or other organisations and entities, shall be deemed as shares held
by non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined under the “EIT Law”).
The Company will distribute the final Dividend to those non-resident enterprise
shareholders subject to a deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and
paid by the Company on their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the “EIT Law”) which is legally
incorporated in the PRC or established pursuant to the laws of foreign countries
(regions) but has its effective administrative entity located in the PRC and whose
name appears on the Company’s H Share register of members should deliver
a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished by a
practicing PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm affixed thereon) and
relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited in
due course, if the enterprise does not wish to have the 10% enterprise income
tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of Circular SAT No. [1993]045 ( € 38 72 B £ 25 [1993]0455% X {4
REIE 1 BRATEAFTSBIEE R EREBEL)) (the “Notice”) issued by the
State Taxation Administration on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be distributed
by a domestic non-foreign invested enterprise, which has issued shares in
Hong Kong, to overseas resident individual shareholders is subject to individual
income tax at a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates for respective
overseas resident individual shareholders may vary, depending on the relevant
tax agreements between the countries of their residence and Mainland China.
Accordingly, 10% individual income tax will be withheld from the final Dividend
upon such Dividend payment to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose
names appear on the H Share register of members of the Company on the
record date, unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation regulations, taxation
agreements or the Notice.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the identity of shareholders or any disputes over the
mechanism of withholding.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any dividends.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the A Shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominal
holder holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes
at the rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the competent
tax authorities for the withholding. For investors of the Northbound Trading who
are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend income tax rate of lower
than 10%, those enterprises or individuals may apply to the competent tax
authorities of the Company for the entitlement of the rate under such tax treaty
or may entrust a withholding agent to do so. Upon approval by the competent
tax authorities, the paid tax amount in excess of the tax payable based on the
tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Northbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of A Shares of the Company.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (including enterprises and individuals) investing in the H Shares of
the Company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Southbound
Trading”), the Company has entered into the Agreement on Distribution of
“Cash Dividends of H Shares for the Southbound Trading” ( (% J& i@ HA% A%
IR AT F)REE753% ) ) with China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited, pursuant to which, China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited or its branches, as the nominal investors of H
Shares for the Southbound Trading, will receive cash dividends distributed by
the Company and distribute the cash dividends to relevant investors of H Shares
of the Southbound Trading through its depository and clearing system.
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Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading (continued)

Cash dividends for the investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading will
be paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the “Notice on
the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect” (Cai Shui No. [2014]81) (RAR BB E 5 5 & B
Bl SR A M BUER R @A) (A1 75:[2014]815%) ) and the
“Notice on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect” (Cai Shui No. [2016]127) (B RABIRZET
SR GEBEBEHHAREBBATR BB ROBE) (5[2016]127
85)), for dividends received by domestic individual investors from investing in
H Shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through the Shanghai-Hong
Kong Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the companies
of such H Shares shall withhold individual income tax at the rate of 20% on
behalf of the investors. For dividends received by domestic securities investment
funds from investing in shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as that for individual investors. The
companies of such H Shares will not withhold the income tax of dividends for
domestic enterprise investors and such investors shall report and pay relevant
tax by themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Southbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of H Shares of the Company.

Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering on the
Stock Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2012 and the net proceeds were HK$2,155.55 million after
deducting relevant expenses. During the Review Period, save as described in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the
update on the use of proceeds and the announcement dated 23 May 2017 in
relation to the proposed change to the use of proceeds from H Share offering,
the use of proceeds was in line with the usage disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company.

As of 31 December 2021, all the proceeds raised from H Share offering have
been used up.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 49 to the financial statements, respectively.

ERBREEMNBEIBER @)

BRGBHR R RREENR AT UAREIKE - RI%
(BERBEREMIHR 5 E M BB b A B H AR
RV B ) (B T2[2014]815%) RAAR R ERET SR S
BB T m i SR AT B B N ) (B4 35 [2016]127
S0 EERRE - HAEAREEBBEEBRIRE
BB BB AT ETHEES FBLE AR - HEX A )
RIR20% TR ERINEATEH - HAMBERREES
BEEBRIREBINETBM RN EMREEISHAR
BALNART - LREAREER-H - HRABE A D
EREETRIMBBAFMEHN - BARSKHEES
TTER SR

BRBREEREERLR - BEANIRSE A ERMHE
BN BIHA AR R — 2K ©

EBXAERARERAGRENER

A EHIRR2012912 A5 B AR R L7+ &SRR B 7S
BR%  FTBHIAFEE/52,15555H 8,8 7T ° IEEEH
M BRARREIR2014F3 831 BFIERNAIERIBER R Z
B AER017FA2EENEZREENREEES
B®AERFTIN - RABFSHENERFABEE
HEROEAF -

HZE2021F12A8318 ' HE B EE B2 FHATE -

it tR

BHBENENGA DS R NIRRT



Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the reserves of the Company available for
cash distribution or distribution in specie amounted to approximately
RMB8,773,959,000 (2021: RMB7,148,930,000).

Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2022, details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note
32 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions on pre-emptive rights under the “Articles of Association”
and the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Donations

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made charitable and other
donations of a total amount of RMB1,683,090.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 276 of this annual report.
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2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme

The establishment of The A Share Option Incentive Scheme was approved by
shareholders at The Second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019, The First
A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 and The First H Shareholders Class
Meeting of 2019 held on 21 October 2019. In accordance with the Share
Option Incentive Scheme, the Company would grant a number of options to
the qualified participants to purchase A Shares of the Company. Under the
plan, participants are granted options which only vest if certain performance
standards are met. Participation in the plan is at the board’s discretion and
no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any
guaranteed benefits.

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of the
Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options remain
exercisable for a period of 12 months.

The Company has provided RMB7,116,000 (2021: RMB8,578,000) in respect
of these options as share-based payment expenses in 2022.

The source of the underlying Shares of the Scheme shall be ordinary A Shares
in RMB to be directly issued by the Company to the participants.

2019 B ZEHARE B =T &l

A& 20194510 A 21 B ER1THI2019F 5 Z IR ER R AR R K
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2022 2021
20226F 20214

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option options option options

FHKRE BHKRE

HRERY HAtER
FHTEE HEHE 17 E HAREZRE
As at 1 January W1A1H 5.5851 10,063,400 5.795 16,030,000
Granted during the year RERFEH - - - -
Exercised during the year (Note) RERNTTE 5.1501 (3,600,300) 5.5851 (4,722,300)
Forfeited during the year RERZU 5.1501 (662,500) 5.5851 (1,244,300)
As at 31 December M12A31H 5.1501 5,800,600 5.5851 10,063,400

Vested and exercisable M12H31H

at 31 December EHRE&A T 5.1501 891,000 5.5851 -

Note: The consideration of the share options exercised was already received in December
2022, but the new shares registration procedures were completed in January 2023.
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2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry dates
and exercise prices:

WHEREREERAERAT 20258 33
Report of the Board of Directors
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2019 IR EHARE B B 5 &l ()
PR MR ITEHRE R A L THIE A RITEE

Share options Share options

outstanding at outstanding at

Exercise 31 December 31 December

Grant Date Expiry date price 2022 2021

i i

20224F 20214

12A31H 12H31H

e RATHERY mARTTEEE)

HEAH )= 1TEE IR =R &= AR

04 November 2019 19 December 2022 5.1501 - -
201911 H4H 2022412 H19H

04 November 2019 19 December 2023 5.1501 891,000 4,956,600
201911 H4H 202312 5198

04 November 2019 19 December 2024 5.1501 4,909,600 5,106,800
201911 H4H 2024512 5198

Total 5,800,600 10,063,400

HET
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period 0.66 years 1.49 years

AR A AT TR B AV I8 A 8R T A R F 1A

(i) Fair value of options granted

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2022 was RMB0.49 per share. The fair value at
grant date is independently determined using an adjusted form of the
Black Scholes Model which includes a Monte Carlo simulation model that
takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of
dilution (where material), the share price at grant date and expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield, the risk free
interest rate for the term of the option and the correlations and volatilities
of the peer group companies.
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2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued)

2019 IR EHARE BB S 8l (o)

(i) Fair value of options granted (Continued) (i EREHBENAFEE)
The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31 December REZE2022512 A31 B L FE R H AR A &
2022 included: ABUEBRIE
(@) options are granted for no consideration and vest based on @ HEEDNERERERD - WREAQGEA20(E
Company’s ranking within a peer group of 20 selected companies EF NN EESEANBERR = FHRES
over a three year period. Vested options are exercisable for a period B - EEBEHENRBEMFRBRA T
of two years after vesting
(b) exercise price: RMB5.795 (the exercise price changed to RMB5.1501 b)) 1TEB : ARMES7957T (20222 FFIITEE
per share in 2022) B 5 AREE5.15017T)
(©) ~ grant date: 4 November 2019 € RHHBEE :2019F11 B4H
() expiry date: 19 December 2022, 19 December 2023 and 19 d Z/HIA : 20229128198 ~ 2023412 198 &
December 2024 202412 A19H
(€) share price at grant date: RMB6.05 per share ) MELBEINRE RN ARE6.057T
() expected price volatility of the Company’s shares: M  RERHETEEAERKE
30.38% First phase 29.93% Second phase 40.83% Third phase
% — P& E%30.38% % & E%29.93% % = & EZ40.83%
(@) expected dividend yield: Nil 0 TEHBRBUE &
(h) risk-free interest rate: ) ERRFE
2.8219% Two years 2.9280% Three years 3.0197% Four years
I F2.8219% =1F2.9280% P043.0197%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the
remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.

TEHIEARIR IR T E N E 2 R R (IRIF MR T
FHFE)FH - WRB QA SEREERAER
FBEHARRORIRE AR -



2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a restricted
share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, a total number
of 42,300,000 A shares of the Group issued and granted to the selected 186
employees (including directors) of the Group (the “Participants”).

The Validity Period of the Scheme is no more than 48 months from the date of
the completion of the grant registration of the restricted shares to the date when
all the restricted shares granted to the Participants are unlocked or repurchased
and cancelled.

The Lock-up Period for the restricted shares granted under the Scheme
commenced from the date on which the restricted shares were granted to the
Participants with an interval of 12 months between the Date of Grant and the
unlocking date.

Participants who were granted with the restricted shares were entitled to acquire
the restricted shares on the grant date and sell the restricted shares after the
lock-up period of the relevant restricted shares, subject to the fulfilment of the
relevant conditions under the Scheme.

Upon expiry of the unlocking period, the Company shall proceed with unlocking
for the Participants who satisfy the Unlocking Conditions, and the restricted
shares held by the Participants who do not satisfy the Unlocking Conditions shall
be repurchased and cancelled by the Company.

On 7 June 2021, 42,300,000 A shares were issued at the price of RMB5.88
per A share under the Scheme, and the amount of RMB248,724,000 cash
received from the Participants is recorded as trade and other payables (Note
31). In 2022, upon the unlocking period due, except for some forfeited shares
which were repurchased, the related repurchase liabilities for these unlocked
shares were derecognized. As at 31 December 2022, the remaining balance of
repurchase liability is RMB118,198,000 (2021: RMB248,724,000) recorded in
trade and other payables (set out in note 31 to the financial statement).

In 2022, the Company has provided RMB84,743,000 (2021: RMB79,364,000)
as share-based payment expenses in respect of these restricted shares.
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2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (Continued) 2021 F PR F 14 B ZE R B EH &8l (o)

The arrangements of Unlocking Period under the grant of restricted shares and FZET B TR i1 AR 5 A R BR PR S AR I S i AR AR B
unlocking duration for each reporting period pursuant to the Scheme are set out RERBLHENTRAMR
in the table below:

Unlocking
Arrangement of Unlocking Period Unlocking duration percentage
RN PR EHA R Bk i BRIR & R % B PR 5 Lt 451
First Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 12 months from the Date 40%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of
Grant
B — IR BRRR IR & HA BERTHRIREAZNEER S B REE T HB24E B RM &g —ER
ZBEHA1E
Second Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date 30%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of
Grant
B IRFRR IR E HY BERTHBRUEAZNEER S B RER T HE36ME AR xE —FER
ZBEHA1E
Third Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date 30%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 48 months from the Date of
Grant
B = IRFRR IR E H BT HEBEAZNEER S B RERT HiB48E B Mg —ER
ZBEHA1E

The evaluation period for unlocking the restricted shares under the Scheme ZETEITE TR SR EMRBG IR ENZ X B2021ER
shall be from 2021-2023 and the evaluation shall be conducted annually. 20234F © ERBIRFETT - FERREHNEEERD
The performance evaluation for each Unlocking Period includes performance EATEEERE R REYE R EAERNEZE SN ER
evaluation requirements for the Company and individual performance evaluation WRIRE (& o

requirement for the Participants.

The restricted shares outstanding at the period end listed below: HAR B/ TIESNN PR I M IR 251 R a0 T -
2022 2021
20224 20214
Number of Number of
restricted restricted
Issued price shares Issued price shares
PR 1l 14 PR 6] 14
BATER REHE BATERE RZEE
Opening balance 1 January 1 A1 BEAR &S 4 5.88 42,300,000 5.88 -
Issued during the year NERNIEIT 5.88 - 5.88 42,300,000
Forfeited during the year RERREU 5.88 (848,000) 5.88 -
Unlocked during the year RERNER 5.88 (16,804,000) 5.88 -

Balance 31 December 12 331 B#&& 5.88 24,648,000 5.88 42,300,000




Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 21.34% of the
Group’s total sales, less than 30%, while the sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 6.53% of the Group’s total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 20.99% of the
Group’s total purchases, less than 30%, while the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately 10.05% of the Group’s
total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, except for Henan Machinery Investment
Group Co., Ltd. (which changed its name to “Henan State-owned Capital
Operatmn Group Investment Co., Ltd. (I B A ERNELEBIRE AR

Zx))" on 14 April 2023, and is a substantial shareholder which is interested
in more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company), none of the
Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders who were interested
in more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company has any equity
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

The Group maintains ongoing and steady relationship with each of the
customers and suppliers. The business of the Group does not rely on any
individual customer or supplier which may cause any material impact on the
Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2022, details of movements in property,
plant and equipment during the year are set out in notes 16 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company

In September 2022, the Company repurchased 848,000 Restricted A Shares
from 7 participants under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme at
an average price of RMB5.3156 per A Share, for which a total consideration
of RMB4,507,653.35 has been paid, and completed the repurchase and
cancellation procedures at the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited on 11 October 2022.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Review Period.

Equity-Linked Agreement

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries
neither entered into any agreement in relation to equity-linked products nor
participated in any arrangement to subscribe for equity-linked financial products.

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Report of the Board of Directors

EEEHREE

FRHAEEREF

REZE2022F12831HILFE - AEBRAKEFE(LH
TR E AN E B A ETEL21.34% » DA30% © TANE
EHR ARG HERERAME AN EE A EEE46.53% °

REZE2022F12A31HIEFE  XEBRAHEEE
I EREEAREE (R AN EE AR EEEE£20.99% - D HA30% - M
AEEFAEEREGEEEI A EEREEEY
10.05% ©

BEEMA BUREREEREEBRAREIA
(BER2023F4 148 B R A TEEEENES %@&
BERAR] HAERABRBERDRDEITIRAZ5%H
FERR) 2N MEANES FEZBEASHE
BBARNFDEITRAZ%N EBRERAEEN T
REP RAAHER A T AR -

AEERXEPRMER - BERSZHERTERNE
1% o $E@m¥$1ﬂmﬁEﬁﬂ%%ﬁ&M@ﬁ A
BHASEBEEATE

W% BERRE

BHZE2022F12A31BIEFE - W% - BMEREENRFR
KB IG R B SRR T 5E16 o

BE - HEIFEEELFTRS

202269 F - AR BRI 2021 IR HiI M4 B Z 8 Eh a2l
(07 % B ED T 5 [B] BE 848,000 AR AR PR HI AR 22 - B2+t
REBEZE A ARA4507653.357C ' MBETFHERAS
HﬁAHﬁJ\Eﬁ% 31567C B 2142022410 A1 BE R BB 5

CEEAREA AR LD AR EBEEFE -

B EXFTIERSN - REIEER - AR BSREEAMEBR
AMERE  HEXBEAREEM LHES -

IR R 9 175 R

REZE2022F12831HIEFE - AR ﬂ&WE INSIE 83

FEMMREEMER R - DESHREHNIENE
THEREE Tk o

8/



88

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2022

Report of the Board of Directors
ESEREE

Material Related Party Transactions

For details of the related party transactions under relevant accounting
standards, please refer to note 41 of this report. The Company confirms that the
related-party transactions were not categorised as the “connected transactions”
or the “continuing connected transactions” as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules (as the case may be), and were in compliance with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Connected Transaction - Entering Into the Capital
Increase Agreement

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 September 2022,
on 9 September 2022, Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electric
Control Co., Ltd. (EFM B R E L E R A R) (“Electric Control
Company”) entered into the capital increase agreement with the Company,
the business partners and investors of the Group, the core shareholder of
Electric Control Company and the Strategic Investors (the “Capital Increase
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, the business
partners and investors of the Group, the core shareholder of Electric Control
Company and the Strategic Investors will contribute a total of RMB871.65
million to Electric Control Company.

The amount of the capital increase under the Capital Increase Agreement was
jointly negotiated by the relevant parties of the capital increase based on the
appraisal value of all shareholders’ equity interest of Electric Control Company as
at 30 April 2022 of RMB5,477 million on normal commercial terms and under
the principles of willingness, fairness and impartiality, taking into account the
impact of profit distribution.

Prior to the entering into and implementation of the Capital Increase Agreement,
the Company held 100% equity interest in Electric Control Company, and
Electric Control Company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
After the Completion of the capital increase, the Company holds 85.02% equity
interest in Electric Control Company, and Electric Control Company is a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The entering into of the Capital
Increase Agreement and the transactions thereunder constitute a deemed
disposal under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

As Henan Assets Enterprise Transformation and Development Fund (Limited
Partnership) (IFAEEC¥BHERES (BRE%)) ("Henan
Transformation and Development Fund”) and Henan Hongsong Equity
Investment Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) (7] @3 3AMA R #2452 & L
SABE (GRA%)) (‘Henan Hongsong’) are funds under de facto
control of Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. (A B EEIE AR A7), a
Shareholder of the Company, and Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Ja] g
BETIEAMR/AR]) s a person acting in concert with Hongyi Investment
Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership) (3o & &2 (A
) AR (ARA%)), a substantial Shareholder of the Company,
Henan Transformation and Development Fund and Henan Hongsong constitute
connected persons of the Company, and the entering into of the capital increase
agreement and the transactions thereunder constitute connected transactions

EXEBRS
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fE) RIFAER LTRAUE T HARNRERTE °

BEXRS I L IBE W=

FUNARR R BB A2022F9 AR 2 AEFTH - R20226F
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of the Company. The capital contributions from Henan Transformation and
Development Fund and Henan Hongsong were RMB100 million and RMB150
million, respectively. Upon completion of the capital increase, Electric Control
Company was held as to 1.61% and 2.42% by Henan Transformation and
Development Fund and Henan Hongsong, respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios of the capital increase
agreement and the transactions thereunder is more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
they are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Directors and Supervisors

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the
Supervisors were as follows:

Directors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors were:

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Vice Chairman and Executive Director)
Mr. Jia Hao (Executive Director and Employee Director)
Mr. Fu Zugang (Executive Director)

Mr. Wang Xinying (Executive Director)

Mr. Cui Kai (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Fei Guangsheng (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ji Feng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Ms. Guo Wenging (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director)

Supervisors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors were:

From 1 January 2022 to 18 January 2023:

Mr. Liu Qiang (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Mr. Cheng Xiangdong

Mr. Wang Yue

Mr. Zhang Yonglong

Mr. Zhang Minglin

Mr. Bao Xueliang

Mr. Cui Zonglin
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From 19 January 2023 to the date of this report:

Mr. Liu Qiang (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Mr. Cheng Xiangdong

Mr. Wang Yue

Mr. Zhang Minglin

Mr. Bao Xueliang

Mr. Cui Zonglin

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or Supervisors entered into or
proposed to enter into any service agreement with any member of the Group,
other than agreements expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (excluding statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 36 to 50 of this annual report.

Insurance for Directors

The Company has taken out valid insurance for the Directors.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Contracts

No contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange) in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to its business
and in which a Director or a Supervisor was materially interested in any way,
directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in “Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” of this report, at no time during the Review Period were there
rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or any such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the “Securities and Futures
Ordinance” (the “SF0”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
under the Listing Rules, which are stated as follows:

Director/

Supervisor/ Gapacity/ Class of
Name Chief executive Nature of interest  shares

EE B/ 5/
A BRTHAS BEtE R &R
Jiao Chengyao Director Beneficial owner A Share
EHE = EREAA AR
Xiang Jiayu® Director Beneficial owner A Share
EEGIY = EREAA AR
Jia Haot Director Beneficial owner A Share
B S ERBEEA AR
Fu Zugang®@ Director Beneficial owner A Share
18R S ERBEEA AR
Wang Xinying Director Beneficial owner A Share
THa = EREAA Al
Liu Qiang Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share
205 EE ERBEEA AR
Zhang Minglin Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share

Rk £ ERfAA A%

B EENKR
R EENREG S RER

R = THABRAR TR
KRR

BEEA > R202F12A318 - AQRIEES  BEF
RARRNBHEEITHABRAR B sk AT (EH A (E
ERBEBFHFLAEGOID((BHRBERLD DMK
9~ ARG REF TS EAIREGEH RS KRG
EXVEBET R 85 EBAANE AN A) KB A2 T AR 2 M4
B (RREEREGES LS KRB B M E 7

HAR BB ERIAR) - IIRB(EH LB &)
SEOBMRZAH ARZ IR PIPT ALy B e M i s FOR R (B8

BARIECRE 75 S G 15D Y B BR (ST 15 & 1E AR (E
BREmMOAR) - IUREB ETRARZETHAENS
AR MBS FORBINT

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
the relevant the total  Long position/
Number of class number  Short position/
shares of capital % of shares %  Lending pool
EERRA
HRlw  ERAEEN  FR KRS
BABE  BNESH%  ENESH%  THELHREG
4,426,964 0.288 0.249  Long position
8
2,921,420 0.190 0.164  Long position
8
1,973,300 0.129 0111 Long position
8
3,543,620 0.231 0.199  Long position
8
1,425,040 0.093 0.080  Long position
e
11,500 0.001 0.001  Long position
e
75,000 0.005 0.004  Long position
e
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Interests in Underlying Shares ARG ER
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Number of share  the relevant class the total number
Name of Directors Nature of interest Class of shares options held of capital % of shares %
THERARAEN R B EEH
EEMR ERME R &5 FisREHERA BHAEDHEY% BABE D%
Jia Hao Beneficial owner A Share 469,000 0.031 0.026
B EmEB A AR
Fu Zugang Beneficial owner A Share 402,000 0.026 0.023
gl EmEA A AR
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the directors, B R EESN 202212 310 - AQT&E

the supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in the SFO of Hong Kong) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed to have); or were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies under
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Structure and Number of Shareholders

Details of the shareholders recorded in the register of members of the Company
as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

% BENARFRBTRABRER AR B SR E
BB (EE R BEGEFIEERMD) R - Ak
EERT - R EARIEGES KB IEH)DFEXVERE
TRE8D BAME N A E MR R ERSORR (B
BERREANRDIORR) - IRB(GEH RIS K
BI)E BB AL IEDI Pl ) & S M e s SR A
FRBEEH R ET RN LT ARERETEFIHN
RAEST AZE RIS AR B MBE X PR Esa SRR

BRREBRBRRAR

R2022%12 A318 © AR RIRER A MRS RS
R

Shareholders of A Shares ARS A% 58 43,016
Shareholders of H Shares HAS RS 3R 56
Total number of shareholders Pt 43,072
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the

Company

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2022, the following
shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register of members

kept by the Company:

Name

i

Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd.

MEEAEERBRAR

Hong Yi Investment Management (Henan)

Partnership (Limited Partnership)
ARREEROTE) B L%
(BRER)

State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Henan
Provincial People’s Government®

MHEARBNEEAELEEER

TP

Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.@
aje

MEEREERESEEREED

UBS Group AG.®

CGapacity/
Nature of interest

afh/ BENE

Interest of beneficial
owner and party
acting in concert

ERBEAR—H
TBATHER

Beneficial owner

EGEA

Beneficial owner

=

=8

BEA

Bk

Beneficial owner
EaEBA

Interest in a controlled
corporation
REEFENER

Class of shares

gl

A Share

AR

A Share

i

A Share

AR

A Share

i

H Share

HiiX

FERRRAQTFFRS - HERA
ZHERNKRE

BEEA - PR2022F12/8318 - THIRR(ES - &
EREEITIRABRRIN AR B W AT A% (0 K AR B %
M BEARB(GES RAEEHIDEXVEE2 M35 878
MBARRNERIORR + FIRBGEHF RPEIEG)NE
336IFBRARR B EFHNECMOERSIAE

Number of
shares

ROBE

346,404,576

277,195,419

243,815,581

243,815,581

20,063,061

Approximate
percentage of
the relevant
class

of shares %
ERRERA
kel
BATAL%

22.56

18.05

15.88

15.88

8.25

Approximate
percentage of
the total
number

of shares %

RO ARG
BABE D%

19.48

15.58

13.1

13.1

113

Long position/
Short position/
Lending pool

#e/ %E/
AL H R

Long position

Long position

e

Long position

Long position
e

Long position

e




Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly holds 69,209,157 A Shares of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 317(1)(a) of the SFO, Henan Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. is deemed a party acting in concert with Hong Yi Investment Management
(Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership). Hence, Henan Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. is deemed to own the same batch of 277,195,419 A Shares of the Company
directly held by Hong Yi Investment Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited
Partnership). Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. directly owns and is deemed to
own an aggregate of 346,404,576 A Shares of the Company.

(2)  Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. directly holds 243,815,581 A Shares
of the Company. Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Henan Provincial People’s Government. Pursuant to the SFO, the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government is deemed to own the same batch of 243,815,581 A Shares of the
Company directly held by Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.

Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. involves in the refinancing business. As
at 31 December 2022, 76,800 A shares held by it were outstanding, if fully repaid,
the number of A Shares actually held by it will be 243,892,381.

0On 14 April 2023, Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. changed its name
to “Henan State-owned Capital Operation Group Investment Co., Ltd. (7] F B 75 &
NELEEREBRAR)

(3)  UBS Group AG holds a total of 20,063,051 (long position) H Shares of the Company.
3,146,600 (long position) H Shares are held by non-listed derivative instrument
through cash settlement. As disclosed in the notice of interest submitted by UBS
Group AG (with the relevant event dated 28 December 2022), UBS Group AG holds
the following H Shares:

Name of Name of

controlled Corporation controlling person % control
SEGEE AR BEALTERE ZEHESE
UBS AG UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd ~ UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS 0’Connor LLC UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Switzerland AG UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Asset Management Switzerland AG UBS Group AG 100.00
UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd UBS Group AG 100.00
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Material Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transaction” of this Annual
Report on page 88, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into
any material contracts with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
other than the Group.

Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
a total contribution of RMB148.51 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income.

Corporate Governance Code

During the Review Period, the Company complied with the applicable Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the financial year and as of the date of this annual report, the Company
had in force indemnity provisions as permitted under relevant regulations for
the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the Company or
its associated companies. Such permitted indemnity provisions are set out in
the Liability Insurance maintained by the Company for its Directors and chief
executives, in respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against such Directors.

Subsequent Events

The Board held a meeting on 21 December 2022 and passed a resolution,
pursuant to which it agreed to handle the matters in relation to the exercise by
292 eligible participants during the second exercise period in accordance with
the relevant requirements of the 2019 A Share Option Incentive Scheme of the
Company, involving 4,491,300 exercisable shares.

0On 29 December 2022, the Company received capital contributions of
RMB18,541,905.03 from 286 participants, involving 3,600,300 exercised
shares.
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On 5 January 2023, the Company completed the registration procedures
for the additional 3,600,300 A Shares underlying the exercise for such 286
participants. The number of issued A Shares of the Company was changed
from 1,535,411,470 shares to 1,539,011,770 shares; and the total number
of issued shares of the Company was changed from 1,778,645,670 shares to
1,782,245,970 shares.

Closure of the Register of Members

The 2022 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Thursday, 25
May 2023. In order to determine the H Shareholders’ entitiement to attend the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 22 May 2023 to Thursday, 25 May 2023 (both days inclusive),
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the H Shareholders
of the Company who wish to attend the 2022 Annual General Meeting but
are not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 May 2023.

If the resolution in relation to declaration of dividends is approved at the 2022
Annual General Meeting, the H Share dividends will be paid to H Shareholders
whose names appear on the Company’s H Share register of members after
the close of trading on Wednesday, 14 June 2023. The Company’s register of
members will be closed from Friday, 9 June 2023 to Wednesday, 14 June 2023
(both days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For
the H Shareholders of the Company who wish to receive the final Dividend but
are not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 8 June 2023.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and the audited annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 with
the management and the external auditor.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
29 March 2023
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2022FEEEETERE

In 2022 (the Reporting Period), in accordance with the “Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China” (the “Company Law”), “Securities Law of the
People’s Republic of China” (the “Securities Law”) and other relevant laws and
regulations as well as the requirements of “Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited’s Articles of Association” (the “Articles of Association”),
Rules of Procedure of the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited’s Board of Supervisors earnestly safeguarded the interests of
the Company and all shareholders as a whole and strictly and legally performed
the relevant duties of the Board of Supervisors. During the Reporting Period,
the Board of Supervisors supervised the Company’s production and operation,
financial position and the performance of duties by the Directors and senior
management of the Company mainly through convening meetings, attending
meetings, face-to-face communication and reviewing materials, so as to ensure
the Company’s standardised operation and safeguard the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole. The work of the Board of Supervisors in
2022 is set out below:

I. Basic Evaluation on Operation Behavior of the
Board of Directors and the Management and the
Performance Achieved in 2022

Through its supervision over the Directors and senior management of
the Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board of
the Company was able to strictly comply with the requirements of the
“Company Law”, the “Articles of Association” and other relevant laws,
regulations and systems, and operated in accordance with the laws. All
major operation decisions of the Company were rational and the decision-
making process was lawful and valid. The Company has established
and enhanced its internal management system and internal control
mechanism. The Directors and senior management of the Company
conscientiously executed their respective duties in accordance with the
national laws, regulations, the “Articles of Association”, and the resolutions
of the general meetings and the Board meetings. None of the Directors or
senior management of the Company were found to have violated any laws,
regulations or the Articles of Association in discharging their duties for the
Company or engaged in any acts which contravened the interests of the
Company or its shareholders.
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0225 EESEETERE
Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in Z0RFEEEET/EER
2022
During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors of the Company WEHA - RRESERB(ATRNE) (RAER)
convened a total of 8 meetings in accordance with the relevant RMEERTE  LEHSNEELTE - FaBiB3n
requirements of the “Company Law” and the “Articles of Association”, THER o sFBERAT ¢
at which 31 resolutions were considered and approved. Details are as
follows:
Meetings of the Board of Supervisors Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting
EEeeREHER ERERBE
The Ninth Meeting of the Fifth Session of the 1. “The Proposal on the 2021 Report of the Board of Supervisors of the Company”
Board of Supervisors Held on 28 March 1 (ERARRIFEEESTIERENZER)
2022
20223 A28HBMAEREESS 2. “The Proposal on the 2021 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial Report of
ENREE the Company”
2> (FARRRRCAFELENOIRAING BEIREHZER)
3. “The Proposal on the 2021 Annual Report and Summary thereof of the Company”
3 (FARRRROIFFERERBENRR)
4. “The Proposal on the 2021 Verification Report on the Deposit and Actual Use of
Proceeds of the Company”
4 (BEARRBRANFEEEESFREAERABANZER)
5. “The Proposal on the 2021 Special Report on the Occupation of Non-operating
Funds and Other Connected Fund Movements of the Company”
5 (ERDFRINFEFRLLEEESHAREMEARE AT RERLN
EEY)
6. “The Proposal on the 2021 Assessment Report on Internal Control of the
Company”
6 (AR RRI2021FEAFIEHIFHERE RS

“The Proposal on the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report”

7 (BAR<?0FERE - H @ REARE>NHR)

“The Proposal on the 2021 Profit Distribution Plan”

(B0 FE B ORI RNZER)

“The Proposal on Confirming the Provision Amount of 2019-2021 Super Profit
Incentive Payment”

+ (BERHERR2019-2021 FB MM B) B2 FHR S AU E)
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2022 EEEE TERE

Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in Z0R2FEEEETEBR@)

2022 (Continued)

Meetings of the Board of Supervisors Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting
ETSgRTBRER BRERBE

10.
10~

11.

1

12.

16.
16 »

17.
17~

18.

“The Proposal on Provision for Goodwill Impairment Loss”
(EARFHEE EREEENRER)

“The Proposal on the Appointment of External Audit Institution and Internal Control
Audit Institution for 2022”

- CRARERB2022F R HMNAP AT B - MEMIEHIFR B ZER)

“The Proposal on the Daily Connected Transactions of the Company in 2021 and
the Expected Daily Connected Transactions of the Company in 2022”

(AR RABR1FE A ERBRZ 5T R202FEE AEBEHI S5

SLHIGREE)

“The Proposal on Provision of Guarantees for Controlling Subsidiaries and Mutual
Guarantees between Controlling Subsidiaries”

(AR BIER T RARERERRERF AR HERRHERIER)

“The Proposal on Provision of Repurchase Guarantee for Customers in Financial
Leasing Business”

(ARBEHEXKTRTPEIEBRENZSR)

The Proposal on the Use of Idle Funds to Invest in Financial Wealth Management
Products”

(ARERHEESRESREMERNRR)

“The Proposal on Commencement of the Hedging Business”
(AR FRERREEBHRE)

“The Proposal on Changes in Accounting Policies of the Company”
CRAR AR BERE B EER)

“The Proposal on the Dividend Distribution Plan for Shareholders for the Next
Three Years (2022-2024)”

(B R R = £ (20224 — 20244 ) IR D 4L BRI EINE R )

“The Proposal on the Change of Registered Capital, Registered Address, Business
Scope and Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company”

(EAREERRFMER « it - KEBE - BIT<RAERE>H

EEY



Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

2022 (Continued)

Meetings of the Board of Supervisors
EEeeREHER

The Tenth Meeting of the Fifth Session of
the Board of Supervisors held on 26 April
2022

202F4R268 ERENEESE
Et+RgE

The Eleventh Meeting of the Fifth Session of
the Board of Supervisors Held on 15 June
2022

2026 H15HEMENEESE
FT+—IRgH

The Twelfth Meeting of the Fifth Session of
the Board of Supervisors Held on 19 July
2022

2022F7TAVEBRFELEESES
o /-

The Thirteenth Meeting of the Fifth Session
of the Board of Supervisors Held on 30
August 2022

20229830 EHENEESE
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2022FEEEETERE

T 2RFEEFEETEER @)

Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting
ERERBE

1.
1.

“The Proposal on the 2022 First Quarterly Report of the Company”
(BN RAR02FE—FEMENZER)

“The Proposal on Purchase of Liability Insurance for the Company and its
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”

ABERRRRIRES  EF  SRAEEBAEBEETRRAOER)

“The Proposal on Adjustment of the Repurchase Price under the 2021 Restricted
Share Incentive Scheme”

+ (BER TR 2021 (R 1 AR B At B B B (E R AR SR )

“The Proposal on the Repurchase and Cancellation of Certain Restricted Shares
Granted But Not Yet Unlocked under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme”

(AR B IH2021 F R I AR AR 81800 B TE M R AEIRIRE

IR B AR R AR Z)

“The Proposal on the Fulfilment of Conditions for Unlocking the First Unlocking
Period under the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”

+ CBER 20214 (R I M AR A B AT 815 — IR R IRIR & HAARRR IR & IR IF AL

SEEY)

“The Proposal on the Proposed Joint Acquisition of 43.33% Equity Interest
in Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd. through Public Delisting and Related Party
Transaction”

- (R EEAREE A A WERSLYCH# A R A 743.33% % &

BRI HER)

“The Proposal on the 2022 Interim Report of the Company”

+ (R R ER02FEFERENZER)
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Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in

Z0RFEEEETHEERE®

2022 (Continued)
Meetings of the Board of Supervisors Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting
EEEeRdlER BRERBE
The Fourteenth Meeting of the Fifth Session 1. “The Proposal on the Increase in Registered Capital of a Wholly-owned Subsidiary
of the Board of Supervisors Held on 6 of the Company and Related Party Transaction”
September 2022 1 (BRAFIZETRRIENFMEAEEH I ZNEER)
02FIR6EBEREMEESS
F+MREE
The Fifteenth Meeting of the Fifth Session 1. “The Proposal on the 2022 Third Quarterly Report of the Company”
of the Board of Supervisors Held on 26 1 (AR ARRINEE=FERENZE)
October 2022
202510268 BRELEESE
FtRrEH

The Sixteenth Meeting of the Fifth Session
of the Board of Supervisors Held on 21
December 2022

02F 12N EHENEESE

A RISV,
R AN

“The Proposal on Adjustment of the Exercise Price of the 2019 Share Option
Incentive Scheme of the Company”

+ (BARBEAF019F BRI AR BTTRERNRSR)

“The Proposal on Adjustment of the List of Participants and the Number of
Options and Cancelling Certain Options under the 2019 Share Option Incentive
Scheme of the Company”

+ CEARABRR019F R R AE AR R 2 E MRS EN T

SHED D HAERRRS)

“The Proposal on the Fulfilment of Exercise Conditions for the Second Exercise
Period of the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme of the Company”

+ (BN AB2019F BRI BB T 8158 — AT TREHITT R IR AU BL O 2

=)

Over the past year, the Board of Supervisors of the Company performed
its duties conscientiously in accordance with the law, strengthened
the supervision of the performance of the Board and the management,
supervised and inspected the production and operation of the Company
and the decision-making of major issues in accordance with the law, and
strived to promote the standardisation and improvement of the Company’s
system, and fulfilled its duties and responsibilities for the development of
the Company.

—FX RAREFEREIRERR  MEYES
T KEERBMNEE  REAEEREARLEER
LIERMBEBAFHREEN » NMEARAHIENRE
M7TE  RARNBEERERESR
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3. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2022

1.

Legal Operation of the Company

In 2022, the Supervisors of the Company were present as nonvoting
delegates at or attended the Company’s Board meetings and
general meetings according to law, with rigorous supervision carried
out over the Company’s decision-making procedures as well as
the performance of duties of the Company’s Directors and senior
management. The Board of Supervisors considers that the Board
of the Company has complied with the laws and regulations such
as the “Company Law” and the “Securities Law”, as well as the
requirements of the “Articles of Association” and the “Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Directors”, with regulated operations as
well as lawful and valid decision-making procedures. The Company
has established and improved its internal control system, under which
the Directors and senior management of the Company discharged
their duties conscientiously with no acts found in violation of laws,
regulations and the “Articles of Association” or prejudice to the
Company’s interests.

Inspection of Financial Status of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the financial position of the
Company for 2022 and is of the view that the Company has a sound
financial system, a standardised financial operation and a good
financial position. The financial report of the Company truly reflects
the financial position and operating results of the Company for 2022,
which is conducive to the shareholders’ correct understanding of
the financial position and operating conditions of the Company. The
2022 Annual Report prepared by the Board of the Company reflects
the Company’s position in a truthful, accurate and complete manner,
without any false record, misleading statement or material omissions.
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3. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2022 (Continued)

3.

Inspection of the Company’s Share Incentives

In 2022, the Board of Supervisors inspected the implementation
of the Company’s share incentive in accordance with the laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Company adjusted the repurchase
price of the 2021 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (hereinafter
referred to as the “Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”), repurchased
and cancelled the restricted shares granted to some participants but
not yet unlocked. The conditions for unlocking the first unlocking
period under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme have been
fulfilled. The Company handled the first unlocking and trading
matters of the restricted shares for 184 eligible participants. Upon
verification, the Board of Supervisors considers that the above
adjustments and unlocking of the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme
are in compliance with the provisions of the Administrative Measures
on Share Incentives of Listed Companies (hereinafter referred to
as the “Administrative Measures”), and the above adjustments and
unlocking do not prejudice the interests of the Company and all
Shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the exercise conditions for the second
exercise period under the 2019 Share Option Incentive Scheme of
the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Share Option Incentive
Scheme”) have been fulfilled. The Board of Supervisors reviewed
the exercise price, the list of participants and the adjustment of the
number of share options under the Share Option Incentive Scheme,
and the fulfilment of the exercise conditions for the second exercise
period, and considered that the above adjustments and exercise
matters were in compliance with the relevant provisions of the
“Administrative Measures”; The performance appraisal indicators for
the second exercise period of the Share Option Incentive Scheme and
the individual performance appraisal results of the participants are
in compliance with the exercise conditions for the second exercise
period under the Share Option Incentive Scheme, and 292 eligible
participants have been approved to exercise the share options.

Inspection of the Utilization of Proceeds

The proceeds raised from H shares of the Company have been fully
used in 2021, and there was no use of proceeds during the year.
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3. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2022 (Continued)

5.

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by the Company

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the Company’s joint transfer of
43.33% equity interest in Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd. and related
transactions, and considered that the Company and other intended
transferees jointly formed a partnership enterprise to participate
in the public delisting and transfer of 43.33% equity interest in
Luoyang LYC Bearing Co., Ltd., which is in line with the Company’s
strategic needs. This transfer is for all investors to form a partnership
enterprise to participate in the application for transfer. The form
of capital contribution is cash. The investors of the partnership
enterprise determined the capital contribution amount of each party
according to the proportion to be transferred. The price of joint
investment between the Company and related parties is fair and
follows the principles of openness, fairness and impartiality, and
there is no behavior that damages the interests of the Company and
small and medium shareholders, which is in line with the overall
interests of the Company.

Connected Transactions of the Company

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the daily connected transactions
of the Company in 2022, and considered that the daily connected
transactions of the Company in 2022 took place in strict compliance
with the provisions of the “Articles of Association” of the Company,
were strictly carried out in accordance with the regulations of the
connected transaction regulations, and the transactions were fair
and reasonable. Such connected transactions were conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with the statutory approval process performed
and no act prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the increase in registered capital
and related party transactions of the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and considered that the capital increase and related party
transactions of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical
Control Co., Ltd. (referred to as “Electronic Control Company”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, were fair and reasonable
and followed the principles of openness, fairness and impartiality.
It would not affect the Company’s control over Electronic Control
Company, the combined statement scope of the Company, and would
not adversely affect the existing assets and ongoing operation ability
of the Company, and would not damage the interests of the Company
and its all shareholders.
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3. Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2022 (Continued)

7. Internal Control-of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2022 self-assessment
report on the Company’s internal control prepared by the Board as
well as the establishment and operation of the Company’s internal
control system, and considers that the Company has established a
robust internal control system that enables effective execution. The
self-assessment report on the Company’s internal control reflects
the establishment and operation of such system in the Company in a
truthful and objective manner.

8.  Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the Review
of the 2022 Annual Report of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the Company’s 2022
Annual Report and the summary thereof, and considers that the
preparation and review procedures of the 2022 Annual Report of
the Company complied with relevant laws and regulations and the
“Articles of Association”, as well as the requirements under the
internal control system of the Company; that the content and format
thereof are in line with the relevant requirements of China Securities
Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai Stock Exchange; and
that the information contained therein gives a true, accurate and
complete view of the actual situation of the Company in various
aspects and does not give rise to any detriment to the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. No staff engaged in the preparation,
review or information disclosure of the 2022 Annual Report of the
Company was found to have violated the confidentiality requirement
during the course of his/her work.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2022

IV. Work Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2023

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors of the Company will continue to strictly
comply with the requirements of the “Company Law”, the “Securities Law”,
the “Articles of Association” and the relevant regulations and policies of
the country, perform its duties faithfully, and further facilitate regulated
operations of the Company.

(M

Comply with Laws and Regulations and Discharge
Duties Conscientiously

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the relevant
requirements of the “Company Law”, the “Securities Law”, and the
“Articles of Association”, supervise the Board and the management
in performing the obligation in accordance with law, and facilitate
the Company to further improve corporate governance structure and
improve its level of governance.

Strengthen Supervision and Inspection to Avert
Operational Risks

Firstly, the Board of Supervisors will focus on financial supervision,
and monitor and inspect the financial position of the Company in
line with the law. Secondly, the Board of Supervisors will maintain
communication and liaison with the internal auditors and external
accounting firms, so as to make full use of internal and external audit
information to keep abreast of relevant situations. Thirdly, the Board
of Supervisors will pay particular attention to high risk areas of the
Company and carry out inspections on critical aspects such as major
investments, connected transactions, external guarantees, financial
endorsement and fund utilization.

Bolster Professional Capabilities through Greater
Self-improvement

Members of the Board of Supervisors will constantly broaden their
professional knowledge and improve their professional capabilities
by receiving more training in banking, finance, law, auditing and
securities, so as to enhance the supervisory role, actively explore
innovative ways of supervision, and better perform the supervisory
function of the Board of Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors of
Zhengzhou Goal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

29 March 2023
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To the Shareholders of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 117 to 275, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables

e |mpairment assessment of goodwill
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRREIEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables
EEE 5 ENRIENEIERE

Refer to note 2, 3, 4 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
were RMB6,531 million for which a loss allowance of RMB570 million was
provided.

Management assesses the loss allowance for trade receivables on a
periodical basis. Loss allowances for trade receivables are calculated based
on management’s estimates of the lifetime expected credit losses, which is
determined by taking into account: a) the customers’ repayment history, aging
profile of their overdue balances, their current financial positions and other
relevant circumstances; and b) forecasts of future economic conditions.

We identified the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the expected credit loss is subject to high degree of
estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the expected credit loss
is considered significant due to the complexity of the models, subjectivity of
significant assumptions used, and the significant judgements and estimates
involved in the process.

BRRETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ET A EERERENSE

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment when determining the loss
allowance for trade receivables:

We obtained an understanding of, evaluated and
tested management’s key controls which management
adopted for the determination of loss allowance for trade
receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

We assessed the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used
by management to form such judgements and estimates,
including:

i) Evaluated the customer’s repayment history by
checking the settlement evidence of the trade
receivables to cash receipt and testing the aging
profile of trade receivables to sales invoices and other
relevant documents, on a sample basis;

i)~ On customers having a higher risk of default:

e Understood management’s process in
identifying customers having a higher risk of
default;

e (Obtained and reviewed those customers’
background information and their current
financial position provided by management;

e Reviewed transactions with those customers
and their respective collection patterns in the
past, and discussed with management to
understand the circumstances applicable to
relevant customers; and

i) Evaluated whether the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information by making
reference to market data.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
the loss allowance for trade receivables in the context of
the applicable financial reporting framework.

We also considered whether the judgements made in
selecting the models, significant assumptions and data
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the risk
assessment of determination of loss allowance for trade
receivables remained appropriate and we found the judgement
and estimates adopted by management in determining the
determination of loss allowance for trade receivables are
supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
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Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued)
EEESERRENSERRE(E)

BB HREME2 - 3 4%29 °

2022F 124310 EEEMNE SEKFENEEEAAREE531H
B JIBREEEEARESIOEET

BIREE A E 2R EGORN B REE - ZBREREEERERY
ERBRETE  MZERBERBRNEEBUTRARRETE © &
FrYEF AR - BRI ARE M B 2 A SIOR R B AR RIS
Keb) 5 R HASEAR N TR ©

HRERMERRA I FERSN T EEN - BEMEETESHE
WHIRR IR R T E AR ETEIH - MINMREINERN - TRE
ABRHO LB AT BEST S RNEAA MG - HAIR SRR
ERBKEENESRRZEARN -

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Independent Auditor’s Report
R G

BREFTEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill
BB RERE

Refer to note 2, 4 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s goodwill amounted to RMB132 million,
against which a provision of RMB277 million was made to certain cash
generating units (“CGUs”).

Goodwill was being allocated to CGUs for the goodwill impairment assessment.
Management has engaged an external valuer to assist with the annual
impairment assessment. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were
determined based on the value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections,
which involved using key assumptions such as revenue growth rate, gross profit
rate, and pre-tax discount rate.

We focused on this area due to (a) the magnitude of the carrying amount
of goodwill; and (b) the estimation of recoverable amount is subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill is considered significant due to the complexity of the
models, subjectivity of significant assumptions used, and significant judgements
involved in the goodwill impairment assessment process.

BRRETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESTNARERRETEE

We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s impairment assessments of goodwill:

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of goodwill
impairment and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment
of the goodwill to assess the effectiveness of the
management’s estimation process.

We evaluated and tested the key controls over the
impairment of goodwill.

We obtained and reviewed the valuation reports issued
by the external valuers, and evaluated its independence,
competence and objectivity.

We evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation
models and management’s key assumptions used, with
the involvement of our internal valuation experts and
performed the following procedures:

i) Compared the revenue growth rate and gross
profit rate with the Group’s historical results and
the Group’s approved business plan, taking into
consideration market trends;

i) Assessed the pre-tax discount rates used by
benchmarking the discount rates against external
market data;

iii)  Evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis around
the key assumptions used, to ascertain the extent
to which adverse changes would result in goodwill
being impaired.

We tested the accuracy of the calculations applied in
the valuation models for the calculation of impairment
provisions.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related
to goodwill impairment in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.

We also considered whether the judgements made in
selecting the models, significant assumptions and data
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
risk assessment of goodwill impairment remained appropriate
and management’s judgement in the impairment assessments is
supported by available evidence.
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Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2022 (the “annual
report”) other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. We have obtained some of the other information including
chairman’s statement prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The remaining
other information, including Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Report
of the Board of Directors and Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2022 and
the other sections to be included in the annual report, is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
S0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the annual
report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A B R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lee Chung Bor.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBEaRkHEMEZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, 2022412 A31 B 1L €

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T AREETTT
(Restated,
Note 2.1)
(&E7
FifEE2.1)
Revenue WA 5 32,043,306 29,293,527
Cost of sales SHE A 11 (25,644,599) (23,221,695)
Gross profit ER 6,398,707 6,071,832
Other income E g A 7 476,430 385,249
Other losses, net HibE B F5E 8 (120,034) (3,575)
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HR X 11 (831,593) (828,126)
Administrative expenses THAX 1Al (1,072,973) (1,284,318)
Research and development expenses e 11 (1,385,962) (1,271,736)
Restructuring costs FHRA 11 - (210,841)
Net impairment losses on financial and cREEREERE
contract assets B8 F R (137,284) (16,533)
Share of profit of associates it A=YNG vl 21 23,147 39,416
Share of profit of joint ventures JE(LEEBEET 22 5,050 5,639
Finance costs BEE R 9 (265,410) (263,691)
Profit before income tax 8Bt AEF 3,090,078 2,623,316
Income tax expense FriSHifs 10 (462,073) (553,448)
Profit for the year FREF 2,628,005 2,069,868
Profit for the year attributable to: AR AL FEREF
Owners of the Company ZIN/NET ) 2,538,235 1,947,785
Non-controlling interests AR R 89,770 122,083

2,628,005 2,069,868
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REBREREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T ARETIT
(Restated,
Note 2.1)
(ED) -
FizE2.1)
Other comprehensive income: Hib2 Mk ¢
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to T~ 2R E 14 E 27 748
profit or loss: FEmAIEE -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit EFFrERKENET
obligations 46,477 70,562
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair JA X (EEHE A @& AHME
value through other comprehensive income HEENEREEATES 247,305 2,758
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: — AJEE R H B R BpyEE -
Exchange differences arising on translation WMEELAWENY =5 9,528 24,524
Cash flow hedging e REHF 14,723 (12,555)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, R EM 2 E S (EE)
net of income tax HBRATISHL 318,033 85,289
Total comprehensive income for the year E£R2HEUKZEAEE 2,946,038 2,155,157
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATELHFAZmIKRELATE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NGL 35S 2,856,268 2,033,074
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR FE RS 89,770 122,083
2,946,038 2,155,157
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARESD) 15 145.38 112.42
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#HHE(ARES) 15 144.55 111.90




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR ER

As at 31 December 2022 722022412 531 H

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

As at 31 December

M2A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR%T T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEKRE 16 5,434,083 4,843,738
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 1,835,441 1,668,455
Investment properties (8- /ES 18 336,004 377,593
Goodwill e 19 131,905 412,850
Intangible assets EEE 20 927,015 1,176,924
Investments in associates REZ R AR E 21 186,840 171,961
Investments in joint ventures REETENKRE 22 92,028 86,978
Financial assets at fair value through other AATESTE BB A M
comprehensive income FHREHNESHEE 23 796,876 143,752
Deferred income tax assets FEFSTHEE 24 313,657 383,830
Finance lease receivables & TH & e EOE 25 49,994 23,149
Long-term receivables RHEEW B 26 166,468 116,849
Assets classified as held for sale PIEARBELENEE = 1,685
10,270,311 9,407,764
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion AR EEWRIE - RENE ) 25 50,963 42,122
Long-term receivables, current portion RHIEWEE - REEH 26 88,032 30,324
Inventories FE 28 7,909,823 6,242,407
Trade and other receivables B 5 hEAmEKGIA 29 9,118,627 7,374,073
Transferred trade receivables DEENE 5 EkE 34 269,411 687,473
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFTE B EEE
profit or loss FTABGNSREE 23 5,228,176 3,236,286
Financial assets at fair value through other AT ETEREE ST AEME
comprehensive income R ENEREE 23 4,494,325 4,111,050
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIA 23 4,890 15,372
Tax recoverable A Y e A 19,153 43,667
Bank deposits RITIER 30 3,402,435 2,944,102
Cash and cash equivalents BeRASEEY 30 3,613,443 3,195,674
34,199,278 27,922,550
Total assets WEE 44,469,589 37,330,314
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

As at 31 December

M12831H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Borrowings 3= 32 4,312,744 4,630,658
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 1,250,741 1,142,850
Deferred income tax liabilities FEFTSHaE 24 179,464 246,853
Contract liabilities ARAE 27 21,510 26,528
Provisions B 33 19,628 62,157
Employee benefit obligations EERFEMR 35 222,324 303,261
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBEE 239,157 188,657
6,245,568 6,600,964
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M ENIE 31 11,480,609 9,978,408
Contract liabilities ARAME 27 3,748,349 2,272,366
Income tax liabilities SR a’E 115,214 132,287
Borrowings =% 32 3,237,226 1,167,952
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 146,261 103,221
Provisions B 33 571,275 687,344
Liabilities associated with transferred trade HEEENE S EREE
receivables BHEMAE 34 269,411 687,473
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 23 17,395 49,322
19,585,740 15,078,373
Total liabilities ey =R 25,831,308 21,679,337
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2022 72022412 A31H

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bf=E AR¥T ARETTT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES B & E

Share capital N 36 1,782,245 1,779,493
Share premium B8 174 (B 4,538,675 4,426,102
Reserves (G 11,486,347 8,589,896
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PN S g 17,807,267 14,795,491
Non-controlling interests FEIEASRE RS 39 831,014 855,486
Total equity R 18,638,281 15,650,977
Total equity and liabilities EENEEATE 44,469,589 37,330,314

The consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to 275 were IR E11TR275 B MR A M IS H RN 2023FE3 A29H
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on CEESHERFETE - WA TIATREESE
29 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Jiao Chengyao Jia Hao
ERE =9
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EBE EBE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

Attributable to owners of the Company
ADRRRER

Statutory ~ Currency  Cash flow Non-
Share  Treasury Revaluation  surplus translation  hedging Other  Retained controlling
premium share  reserve  reserve  rGSVe  ESENVeS  reserves  eamings Total interests

tERE KM ReRE HER

RiEE EERE EfER 0 RE EXRE HARE BeBE REEN &% &

RMBOOO  RWBOOD  AMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBO0O RUBOOO  RMB00
/ T ARETT ARETR ‘

A3t Decomber 2021 ndat - AERAIIBR

1 January 2022 WEIA1E 1779493 4426102  (48720) 396 1198347  (121,206)  (14723) 161371 7576965 14795491 855,486 15,650,977
Proft or the year ERET = = = = - - - - 2538235 25382% 89710 2,628,005
Other comprehensive income for —~ EREM 2 EIE
the year - - - W38 - 958 1473 - - 8033 - 38033
Tota compreensiee meome for - ERA AU EE
the year - - - 1378 - 958 1473 - 2538235 2856268 89710 2,046,038
Share options iz 3600 R - - - - - (10259 - 56 13 25,629
Resticted share incentie scheme TRl TR SEpt 21 FisEap)

(Note 38) (648 80302 13052 - - - - 90 57 20617 13 210830
Disosel o asubsidy (e 49~ & — BB AFI(Bisks) - - - - - - - - - - (15669 (152669
Disposalof ted equity securtes (& A ES - - - - - - - - %666 35,666 - 3,666
Transacton with non-controlling ~ FEAAARIER R 5 (3830
interests (Nofe 39) - - - - - - - 64982 - 054942 216708 871,650
Employee stock ownershp planof — —FEHEATNE TR 2
asubsiiary - - - - - - - 2147 - 2147 484 3
Diidend (o 14 Baan) - - - - - - - - T0%0) (Ta0BD) (17888 (%30)

At 31 December 2022 RAERANA 1782245 4538675  (118198) 331,708 1198347  (111,736) - 008895 931733 17807267 831,014 18638261
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN
Staoy ~ Currency ~ Cashflow Non-
Share S Treasury  Revaluaon — supls  tranlation  hedging Other ~ Retained controling Total
captal  premium shae  /ESEVe  UBSENE  fESENe  ESEVES  Iesenes  eamings Totd  interests equity
fiA EERS g% RenE FaR

Rt BB BERRD EREE B OENEE UMRE  EGER  REEN & En ERgR
RMBOOO  RMBOOD ~ RWBOO0  RWB00  RMBODO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RWBOO0  RWBOO0  RMBODO  RMBIODD  RWB'0QD
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETT ARETL ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARETR

(Note ) (Nolel)  (Noec)  (Noteg)

(Kizka) (o) (k) (Wibo)
AT January 2021 RE1A1A 17471 4199421 - (%39 10850 (145790) (168 115208 6176532 1306379 970036 14033831
Proftfor the year FRg
Otrercompreiensigincome.——— ERE AT

(lsg) for the year - - - - - - - - 1947785 1778 122083 2,069,868
Towcompehersieneome A2 ERE(FE) 2%

(lse) for the year - - - 133 - U (1255 - - B - 8529
Transfer (Note &) () - - - - AT - - - (17482 - - -
Share options i 472 21,614 - - - - - 8578 - U - 914
Resticed share ncentie Bl RER Bl (H%)

scheme (lote 38) Q300 6067 (248724) - - - - 79364 - T8007 - 78,007
Retum of cotrbuion o LREAREENTA ()

State-omned investors (Note ¢ - - - - - - - (%,000) - (%000 - (5,000
Disposal of associates (lote 21)  HEBS R (1) - - - - - - - 37 - BT - BT
Transacton with non-cortroling — JERIRER R B (Hike)

interests (ot ¢) - - - - - - - 6% - %% (1786 (120864
Dividends (Notg 14) ke (Hizt) - - - - - - - - (T2 (3T25%) (8781 (31312
At 31 December 2021 RORIERANE 109493 4426002 (48724 396 1198347 (121266 (14723 161371 7576965 1479491 855486 15,600,977
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the Articles of Association
of the Company and all subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Company and
these subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity
holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous years’
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the
Company and these subsidiaries.

The cash flow hedging reserve presents the cumulative effective portion of gains
and losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into
for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gains and losses arising on changes in
fair value of the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated under
the cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the
hedged item affects the profit or loss, or is included as an adjustment to the non-
financial hedged item.

The other reserves as at 1 January 2021 mainly represent the contribution from
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan
Provincial People’s Government (“Henan SASAC”), the former ultimate controlling
party of the Company, and was recognised as contribution from the ultimate
controlling party of the Company before 1 January 2021. On 18 January 2021,
Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd., the entity under Henan SASAC and
one of investors of the Company, issued a notification to the Company to withdraw
the capital contribution made before, and the Company repaid RMB95,000,000 to
Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd in January 2021.

The reserves available for distribution to shareholders by the Group as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 was RMB8,773,959,000 and RMB7,148,930,000,
respectively.

In 2021, the non-controlling investor divested its interests in Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group,
which resulted in the decrease of non-controlling interests by RMB173,898,000.
In 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) Co.,
Ltd (“ASIMCO Shuanghuan”) acquired 20% shares of ASM ALLOY MATERIALS
(YIZHENG) CO.,LTD, which resulted in the decrease of non-controlling interests by
RMB3,948,000.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & %2022412 A31 H ILF[E

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3ALEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TR
Profit before tax R 8 B o A 3,090,078 2,623,316
Adjustments for: P
Finance costs A& PR 265,410 263,691
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RIT1FR - REAEUEIE N
receivables and finance lease receivables BA MR E EWRIBR T EUA (161,326) (130,724)
Share of profit of associates Nl (23,147) (39,416)
Share of profit of joint ventures BlEEEERR (5,050) (5,639)
Net gains on disposal of property, HEME - BEMRERSFFEE
plant and equipment (4,800) (11,598)
Gain on disposal of associates HE B & R AR - (56,596)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE KB A RWE (195,494) -
Gain on disposal of loans receivable from SR E R F R
associates and a joint venture AETEEFTHKE = (22,550)
Dividend from financial assets at fair value through A A (EEHE B & B)ET A
other comprehensive income HivzEWENSmEEMSIRE - (3,719)
Dividend from financial assets at fair value through LA AF(EEHE B BB ABRM
profit and loss SREEMBRE - (240)
Net fair value loss/(gain) of derivative financial TSR T AN EEIE (W) F5E
instruments 73,221 (5,069)
Net fair value gains on financial assets at WA EEBEEEHT ABENSH
fair value through profit or loss BAEMNRA T EWREFE (94,989) (109,557)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENMRETE 582,889 671,359
Depreciation of investment properties LEMERE 18,815 11,682
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 190,402 239,999
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 152,526 155,729
Net impairment losses on financial and CRIRAREERERIE
contract assets FEE 137,284 16,533
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME - BB MEERE 1,491 1,732
Impairment of goodwill BEREE 276,651 78,935
Impairment of intangible assets mILEERE 99,116 83,739
Share options (Note 37) A R4 (PT7E37) 7,116 8,578
Restricted share incentive scheme (Note 38) PR I 1 A% 22 8 Bt 21 (B 7E38) 84,743 79,364
Employee stock option plan of a subsidiary —EM B A F1R) B TG & 3,231 -
Accrual of inventory provision et ERE 44,879 24,775
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXRESHHTE (37,760) 31,086
Operating cash flows before movements in BBEBECEHHAINZSERTRE
working capital 4,505,286 3,905,410
Increase in inventories ZEEN (1,892,131) (1,727,594)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N E b eI R IEEE N (2,085,517) (316,786)
Increase in notes receivable FEUERARIL AN (502,908) (305,952)
(Increase)/decrease in long-term receivables and REEBIERRBEREE
finance lease receivables el IE (g n),E (143,013) 257,166
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N H M FEA FRIBIE AN 1,575,698 533,681
Increase in contract liabilities EREEEM 1,471,530 663,138
Cash generated from operations RS IRFTISIR S 2,928,945 3,009,063
Income tax paid [=ERIEST (499,749) (624,094)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM KETHMEBESTE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,429,196 2,384,969
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETE
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term SRITFEE - EHEWZTEN AR E
receivables and finance lease receivables JEUM R IE R F) B 161,326 130,724
Government grants related to assets received LB E YA BT B 91,487 43,658
Dividends from financial assets at fair value through A A F{EEHE B # 85t A 2 EIEEH
other comprehensive income TRIEEMRE - 3,719
Dividends from financial assets at fair value through LA A F(EsHE A & 8)Et AlBaEH
profit and loss SRMEEMBKE = 240
Dividends from associates NI [E0] A 5,989 -
Proceeds on disposal of associates HERZ R R ATS A 17,153 131,654
Proceeds on disposal of a subsidiary, HE R B ARMTERIEA -
net of cash disposed MBRELERS 274,613 -
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value HEUAFEF=2EHEESH A AEM
through other comprehensive income ZEWENESREEEMERIE 64,960 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BEUNFENE BEE T AIBED
other comprehensive income TRIEE (389,323) -
Proceeds on disposal of derivative HESTHE SR T BFSHIE
financial instruments 14,723 (12,555)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEYE - BELREFTSE
plant and equipment 56,703 27,323
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BE&E (1,300,700) (1,032,547)
Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE (112,152) (91,992)
Payments for other financial assets, TRNEMESREE - SBETER L
structured deposits and certificate of deposits T (8,006,832) (3,234,990)
Proceeds from other financial assets and Hiv e R EE REBETFRAMEREIA
structured deposits 6,109,931 2,853,566
Repayment of loans receivable from associates and ~ FEUREE S A A N — A SR EE R
a joint venture B3 = 29,050
Repayment of contributions to non-controlling interests {5 i % 3E# AR #ERS B H & = (120,864)
Payments for capital contribution to an associate S HBE N RNEE = (1,000)
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity FHREEIEAE =8 A L8
over three months and restricted cash RITERRZREIRE (2,736,826) (2,569,828)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity REUREHIE = @ AL ERYERITIF K
over three months 2,569,828 1,789,743
Payment of pledged bank deposits SREEBRITER (665,609) (374,274
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R HEIRITIFH 374,274 973,546
Net settlement amount of derivative PTESRMT AR EEE R
financial instruments (73,221) 5,069
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBFTARS TR (3,543,676) (1,449,758)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

Year ended 31 December

BZ12ANBLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AlESEE
Proceeds from new borrowings HFIEEE A 4,920,439 2,399,132
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T{ERE RS0 18,513 26,336
(Repayment of)/proceeds from restricted share Rl IE Bt 2 ((B8) B aE

incentive scheme (Note 38) (Ff¥3E38) (4,508) 247 367
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (3,142,964) (945,000)
Interests paid 2RFLE (221,602) (228,708)
Contribution from non-controlling interests JEEpRRE S B 871,650 -
Repayment of redemption liabilities EEERARE = (1,425,868)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders BENARRRERE (774,080) (372,525)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests EfIEERERRE (541) (58,787)
Repayment of contributions to EEHEA &é%ﬁ’] &

State-owned investors - (95,000)
Lease payments HEFIA (191,312) (153,498)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) BEFBE ()

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Note 44) REFHE(HE44) 1,475,595 (606,551)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BE& RIS EE YL INFEE 361,115 328,660
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES HERESEHEER VERSFHHTE

ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 56,654 (111,713)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY M A1BNBEERBESZEY 3,195,674 2,978,727
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12AEN RS RESSEY

AT 31 DECEMBER (Note 30) (PF¥EE30) 3,613,443 3,195,674
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1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the PRC after a reorganisation of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd., a state owned enterprise in the
PRC. On 28 October 2015, 32.14% of the Company’s total issued share
capital held by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government (“Henan SASAC”)
were transferred to Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Henan SASAC. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, upon completion of the share transfer, the parent of
the Company was Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. and its
ultimate controlling party was Henan SASAC of the PRC Government.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 00564) on 5 December 2012.

On 9 March 2017, the Company issued 93,220,338 ordinary shares
to ASIMCO (China) Limited. On 22 March 2017, the Company issued
18,129,032 ordinary shares to Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited — the first phase of ESOP, Bridge Trust Co., Ltd., Jinxiu
Zhonghe (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd. — Jinxiu Tianyou No. 106
Private Investment Fund, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningbo
— HANG TANG WEALTH, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningbo
— No. 2 Wealth Management Plan of Tianhong Dashu Dingzengbao and
Anhui Railway Development Funds Co., Ltd. After the issuance, Henan
Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. held 30.08% of the Company’s total
issued share capital.

On 26 February 2021, Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.
transferred 277,195,419 A shares of the Company to Hong Yi Investment
Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Hong Yi
Investment”). After the transfer, Henan Machinery Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. holds 243,892,381 shares of the Company (representing 14.08%
of the total share capital of the Company), and Hong Yi Investment holds
277,195,419 shares of the Company, representing 16% of the total
share capital of the Company. While Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“Henan Asset”), the party acting in concert with Hong Yi Investment, holds
69,209,157 shares of the Company, representing 3.99% of the total share
capital of the Company. Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset held 19.99%
of shares of the Company in aggregate. According to the “Acting-in-Concert
Agreement” entered into by Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset and
the governance structure of Hong Yi Investment, Hong Yi Investment and
Henan Asset have become the controlling shareholders of the Company,
and the Company has no de facto controller.

—RE#

BN EIRHEME B RO AR AR ([ARAR )RR E
ARZEFIE ([ B ) B 1 2 801 T ik 55 [
BREALFEMR - BIEFREQFER20085F12
A28 AfEFR B ARABERR AR 520156108
28H - BB ARBNBEEEEEEETELZE S
(MTMEBRER DFENARA R BITIRABEEN
3214%EETINEEBREEZNEENE QR
WEBREEFARET AR - ARRIEERAE
TERDEERRSER % - ANARIE QB A I
WESEBERETAR - EHEIEHIH 2+ BB
ETRIEEREZ -

201098 A3H + A2 8] 52X 140,000,000 A% A% 7E
LEBETGHERARBEY W (RMDRSE
601717.5S) « R A BIN2012F12 ASBEFBH A
R AR AEN([BAAT]) EiR T (RO
00564) °

201783 A98 + AREAEHEHFB)REFR
A A)E£1793,220,338% @A - 20173 H228 -
ANA R RSP IR AR R B R AR A A — 18
BI#FK:TE BmETEARETAR - BFP
MELF) BEARERHR AR — IBERE10657 5.5
WEES - RolEe —=RIRT-EXRHE - X5h
ES -FRRIT - RAESABEWB2REEE
B E R HE R EREASROBR AR T
18,129,032/% LB A% - MFTAREE1T1& + A iR 5
HEREREARETARFAEARRIBEITIRALR
#8/930.08% °

2021623268 - A EEMERREEBBRE
ERRIABBEEETECIE) AR CE(ERA
) ([BARIEE ) EE AR F]277,195,419 R AR A%
7o Bk TERREFERESEERETR
A)FE A AN 7)243,892,381 PR 17 (G A A BB RE A
#914.08% ) AR E B AR QA R)277,195,419% %
5 AGARREBIRARR16% - mBELRIEEN—8TT
FATHEEERERARITHEEDEEAR
7]69,209,157 X AX1D + 15 AR BI4ARX A H93.99% + Jik
PR AN EEAF A AR ARG HI19.99% °
BIEA IR ERTBEESZZN—BITEHRE)
AR SARIR B HRIRAETE « BIRIEETNmEEMK
BARNREEREER - AR R EEREIEFIA ©



EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a
restricted share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”) to grant and issue
a total number of 42,300,000 A shares. After the completion of the
grant registration of the restricted shares under the Scheme, the total
share capital of the Company increased from 1,732,471,370 Shares to
1,774,771,370 Shares. As a result, the aggregate shareholding of Hong Yi
Investment and Henan Asset Management Limited has been changed from
19.99% 10 19.52%.

On 18 December 2021, the first vesting period of the share options
granted under the 2019 Option Incentive Scheme was due, and 301
participants with number of 4,722,300 shares were eligible for option
exercise in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Option Incentive
Scheme (Note 37). After the completion of the exercise of share options,
the total share capital of the Company increased from 1,774,771,370
shares to 1,779,493,670 shares. As a result, the aggregate shareholding
of Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset Management Limited has been
changed from 19.52% t0 19.47%.

On 11 October 2022, due to the reasons, such as resignation, job transfer
or position change of incentive employees under the Scheme (Note 38),
the Company repurchased and cancelled 848,000 restricted A shares
granted to certain employees.

On 18 December 2022, the second vesting period of the share options
granted under the 2019 Option Incentive Scheme was due, and 292
participants with number of 4,491,300 shares were eligible for option
exercise in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Option Incentive
Scheme (Note 37). As at 31 December 2022, the total outstanding shares
of the Company were 1,778,645,670 shares and additional 3,600,300
shares were exercised under the 2019 Option Inventive Scheme but the
shares registration were not completed (Note 37).

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in manufacturing of coal mining machinery
and auto parts.

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

1

—RER &)

MR2021F6 A48 - AREBRREFREHEMN—IAR
B M E AT B (325 E1]) - AT REITE
$£42,300,0000% AR A% (7 © 5% 5T BI1E TR fll 1 AR 22
BTERTKE - NARIMBARZAEH1,732,471,3708%
[ 18 21,774,771,370 A8 0 o Hitt - BARIRE K
R EEERARATIMARREIRLLHIHR19.99%% A
19.52% ©

R2021512 5188 + R IE2019F EiME B AT 2% 1
RO SE AR S — S B AR R B - mARMR ERME S 5T
SIMMBRBIE A ERITEEREN 2 HE F301
H 4,722,300 B 10 (FITEES7) © SERCTTIR AR ZR
HARET - AR RIBIRAN 1,774,771, 370/ R (n 1B &=
1,779,493, 670A% A% 10 o EItL + AR E M EEE
EIEBRABIMAENRER19.52%8E 519.47% ©

R2022F10 4118 - AR ZETEIFMEBEMET - &
NUABKBSEE  ARFREIHEETETE
5 #9848,000% R I 14 AR% ©

2022412 188 - 1R IE20194F HAkE B =1 2135
R SE AR S — SR B AR R AR - mARMR ERME A 5T
SN E ERITE BN 2 A F292
& 5 14,491,300 A& 15 (B FE37) © 10202212 A
STH - RARIBEITEINY RN 42 20 R1,778,645,670
AR - T AESN3,600,3000% A% 12 1R 152019 4F B4 gk
Epet BID T - BRI G B D (H7E37) o

AATEMB BRI B BEEIE A HE
MR D EER ] — 5 o A A 2 7 (5
Tl AR E ) SRR T E TR BEAA
T
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The consolidated financial statements are for the Group consisting
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

@i

(ii)

CGompliance with IFRSs

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 (“HKCO”).

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4 below.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) — measured at fair value, and

e defined benefit pension plans — plan assets measured at
fair value.

2 FESHHRHE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 MREIE )

(i) AEERN2022FERAMFETER ~ BETA

(iii) New standards, amendments and annual improvements

adopted by the Group in 2022

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2022:

e Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use — Amendments to IAS 16

e QOnerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract —
Amendments to IAS 37

e Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to
IFRS 3

e (Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
— Amendment to IFRS 16 (March 2021), and

e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020.

The standards, amendments and annual improvements listed
above are either currently not relevant to the Group or had no
material impact on the Group’s financial statements for the
current and prior financial years except for the Amendment to
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.

The adoption of the Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment has been applied retrospectively and comparative
figures have been reclassified accordingly. It leads to the
reclassification of RMB135,483,000 from "research and
development expenses” into “cost of sales" in the reporting
period and of RMB166,224,000 from "research and
development expenses” into "cost of sales" in 2021 annual
financial report disclosed.

REFEBGE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii) New standards, amendments and annual improvements

(iv)

adopted by the Group in 2022 (Continued)

The amendment to IAS 16 prohibits an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds received from selling items produced while the
entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. The proceeds
from selling such samples and the costs relating to items
produced are now recognised in profit or loss. This amendment
also clarifies that an entity is 'testing whether the asset is
functioning properly' when it assesses the technical and
physical performance of the asset. The financial performance
of the asset is not relevant to this assessment. Entities must
disclose separately the amount of proceeds and cost relating to
items produced that are not an output of the entity's ordinary
activities.

Impact of new standard and amendments issued but not
yet adopted by the Group

Certain new accounting standard and amendments have
been published but are not mandatory for 31 December 2022
reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These new standards and amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements when they become effective.

2

FESHHERE )

21 IREEE @)

(i) ZAEEA2022F AR FETER - BRI

(iv)

REEREGE)

B ERIE 16 ISR AR L BB —
R - BB MRERAF R ZER
KEREZIRE BT RE RGN EFRIZ
hETAEERE NEMLEMERE - HE
ZERMPTSRIA N S E TR B AR R
AENBEHEPER - ZEFTANEFER
FERT A B 2 RO BT e s 1 e s R 7E [ OB
AEELTLHET] BEEMNMBRIR
IR ER - BRABBRERILIF
HERRAEESPELMNERBRENAE
RIASRERRA

SR AB 2N 52 B 18 SRER AR 93 BT 22 B 2 48
RN

REE W EIRRRME T B HMER2022
£12 A31 B R4S BRI i R 08 Il A BT AT
SEHERIRISETAR o ZEMTER RIEET
AL TER TS HARNEBMELRE N
WMRELTEBATE -



EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

@

)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost.

e B ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

©

@

Joint arrangements

Under IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of l0sses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in
“Impairment of non-financial assets” below.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

AR (48)
BHRARERETRE(E)
HEEERE

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 228w
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

(e)  Changes in ownership interests (e

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEHREBEw®)
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FESEHEK @)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred
e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial
liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts classified as equity is not re-measured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or 10ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM”). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as executive directors of the Company.

Foreign currency translation

@

)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the historical financial information of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency is
RMB as its key activities and transactions are denominated in
RMB. The Group’s presentation currency is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis
within “other gains/losses, net”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(©

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position

e income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
()  Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified into profit or
loss, as part of “other gains/losses, net”.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

The above items of property, plant and equipment except for
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 2.711%-3.17%
Plant and machinery 9.00%-18.00%
Motor vehicles 18.00%-19.00%

Other equipment 18.00%-33.33%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment arising from business acquisition is
depreciated over the remaining useful life.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, and are recognised in “other gains/losses, net”
in the profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis, taking
into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Land use right 2%
Buildings 3.17%-4.75%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

@

)

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the aggregate purchase consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes at the operating segments.

Trademarks, patents and customer relationship

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks, patents and customer relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

() Development cost

Costs associated with project development are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique
products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible
assets when the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the technology so that
it will be available for use

management intends to complete the technology and use
or sell it

there is an ability to use or sell the technology

it can be demonstrated how the technology will generate
probable future economic benefits

adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
technology are available, and

the expenditure attributable to the technology during its
development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
technology include employee costs and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as development
costs in intangible assets and would be transferred to completed
development projects or patents, and amortised from the point
at which the asset is ready for use over its estimated use life.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 TEEETBUR ()
Intangible assets (Continued) BREE(E)
(d)  Research and development @ HE

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do
not meet the criteria in () above are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

(e)  Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following period:

Trademark 10 years
Software 4-5 years
Development costs 4 years
Patent right 5-10 years
Customer relationship 10 years

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets
such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-
down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell.
A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or l0ss not
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group)
are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held
for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the statement of financial position. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from other liabilities in the statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been
disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of
business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are
presented separately in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, development costs not yet ready for use and intangible
assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets

@

)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
(“OCI"). For investments in debt instruments, this will depend
on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FvOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flow from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in “other
gains/losses, net” together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the profit or loss.

e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through QOCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in “other gains/losses, net”. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in “other gains/
losses, net” and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

©

@

Measurement (Continuea)
Debt instruments (Continued)

e  FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within “other
gains/losses, net” in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at FVPL
are recognised in “other gains/losses, net” in profit or loss
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, FVOCI and FVPL. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

The Group has certain types of financial assets that are subject
to IFRS 9’s ECL model. Please refer to Note 3 for details.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either:

e hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a
firm commitment (fair value hedges), or

e hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of
recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the economic
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items,
including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging
instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of
hedged items. The Group documents its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated in hedge
relationships are disclosed in Note 23. The full fair value of a hedging
derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is
classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity
of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are
classified as a current asset or liability.
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e B ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)
TR (@)
FTETAREHEE(E)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 228w
Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

(@)  Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting @) FTEHFEEEENE L TEE W

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss within “other gains/losses, net”.

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions,
the Group designates only the intrinsic value of the options as
the hedging instrument. The Group classified foreign currency
options and commodity option as held-for-trading derivatives
and accounted for them at FVPL.

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change
in intrinsic value of the options are recognised in the cash flow
hedge reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of
the options that relate to the hedged item (‘aligned time value’)
are recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity.

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast
transactions, the Group generally designates only the change in
fair value of the forward contract related to the spot component
as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating to the
effective portion of the change in the spot component of the
forward contracts are recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve
within equity. The change in the forward element of the contract
that relates to the hedged item (‘aligned forward element’) is
recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity. In some cases, the Group may designate the full change
in fair value of the forward contract (including forward points)
as the hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains or losses
relating to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the
entire forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedge
reserve within equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

@

()

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting (Continued)

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or l0ss, as follows:

e \Where the hedged item subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset (such as inventory),
both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the
deferred time value of the option contracts or deferred
forward points, if any, are included within the initial cost of
the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised
in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for
example through cost of sales).

e The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the
interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in profit or loss within finance cost at the same
time as the interest expense on the hedged borrowings.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred
costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs, resulting in the recognition
of a non-financial asset such as inventory. When the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in
equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in profit or loss and are included in
“other gains/losses, net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement within a year and therefore are all
classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 29 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Note 3 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back or a
share-based payment plan, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the owners of the Company as
treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where
such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs
and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable
to the owners of the Company.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is
not due 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade payables and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Gurrent and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the income tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the
statement of financial position in the areas where the Company,
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b)  Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of the statement of financial position and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)  Deferred income tax (Continued)

©

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
joint ventures and associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
income tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the joint ventures and associates’ undistributed
profits is not recognised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits provided in various forms of consideration in
exchange for service rendered by employees or compensations for
the termination of employment relationship.

(@  Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits include employee wages or
salaries, bonus, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare,
premiums or contributions on medical insurance, work injury
insurance and maternity insurance, housing funds, short-
term paid absences, labour union running costs and employee
education costs, etc. The short-term employee benefit liabilities
are recognised in the accounting period in which the service is
rendered by the employees, with a corresponding charge to the
profit or loss for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.
Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes, including both
defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group’s legal or constructive obligation for the plan is limited to
the contributions.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 TESEBUR @)

Employee benefits (Continued) EERR(E)

(b)  Pension obligations (Continued) b)) ROELEEE)
Defined benefit plans TEREfE TR &)
A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined FERERAFEIR —IEEREHIR R EET
contribution plan. EIE
Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension TEFEEFIFT 8 — R T AR BN RIRER
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually BrRheEMNesE  EHeEARRT
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service —IEZERAERME - FIANFER - REF

and compensation.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the profit or loss in employee benefit expense, except where
included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the profit or
l0ss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

©

@

€

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide other post-retirement benefits
to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period.
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment using the same accounting methodology
as used for defined benefit pension plans. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

®

)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the statement of financial position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments — expense recognition and grant date

Share-based payment expenses should be recognised over
the period during which the employees provide the relevant
services. This period may commence prior to the grant date. In
this situation, the entity estimates the grant date fair value of the
equity instruments for the purposes of recognising the services
received during the period between service commencement
date and grant date. Once the grant date has been established,
the entity revises the earlier estimate so that the amounts
recognised for services received is ultimately based on the grant
date fair value of the equity instruments.

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via
the A share Option Incentive Scheme (the “Employee Option Plan”),
the executive short-term incentive scheme and share appreciation.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in Notes 37 and 38.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Employee Option Plan is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions (eg the entity’s
share price)

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (eg profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (eg the
requirement for employees to save or hold shares for a specific
period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Restricted share incentive scheme

Under the restricted share incentive scheme, shares are issued by
the Company to the selected employees on the grant date.

The total amount to be expensed which is determined by reference
to the fair value of the granted restricted shares as of the grant date
less the proceeds received from the grant, is amortised to profit or
loss over the relevant service period being the vesting period of the
shares, and recorded under other reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company. The proceeds received from the grant are
treated as capital contribution wholly belonging to the participants.
The proceeds received from the grant are firstly recorded under
treasury shares and other payables until each unlocking date when
the relevant vesting conditions are satisfied.

The number of shares expected to vest is estimated based on the
non-market vesting conditions. The estimates are revised at the end
of each reporting period and adjustments are recognised in profit or
loss and other reserves.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

The Group recognises provisions in respect of the estimated liability
to repair or replace for assurance type — warranty. This provision is
calculated based on historical experience of the level of repairs and
replacements.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

If an entity has an onerous contract (the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it), the present obligation under the
contract is recognised as a provision.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Provision (Continued)

A restructuring provision is recognised only when the general
recognition criteria for provision are met. The obligation for a
restructuring is often constructive. A constructive restructuring
obligation arises only when there is: (a) a detailed formal plan
identifying the main features of the restructuring; and (b) a valid
expectation in those affected that the entity will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its
main features to those affected.

A restructuring plan does not create a present obligation at the
statement of financial position date if it is announced after that date,
even if it is announced before the financial statements are approved.
A sale or termination of a business might fall under the definition of
a restructuring. No obligation arises in respect of restructuring costs
associated with the sale of an operation until the entity is committed
to the sale (that is, there is a binding sale agreement).

Restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures
arising from the restructuring, which are necessarily entailed
by the restructuring and not those associated with the entity’s
ongoing activities. Any expected gains on the sale of assets are not
considered in measuring a restructuring provision.

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from the sale of coal mining machinery, spare parts, auto
parts and rendering of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Sales are presented, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group also assesses its role as an agent or principal for each
transaction and in an agency arrangement the amounts collected
on behalf of the principal are excluded from revenue. The Group
recognises revenue when the specific criteria have been met for each
of the activities, as described below.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of products

The Group manufactures and sells a range of coal mining machineries
and auto parts to its customers. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and
either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied. The retention receivables which will be settled by
customers after warranty period, is included in trade receivables.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as a separate
performance obligation in a single contract as the warranty service is
assurance type, and the Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the warranty terms is recognised as a provision, see
Note 33.

Transportation and handling cost

As the transportation and handling activities occur before the
customer obtains control of related products, they are not separate
performance obligation, therefore, related costs are fulfilment costs
which are recognised as assets. The assets are amortised on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer
of the goods or service to which the assets relate. Due to the short
period of transportation, related assets are not material at the date of
the statement of financial position.

Significant financing component

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Normally, the collection period would be from 3 to 5 years.

Rendering of services

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. The service provided by
the Group is mainly related to the service for repairing service.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires the
presentation of any unconditional rights to consideration as a
receivable separately from contract assets. The Group has therefore
reclassified its contract assets and contact liabilities in accordance
with IFRS 15.

Contract liabilities are recognised as follows:

e (Contract liabilities recognised in relation to advance received
from customers for non-cancellable contracts.

e (Contract liabilities recognised in relation to Research and
Development (“R&D”) reimbursements — The Group recognises
the related reimbursement payment from customer as contract
liabilities and recognises the amount as revenue over the
expected production to customer in future period. The related
R&D costs are capitalised as contract fulfilment cost and
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis consistent with
the pattern of the transfer of the products under production to
the customer as part of cost of sales. Any R&D cost which is not
recoverable or when related production is not proceeded by the
customer is written off to profit or loss directly.

The Group also has the contract related assets, recognised in
relation to nomination fee. Nomination fee represents the fee
paid by the Group to the customers to participate in the tendering
process, and the fee is not refundable once the customer’s contract
is secured. Such payment to customer is capitalised as an asset
and subsequently amortised to deduct against the revenue over the
contract life.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Interest income is presented as other income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions. If the grant is in the form
of monetary assets, it is measured by the amount received or
receivable.

Government grants of the Group are obtained free from the
government in the form of monetary assets, including tax refunds
and/or financial subsidies.

Government grants related to assets are government grants which
are obtained by the enterprise for the construction or formation
of other long-term assets. Government grants related to income
refer to the grants other than those related to assets. Government
grants related to assets are recognised as deferred income, equally
recorded in profit or loss of corresponding period over the life of the
relevant assets.

Government grants related to income used as compensation for
business expenses or losses in subsequent periods, are recognised
as deferred income, and recorded in profit or loss when the expenses
are recognised; those obtained as compensation for business
expenses or losses that have occurred are recorded directly in current
profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESBESE®)

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 TESEBUR @)

Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received

e yses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has
a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use that
rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.

HE(E)

HEFRRABEEME SN KRR - WEE
EEZNE (R EENEE—RELIER) - Al
ERAABRAFEEERNE - BEIABAELR
DUEBEBRR PR LU - IR R AHE AP
FELENEERREREEERUNEENA
SAFHIRIEK o

RETIEEENE - ALH :

o EATTIER TMEREREEARITESH
F=TRMERERIEIEHRE  URBRA
BEE=TRENRBEGITNEE

o RAZIE BAMRAEE(FIOWES
—HRE EEHENEERRARE
R A= - &

o HEITHE - PILRERRR B -

’iﬁ&ﬁi#ﬁ

AR AEAZH A BB ERUNRIE R
ABSREEERN R (BEIPRRERTSEH
BRERE)  AEEERUAZNESRAMET
FIBEEREK -

$'§@5’<XT ERBIEBE AN TG M S E
FIATHE - MAREBENERELRAT T gt
)\Tﬁ SRfE - ERBEEENEHEERASE
HE LR - ME A ERBEREEEE
TTEH S A -
HEFERA S RBERAR ZHEAE - BEK
AREEMBRERNR  UEESHRERE
BB BEE BB X -
ERREEENATE  BREATEE
o UIFHEMERENTH

o FERG B I Z ATYE L M EREE R
IR WHEEES

o EMAMAERMAAR - K

o TEIREA -



168

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BRI E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting_ policies (Continued)

Leases (Continues)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is amortised over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of
office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of
adopting the new leasing standard.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the profit
attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders, where
appropriate.

2 FESHHEBE@

22 FE@EECR

HE(#E)

EREEE—RREEAERFHANEES
(ABIEE RE ) IRERETRINE - HAKE
BEMETEREEEE  MEREEENE
BREENAERFRATATE -

HREMEROEREEN N B RBERE
HERBENNRIRERER B R FER ﬁﬁi
REIEE REERI2EASUTHEE
BEE - KEEEERIEEARR ﬁ&bﬁ
WMARE -

KﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁAM@EETMEf%AEE
RN HEHIARRRIWA - BEUEEHEE
ENVIRERKAR AR EENREE - I
R E A AREREE WA MR ZEERER
RFX - HAREEEREEE AMBARR
= o RMFTAEERE - AEEEFEERD
MAFMBEEENSTREFIMNREE -

BRER

GREREFDETIISREA H/Y AR
RS BR 4 5 ) (FIB 2 378 AR DA 9 0 AT 26
PR ) B AR B PO £ 31T 2 SRR e 49
B R RE BT ERE (T RIEEERR)
HORR I 5% -

SREERF

SR SR AZRANEEBRERBN M
B AR K

o HBTHELBEARBNNEREMEE
RAEIBR PTG TR E - UK

o RREIPTAEEEEE BN A BETTT
FESNRRSNE B INAE 2 o

RE DK

A AR BRI 2 A% B A B RS ER (4n3m A ) it e
R EREIRE - EAKEL S MBIRRAERE
afE-



EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include loans receivable
from associates and joint ventures, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, finance lease receivables, long-term receivables, debt investment,
trade and other receivables, derivative instruments, bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, borrowings, redemption
liabilities, transferred trade receivables and liabilities associated with
transferred trade receivables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(@ Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk and price risk. There has been no change in the
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

(i) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various non-functional currencies.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is
primarily with respect to non-functional currency bank balances,
receivables, borrowings and payables (collectively “Non-
Functional Currency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging certain foreign currency exposure by using
foreign exchange forward contracts when the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s Non-Functional Currency
ltems at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2022

usD

Y
RMB’000

Assets BE 1,052,259

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022512 A31 B It F[E

3 SEEMREE

AEETFESREELABRRBEBE QRIS
BOEENR  UATHEAEREZS I ABENS
BMEE - WAFEFEBEEZSH I ARLMEEKS
WEREE  BEHEERYEIE - REIEKFA -
BERRE BHREMENTIAE - ITETE - iRTT
T3 REMREEY BHREMBNFR -
fE8  BOaE - EENEZRESANRECS
HNESRKFBEAENEE - ZEFERTAFE
REMERE - ARZEFER TANRR KA
EZERROBERETIINT - BEEE IR IR
R - ARREBEREREE G

(@) TiZR
AEEBERFEFELFEAZEERAR - FIRE

ke RBESREBLERRR - AEBASH
ZERBNEE R ERRH T RS -

() E¥ER
REEWEEER RS - WARZEI Y
REER T RAIMNERR - SNERKR B B
BERS  CHEIEENBEEL -

Rtk - A E S EERIMNER R E 2R
BEIRE R IR TAERR - FEMFIR -~ {8
RN SR (SR JETheE EHEIRE ) -

EIREEEINERL - WNFE B E R
REBINES REHETINERME -
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31 December 2021

2024128318 20214128318
EUR HKD USD EUR HKD
B BT £ BT BT
RN RVB'000  RMBIOO0  RMB'000
ARBTT AR®BTR AR¥TT PN SN SN S
134,066 10005 697,958 144,561 9,639
(280,415) - (7875 (342,550) -

Liabilities = (130,393)

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk
between United States dollars (“USD”)/RMB, Euro (“EUR”)/RMB
and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD")/RMB.
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@ Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the relevant foreign currencies
against RMB. The rate of 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates but does not consider the effect of derivative
financial instruments. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit for the year and a negative number
below indicates a decrease in profit for the year where the
relevant foreign currencies change 5% against RMB.

31 December 2022

3 TREBEE®
(@) TiZR k)
i) E¥ERREE)
HRERIT

TR AEBLERINE L ARETHE
R E5% M BURE 1T © 5%M LR BT
T2EEAESANIZ2MINER R NGRE
e WRKREREHERSIE A e

BTl - SURE D ITE B IR ASMNETIER
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KEBSUIFENRBE - TR RITES
RTANTE - TIRREBINELAR
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31 December 2021

2022128318 2021412 318
USsD EUR HKD Usb EUR HKD
EYH BT BT X BT BT
RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETRT ARBT PNGLRwUN::S N
If the currency strengthens R &% i,
against RMB ARBHE 39,066 (5,903) 375 25,613 (8,008) 361
If the currency weakens MEE
against RMB ARBEE (39,066) 5,903 (375) (25,613) 8,008 (361)




3 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@ Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest risk

RPN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20226 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (% 20224712 731 B I /E
3 SEEREE®
() TIHERR )
(i) FI=Ek

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate borrowings (see Note 32 for details). Currently,
the Group does not have a specific policy to manage its interest
rate risk, but management will closely monitor interest rate
exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate borrowings at
the end of each reporting period and the excepted changes in
interest rates taking place at the beginning of the financial year
and being held constant throughout the reporting period.

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings had been 50
basis points higher and all other variables were held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by:

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year FRBRBE R

$’§@?ft5‘¥ BB (FHF2 R MRS &=
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2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

(28,406) (22,586)

The post-tax profit for the year would have increased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on
variable-rate borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all
other variables were held constant.
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in the statement
of financial position either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) (Note 23) or at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) (Note 23). To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance
with the limits set by the Group.

The Group’s equity investments include both publicly traded
investments and investments in unlisted companies.

With the 10% change of the price of those equity securities
including both listed companies and unlisted companies, the
Group’s other comprehensive income and profit before tax
would increase or decrease by approximately RMB79.7 million
and RMBO0.1 million (2021: RMB14.4 million and RMBO.1
million respectively), respectively.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables, long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative
assets, loans receivable from associates and a joint venture, pledged
bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to pledged bank deposit, cash and
cash equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the
Group placed them in or entered into the contract with the banks with
high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and an appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
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3 EREBEZEE
b) EEREE

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit
limits to individual customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business
of manufacture of coal mining machinery, the Group generally
receives advances in the form of notes receivable or cash from
customers (which approximate 30% of the contract price) before
delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts,
normally a credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain
notes receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with
full recourse. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk
of the default in payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low
because all endorsed notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the counterparties’ ability to meet its
obligations

e Qactual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of counterparties

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments
of counterparties

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour
of counterparties, including changes in the payment status of
counterparties in the Group and changes in the operating results
of the counterparties.
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
The Group has the receivables from different customers and debtors
operate in different industries. In the meantime, customer portfolio
basis are also different between China and other countries. Thus, the
Group classified the above assets into below categories:
e  (ategory 1: trade receivables — coal mining machinery group
e  (ategory 2: trade receivables — ASIMCO group
e (ategory 3: trade receivables — SEG Automotive Germany
GmbH (“SEG”) and its subsidiaries (“SEG group”)
e  (ategory 4: notes receivables — commercial notes

e  (ategory 5: notes receivables — bank accepted notes

e (ategory 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

e (ategory 7: other receivables
e  (ategory 8: transferred trade receivables

e  (ategory 9: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Trade receivables

BB R REAE A SR B AR 1D B IR A R 2022F )
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\/EI\/E\ZI-ﬁ%iﬁ'IH—% M;J-%I
For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022512 A31 B It F[E
3 EREBEZEE
b) EERB @
(i) ESEWFE

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 12 to 36 month before 31 December
2022 or 31 December 2021 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the Producer Price Index (“PPI”) of coal mining and
washing industry and Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) to be
the most relevant factors for coal mining machinery group, and
general PPl and GDP of the countries in which it sells its goods
and services to be the most relevant factors for auto parts
group, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets
are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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3 Financial risk factors (Continted) 3 SRERBREER®

(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERB @)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) BIEWREE)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables of different 72022512 A31 B N EFARIE 5 e W I8
categories as at 31 December 2022 are listed as follows: ERGEEHENAT
Category 1: Coal mining machinery group FEFIT - RIBHE

Over Over Over Over
%0days 180 days 1 year 2 years
Within ~ butwithin ~ butwithin  butwithin  but within Over
90days 180 days 1 year 2 years Jyears 3years Total

BBOR BBIWX BE-F BEWF
WARN E180KA  E-FR  ERFR  E=Fr  BE=F Azt
RMB'OOO  RMBOOO ~ RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMBOO0  RMB'000
T ARETT ARBTR ARBTR AREBTT ARETT ARETR

Trade receivables ESEWFE
At 31 December 2022 R2022E12A31A
Expected loss rate kil 7ok 0% 2% 5% 2% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding  BREAA(E (T RIEREIER

receivables assessed individually)  FEE R FENEIE) 1,066,494  1,025989 1,124,118 736,386 58,944 64,051 4,075,582
Loss allowance provision EBREE - 20,520 56,206 147,217 29,272 64,051 317,326
Individually impaired receivables {ERRERE SR 700 1,212 26,409 108,229 86,030 101,925 324,505
Loss allowance provision EREE 700 1,212 14,180 43475 21,142 88,125 175,434
Total loss allowance provision B /54 700 21,732 70,386 190,752 57,014 152,176 492,760
Trade receivables ERERRE
At 31 December 2021 20215128318
Expected loss rate BHERE 0% 2% 5% 2% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding SR A48 E (R R EEERIHE

receivables assessed individually)  &9fEULFIE) 1,032,452 961,196 911,656 447,658 101,616 139,422 3,594,000
Loss allowance provision EERE - 19,224 45,583 89,532 50,808 139,422 344,569
Indlvidually impaired receivables ERRE A - - - - - 130,485 130,485
Loss allowance provision EERE - - - - - 130,485 130,485

Total loss allowance provision ~ EERHEAE - 19,224 45,683 89,532 50808 269907 475,054




3 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued)

Category 2: ASIMCO group

RPN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20226 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=20224-12 A31 B L&
3 EREBERE®
b) EERRE@
i) BSBWHEGE)
A2 - BREIEE

Over Over Over
90 days 180 days 1 year
Within but within butwithin ~ but within Over
90 days 180 days 1 year 2 years PATE Total

BBOX BBIBR BBE-F
XA E180RR  E-FA  BRFA  EEWF At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETR ARETL ARETR ARBTT ARET:

Trade receivables g S EWE

At 31 December 2022 R2022F12R31R

Expected loss rate EHEEX 0% 1% 18% 83% 100%

Gross carrying amount (excluding BRI 4&E (R R EMER|

receivables assessed individually) &AL FRIE) 573,970 239,141 54,937 7,481 6,335 881,864

Loss allowance provision EEEE - 1,196 10,107 6,172 6,335 23,810

Incividually impaired receivables  1ERIH E e IS = 914 = 701 4,216 9,831

Loss allowance provision BIERE - 914 - 701 4,216 5,831

Total loss allowance provision 551 f& 448 - 2,110 10,107 6,873 10,551 29,641

Trade receivables g A RWE

At 31 December 2021 R2021512831R

Expected loss rate HEEER 0% 2h 30% 80% 100%

Gross carrying amount (excluding B 142 (& (T B IR IE(E R

receivables assessed individually) LA EL IR ) 492,590 296,842 59,842 7874 6,524 863,672

Loss allowance provision EREE - 5937 17,953 6,299 6,524 36,713

Individually impaired receivables  {ERI35 (B U Z IR - 176 1,296 4,001 3,057 8,530

Loss allowance provision BERE - 176 1,29 4,001 3,067 8,530

Total loss allowance provision 518 & 4% - 6,113 19,249 10,300 9,581 45,243
Category 3: SEG group and contract related assets 2853 : SEGEE R & FIIEE A =
The trade receivable balance of SEG group and contract related SEGEE R & RIHBEEENE 5 EIGFIE
assets are mainly related with SEG group’s customers, who are HETZHSICEENEFER A2
the global OEMs in auto industry. The Group assessed the credit RABITEN RN ARG - AEBK
losses of trade receivable balance of SEG group individually using LA EISEGE B B 2 BN FUR T A
simplified approach. As at 31 December 2022, RMB47 million EEEEEITERIFE © 722022912 531
(2021: RMB25 million) has been provided as life time loss H - 5t 8 2 ERFIEE T B A& E

allowance for trade receivables.

BREEAAREIEET(2021F : AR
H25HBIT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes receivables
Category 4: notes receivables — commercial notes

The Group assesses the credit losses of notes receivables —
commercial notes individually using three-stage approach.
As at 31 December 2022, RMB7.2 million (2021: RMB1.0
million) were provided as 12 months loss allowance for notes
receivables — commercial notes.

Category 5. notes receivables — bank accepted notes

The Group assesses the credit losses of notes receivables —
bank accepted notes individually using three-stage approach.
As at 31 December 2022, RMBO.1 million (2021: RMBO.1
million) were provided as 12 months loss allowance for notes
receivables-bank accepted notes.

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables
Category 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables are mainly
due from the customers of coal mining machinery group. The
Group has provided financial leasing or long term payment plan
to certain customers because these customers are mainly state
owned companies or guaranteed by third parties with special
credit profile. The Group has granted a relatively long repayment
plan to the customers based on the credit assessment. The
Group assesses the credit losses of finance lease receivables
and long-term receivables individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2022, RMB93 million (2021:
RMB89 million) were provided as life time loss allowance for
finance lease receivables and long-term receivables.

Other receivables
Category 7: Other receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 three-stage approach to measure
expected credit loss (“ECL”). Other receivables comprise:
advances to staff, deposit and others. Since the credit risk
of other receivables are considered not significantly increase
since initial recognition, therefore the impairment provision
is determined as 12 months ECL. As at 31 December 2022,
RMB106 million (2021: RMB39 million) were provided as 10ss
allowance for other receivables.

3 SRERBREER®

(b)

.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

5 A e
= 5 R e E)

FEWRE
P4 JEWEE - B ERE

REBMRAZWEAHEREE -mEE
BRI EEEIEEITEBIFHE © 7R2022612
A8 - EREREE - AEEEE
B A BIEREARET7 28870 (20214F
AREA10BETT) °

AR5+ AL — 4R

REBRAZBEE RUEIE — R1T&
HEEOEEBRBETERIFE - R2022
F12A318 - AEEFEWEIE — BITE
HERRI2EABERBARKET
(20214 : ARBE01EET) ©

BMERERRFER RMERRE
26 - HEHE BN HIERREEWAE

MEMERKFERRHRKFEEES
ERHEEEHEERR - ARG TEPE
ZARBENBAGRRIEERINE
ZHER MAEEBRRZERFRER
ERENARBNRETE - AREERERE
BHEREF R DAY RNERTE -
AEEFRAMCEERERERBGRIER
RHIEUGEETEREEEBTE - B
2022F12 A31H » Eptp A E e GRIA
KR B GRIEE T R AT R 1B
ARBIHETL(2021F : ARBIIEHE
JL) °

Hfth R IR
FER7 - B ERTHE

N5 B fE A B R B TS RS SRR B SRR T
W= REECER T 2B EEEE(BHE
BEIE]) - Bt IERE MBI
o Re REA o AREMBEUGIERNE
BRI A B SRR EREE L
me AR EREEERIEABSREE
[E518 - 7A2022F 12 A31H - Bt EAbEU
SIERHREEREEARE1068 & (2021
F:AREIEET) °
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Transferred trade receivables
Category 8: Transferred trade receivables

Please refer to Note 34 for the detailed description of
transferred trade receivables. The Group assesses the credit
loss of transferred trade receivables individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the related loss
allowance was immaterial.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Category 9: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to debt
investments that are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. The maximum exposure at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of these investments of
RMB5,228,176,000 (2021: RMB3,236,286,000). As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the Group assesses the credit
loss of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
no allowance needed as most of the investments are high
rating bond investments in open market managed by reputable
financial institutions. And management believe that except
for the loss from fair value changes, there will be almost no
significant losses from non-performance by these financial
institutions.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group is required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

.

(v)

(vi)

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

3 EREBEZEE

15 A
)

ERENE S RWRFUR
2fle - B 2|88 E S EWHE

EHESENE S RKE - LM
34 - AEBRABARCDEENE SR
Wk IEETTERE BB BT © 7202246
20215124318 - HE@ABEREBLTE
7&0

LAFEFABAEZBFABENSE
aE

FFNG - AR FlEFE AREET ARz
H)E BEE

AEERIBEATEFEBESEHFT AL
HHEBRETEHHEERR - R#@E
HANSGRKERNDZEREZERES
A R #5,228,176,000 7T (2021 4F = AR
3,236,286,0007T) ° 7420224F [ 20214F12 A
318 - AEEFEUAFETE A EEE
AABENERMEENEERSE BREX
Ao ERRAASMEEEENN AR
TSz SR EFREMERIELEE -
BEBERE  BRATEZSEIEIN - Z
LORMEBAT ISR TBAOMEEER
fE518 o

€ mBEERER

REEEEREFEEERREURNAEE
LEMRE ERFNRE LIRS FEY - LR
EReRENPNTE - EREBERRITER
EVEREN - ARER BT BN

TRAVIAKEREHEERGERNIETES
REEHTARZHA - RRDRBEERAE
B2 MNEFAPNSREERERRE
MERE - KREEMNERAEHERE -
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3 eEEREE®)
) mBEERR®

Weighted  On demand Total
average  orless than 3 months 1year 2years  undiscounted Garrying
The Group 158 interest rate 3 months to1 year to 2 years to5years  cashflows amount
] KER
mEESRE  HWER  MEREIE 122% 135F ReREAE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T ARETI ‘ ARETL  ARETI T ARETIL
As at 31 December 2022 RN2F12R31H
Non-derivative financial liabilties it LRas
Trade and other payables ECES R
(excluding non-financial liabiltes) (PEfEFLBER) 8476537 1,801,580 - - 1028117 10,278,117
Liabilties associated with transferred &332 28 Z 5 el zUa
{rade receivables BENEE 21,616 247,19 - - 269,411 269,411
Borrowings T 240 1493438 1,866,920 543475 3974968 7,863,801 7,549,970
Lease liabilties E8E 290 59,353 109,592 146,353 1207144 1522442 1,397,002
Derivative financial iabilties kA=
Designated as hedging instruments — #EE BT E - - - - - -
Not designated as hedging instruments  FEE BEHR T & 17,3% - - - 17,39 17,395
10,073,339 4,025,887 680828 5182112 19971166 19,511,895
As at 31 December 2021 R 127318
Non-dervative financial liabiies HTEepakE
Trads and other payables EUYEL RN
(excluding non-financial liahities) (MefEFeRaR) 6,830,176 1,629,641 - - 845987 8459817
Liabilies associated with transferred 22 21802 FREREUE
trade receivables EENEE 57,453 630,020 - - 687,473 687,473
Borrowings EE 251 174,309 1,174,821 3812,768 889,091 6,050,989 5798610
Lease liabites HERE 37 26,313 129,330 203,109 1,135,635 1,494,387 1,246,071
Derivative financial liabilities TELRERE
Designated as hedging instruments ~ J8F A%IRI A 1,956 14,368 - - 16,324 16,324
Not designated as hedging instruments M55 A T & 10,751 2247 - - 32998 32,998
7,100,958 3,600,427 4,015,877 2024726 16741988 16,241,293

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

In addition to the above, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
in the next one year from each reporting date in relation to the
maximum loss and cash outflows that may result from the Group’s
endorsed notes receivable with full recourse should the issuing banks
of these notes fail to honour their obligations, please refer to Note 42
for details.

17 B 5 BR AR 45 AR B B B
2 BT S RMAEIBFIETAS
FATED) -

B EXATESN - ANERE A& HRE B HERR
—FIEAZRBESRR  FRAKEAER
HERENEEEREEBRERHZERRZ
RITREEBITEHEENER TAIRRELENREA
BEERERH - FI5F2HME42 -
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3 EREBEZEE
( ) il"]ﬂqI/E\Z S’ZTEEF“E

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

M EREASENAEELSHEREERS
BMEEATHEZEM -

ARESWEERSBAEL AT EREEHE
PR ATEE -

TRAMEERES T EATETIROERT
B FREREENT :

F1 WERMSEEESR T AN FEM
WAMEBEENITETARRAE S ) RIZRE
HIRFTR M EME - AERE TR & REEMA
MM ERERNEAE - ZFLAIAS
1A% o

F2ff  WINARTHEEN SR T AN
SIMTETR) R FEDMBMBETEERE
HEEDEEENRABEMSEIRL R AR
A BB EMETAEE o Wit ETARF
EfROMEEABABER SRR A
Z T A2

FEIE - M—IARZABARBARBELIFRE
ABETISEERME - AR TA AR (B
3 EMBRAES) ©

AEEFDEREERERABREHREHNR
BAHERE - TRAFENGAZEERME
EreMABAEATEZEESAN(LEZMA
ZEEDERBABE) -
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Financial instruments
$RMIE

Financial assets at fair value
through OCI, non-current

WA RALBHEA
Hi2ERaNeHE
E - 3ERE

Financial assets at fair value
through OCI, non-current

WATEHBAAZE
AR ZEKER
SREE R

Derivative financial instruments
TESRTA

Derivative financial instruments
TESBIA

Derivative financial instruments
TESRMTA

Fair value as at 31 December 2022
R202F12831 B2 AFE

Listed equity securities in A-share
- RMB392,987,000 (2021: Nil
RARRE ETRAE S
— AR #302,987,0007T (202148 « £)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

—Nil (2021: RMB31,752,000)
REBMN ETRAE S

— (2021 + AR#31,752,0007)

Forward foreign exchange contract not
designated as hedging instruments
- RMB4,890,000
(2021: RMB15,372,000)

MEE R TANEHRIMNESF
— AR#4,890,0007T
(20214F + AJRH15,372,0007T)

Forward foreign exchange contract
designated as hedging instruments
—Nil (2021: RMB16,324,000)

BERIPIANERIMNESRH
— (2021 : AR#16,324,0007T)

Forward foreign exchange contract not
designated as hedging instruments
- RMB17,395,000
(2021: RMB32,998,000)

MEEAEAIANERINESH
— AR #17,395,0007C
(20215 + N\R¥#32,998,0007T)

3 SRERBREER®

d emTAZAFEEFTE@®)

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DVESSR

Level 1
F1R

Level 1
N

Level 2
Fo

Level 2
EpE

Level 2
EpE

HEREREABARE

Quoted bid prices in an active market
RERT SR BEAE

Quoted bid prices in an active market
RiERTEMRZEANE

Valuation model similar to forward pricing and swap models,
using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the foreign
exchange spot and forward rates, interest rate curves and
metals hedging price. The carrying amounts of forward
currency contracts, metals hedging contracts and interest
rate swaps are the same as their fair values.

BURNEEEE M ERNGERE - GRRE
o GERAEERMEBRGALE - 2
ENSHREAEE  FIX@mEReBEHHER &
HE®aN  eBEAEARFE TR RAER
HATEER -

Valuation model similar to forward pricing and swap models,
using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the foreign
exchange spot and forward rates, interest rate curves and
metals hedging price. The carrying amounts of forward
currency contracts, metals hedging contracts and interest
rate swaps are the same as their fair values.

FURESRTERE AR AERE - FRRET
o ZEARERRMEABEARE - G
EHHERER  MRMEReBERER &
HE¥al  eREPEHIRF X TR RAER
HATERR -

Valuation model similar to forward pricing and swap models,
using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the foreign
exchange spot and forward rates, interest rate curves and
metals hedging price. The carrying amounts of forward
currency contracts, metals hedging contracts and interest
rate swaps are the same as their fair values.

BURERFEERERRENGERY  RRRE
o BEAASREMSABERARE - A
ENSHREHEE  FIXpEREBEHHER - &
WEREL SRR ANRFREANERESR
HATEER -



(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Financial instruments
SRIA

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

UATEHBERED
TABRMEREE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

WAFE2EEZEEA
BRENEREE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

DAFEHBERED
TABRMEREE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

DAFEHBERED
TABRMEREE

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

Fair value as at 31 December 2022
R2022512A31 A 2 AFE

Other financial assets

— assets management products

- RMB4,077,805,000

(2021: RMB1,286,026,000)
HibemaE

— NEH4,077,805,0007C

(20215 + AR#1,286,026,0007T)

Certificate of deposits
- RMB578,258,000 (2021: Nil)
FHE
— AR 578,258,007 (20214 : )

Structured deposit

- Nil (2021: RMB918,000,000)
BEEER

— (20215 : AR918,000,0007T)

Other financial assets — principal guaranteed
financial products and principal non-
guaranteed financial products
- RMB570,817,000
(2021: RMB1,030,964,000)

HihemEE-RAGBERK
FRESBER
— AR®570,817,0007T
(20215 + AR#1,030,964,0007T)

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022512 A31 B It F[E

3 EREBEZEE

0 s TAEZAFEEFFEm®

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DHEER

Level 2
E2AR

Level 2
E2AR

Level 2
E2AR

Level 2
E2AR

HEFTERERBABE

Fair values of collective investment schemes, debt securities,
base, ferrous and precious metals futures and options
contracts have been determined based on quotes from
market makers, funds administrators or alternative
pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most
significant inputs are market interest rates, market prices
of metals, net asset values and latest redemption prices or
fransaction prices of the respective collective investment
schemes. The expected return rates ranged from 1.01% to
7.00%. The higher the expected return rate, the higher the
fair value.

SRREHE . BBES  E52E RESERE

CEHERPEARZ ATFERRET SRR - &

SERNRETRRE AR N EMER

TKROBEET - AP REENRARBRTIHH

% cETHER SEREREHANEETE

REHERBRARSER - BERRENF1.01%
Z700% 1% - BHEREYS - ATEES -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that reflects
the expected return rates ranged from 3.10% to 4.18%.
The higher the expected return rate, the higher the fair
value.

BRBRHASTE - ANRSRENEEDREERA
&% BRURBERHEGENLE(NTF310%2
4.18%) 8K - BEIEMEMS - ATELS -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that reflects
the expected return. The higher the expected return rate,
the higher the fair value.

BRERSTE - ARBERENEEDBEERAS
% BRIRMESHDHRENL R - BHRR
kim ATEMR -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that reflects
the expected return rates ranged from 0.00% to 5.50%.
The higher the expected return rate, the higher the fair
value.

BRBRHASTE - ANRSRENEEDREEA
S8 - iR RIEHERENLE(NT000%2
550%) 8L - BEIEMEMS - ATELS -
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Financial instruments
$MIE

Financial assets at fair value
through OCI, current

WATEEEAZE
AR MR EKES
SREE - B

Financial assets at fair value
through OCI, non-current

KATEFBALE
FTAR M2 EKES
SREE  FEEH

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

AT E2AEEY
AABRNERER

Fair value as at 31 December 2022
R202512A31 B 2 A FE

Notes receivables

— RMB4,494,325,000

(2021: RMB4,111,050,000)
EWEE

— ANEH4 494 325,0007T

(2021% + AR #4,000,050,0007T)

Equity interest in unlisted company with no
open market price quote
- RMB403,889,000
(2021: RMB112,000,000)
TERARTSRENFELTRE
B
— AR #403,889,00075
(20214F = AR H112,000,0007T)

Equity interest in unlisted company with no
open market price quote
- RMB1,296,000 (2021: RMB1,296,000)
WERARTSRENFELIRE
B
— AR#1,296,0007C
(202148 + ARH1,296,0007)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year.

In 2022, the Group transferred an equity interest investment
from Level 3 to Level 1 due to the investment listed in an active
market (Note 23(a)).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of current financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

3 SRERBREER®

d emTAZAFEEFTE@®)

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DVHEER

Level 3
E3

Level 3
B

Level 3
B

HEFEREABARE

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that reflects
the expected discounted rate ranged from 0.90% to 3.95%.
The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.

ERRRSNE - AMASRENEEDBREAE
8 BIR00%Z3 95%A L XA H - RS -
AFEMIE -

Valuation multiples. The fair value is based on EV/EBIT
multiple and discount for lack of marketability (‘DLOM"), the
EV/EBIT multiple at a range from 35 to 59 and the DLOM
at 23%. The higher the EV/EBIT multiple, the higher the fair
value. The higher the DLOM, the lower the fair value.

HEEY - AFEDERNNVBIES kB TER
HEE ([FRe TR RAMER )  EBTREENT
3BEHINE - MEkZ MG R23% o EV/EBIT
EgEE  ATEES - Rz mEREESERY
& ATEWE -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on expected volatility, discount for lack of marketability
(“DLOM"), and discount rate. The higher the expected
volatility, the lower the fair value. The higher the DLOM, the
lower the fair value. The higher the discount rate, the lower
the fair value.

ERRRSNE - ARB2REMNBE HIREES
HB Rz M RBEIR (R mERELE
B))REEE  BEREMA - ATEBE - f7t
CchERAMARNS  ATEWE - AR
= ATEWE -

FRFBIREE2R 7 B R o

20226 REBHE BB AR EEES
WEBEEEL  REALKRERNERTS L
e (FizE23(@) °

BEE2RR  NREMERRAREHR AT
ZhnBeREENERABENRIERERAY
BRE -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting
estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates (Note 3). The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the
date of the statement of financial position. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information such as actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of customers, actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business and customers’ financial position. At every reporting
date the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed by the Group’s management.

Impairment of goodwil

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of goodwill at
31 December 2022 was RMB131,905,000 (2021: RMB412,850,000).
Further details are set out in Note 19.

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Impairment of intangible assets

The management considers the potential impairment based on the
recoverable amount. The intangible assets with finite useful lives are
reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors that would indicate
potential impairment may include, but are not limited to, the significant
change in technology associated with the intangible assets. Determining
whether intangible assets is impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs to which intangible assets belong. The
recoverable amount of CGUs at the end of the reporting period is based on
the value in use calculation which requires the management of the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise.

Residual values of property and plant and equipment

The Group estimates the residual values and related depreciation charges
for its items of property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the management’s experience of the actual useful lives and residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and actions
of its competitors. The management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are less than previously estimated.

Estimation of defined benefit pension obligation

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of pension obligations. Details of key assumptions and impact of
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in Note 35.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Estimation of provision

The Group makes provisions for product warranty (only assurance type),
onerous contracts and restructuring cost. Management estimates the
related provisions based on contract terms, available knowledge and past
experience. The Group recognises provisions to the extent that it has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and that the amount can be reliably estimated.

As for onerous contracts, the Group assessed at the date of the statement
of financial position on whether unavoidable costs of meeting contractual
obligations have exceeded the economic benefits expected to be received,
and made provision for these onerous contracts based on the estimated
least net cost of exiting from the contracts.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and investment properties

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and investment properties to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. Determining whether property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and investment properties are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-in-use
of the assets and the fair value less costs of disposal. The value-in-use
calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the continuing use of the assets and from its ultimate disposal
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise.

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred income tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing, the applicable tax rates, and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are set out in Note 24.

Estimation of the fair value of certain financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period

e SRR MEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

5 Revenue
Year ended 31 December 2022
BZ2022F12A31HILFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERERE RESETIN #5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR%TF T
Sales of auto parts RET I FREE - 15,170,886 15,170,886
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIEE S ZERSH & 9,239,798 - 9,239,798
Revenue from steel and other 8 & A R AL B SR A
materials trading 4,330,804 74,774 4,405,578
Sales of spare parts for coal TR D (A0 S
mining machinery 2,399,574 - 2,399,574
Sales of other coal mining equipment — E b FRERABAVEHE 636,784 - 636,784
Other revenue HA 150,348 40,338 190,686
16,757,308 15,285,998 32,043,306
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BIEFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
FUEH RN, RERET Y 5T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT ARETFT
Sales of auto parts RET I REE - 16,080,408 16,080,408
Sales of hydraulic roof supports TRIEE S ZERSH & 6,873,987 - 6,873,987
Revenue from steel and other 8 R AR A B S e A
materials trading 3,730,774 75,694 3,806,468
Sales of spare parts for coal TR B (/O S
mining machinery 2,202,975 - 2,202,975
Sales of other coal mining equipment  EL{hEREE R AV HE 155,516 - 155,516
Other revenue HApA 119,834 54,339 174,173

13,083,086 16,210,441 29,293,527
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

6 Segment information 6 ZoEEHR
Information reported to the chief executive of the Company, being the RERDE RN HRBFERA AR REITRAS
CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of (BIEZ2EEREE)RENER SRR SR
segment performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or ME MR RISESE - BgmE - BIBEEVEHRE
provided. Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are (i) AREB5E - ANEEK —Jziﬁz" A1) RS R
manufacture of coal mining machinery; and (i) manufacture of auto parts. W (i BEEET I o WEKE D IEHEA
No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable REER WA

segments of the Group.

CODM primarily uses a measure of segment net profit to assess the FELBRRELTZEASEFFEG ALK
performance of operating segments. EOEPRIT ©

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REBERWA R EEZ ] 2WMBELED DTN
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepares the segment T o NEEEFANBRED PRE - TEIF)EE
reporting for net profit excluding the impact of a) impairment of goodwill BE - b)EOE fa B (HHERE BT E
b) interest expense of redemption liabilities, which are both related to the DECIERE ) MR 2

manufacture of auto parts segment.

Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total

SUERBHMM  RESETHMG #at
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARBETTT

Year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F 12831 HILEE

Segment revenue D EBURA 16,757,308 15,285,998 32,043,306
Segment net profit excluding SEEFE - AEIE
impairment of goodwil PEERE 2,553,138 351,518 2,904,656

Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12831HILEE
Segment revenue SERUTA 13,083,086 16,210,441 29,293,527

Segment net profit excluding D EREFE -
impairment of gooduwill, interest TEIEEERIE
expense of redemption liabilities [HEEY e 2,085,965 83,868 2,169,833
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6 Segment information (Continued)

For the year ended December 31

BZ12A31HLLEE
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Segment revenue and consolidated revenue DEBRA R EEE WA 32,043,306 29,293,527

Segment net profit excluding impairment of goodwill, DEFFE - NREEERIE

interest expense of redemption liabilities BEOoaEMNERY 2,904,656 2,169,833
Impairment of goodwill EERE (276,651) (78,935)
Interest expense on redemption liabilities EEaEMNEMAX = (21,030)
Consolidated profit for the year FRLGEEHF 2,628,005 2,069,868

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepared the segment
reporting for total assets and liabilities excluding the impact of goodwill
related to the manufacture of auto parts segment.

e AR R A ERT 2B REEIBOHTN
T ARERSEE AR BN HEE T
EEEE N BT SEEENE RN Y E

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AREFT
SEGMENT ASSETS SHEE
Manufacture of coal mining machinery B IR AR 29,924,697 22,763,293
Manufacture of auto parts Bl R B T IR 14,412,987 14,154,171
Total segment assets woIEE 44,337,684 36,917,464
Goodwill [EES 131,905 412,850
Consolidated assets REEE 44,469,589 37,330,314
SEGMENT LIABILITIES PEBEE
Manufacture of coal mining machinery B ey CRIT Y 16,453,699 12,885,253
Manufacture of auto parts Bl R B T IR 9,377,609 8,794,084
Consolidated liabilities weaE 25,831,308 21,679,337
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6 DIER@E

Geographical information b4 &kt
The analysis of revenue by geographical location of customers is as WARE BT
follows:
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREETTT
The PRC =8| 21,716,648 19,929,645
Germany =k 4,337,463 4,488,468
Other countries HAhBR 5,989,195 4,875,414
32,043,306 29,293,527
Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the consolidated ’“*Bﬁ??ﬁﬁﬁi,ﬁ?/\ﬁﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬂE’JHﬁ.ﬁr& 25
financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations BEEREBDHBESEREEER BT S

of the segment and the physical location of the assets.

Manufacture of coal mining machinery
The PRC

Germany

Other countries

2022
20224
Investment in Additions to
Segment associates and non-current
assets joint ventures assets

REEE AT R B

THEE BEEXNEER FRBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T R AR®T R

SUE R

& 29,738,194 186,594 692,146
(=1 77 = =
EMER 128,104 = 346

Manufacture of auto parts

SUERET T

The PRC FE 7,237,882 92,274 656,381
Germany = 2,593,778 - 137,065
Other countries HER 4,696,207 - 241,388
Total segment assets B ENEE 44,394,242 278,868 1,727,326
Elimination HH (56,558)
Unallocated: RoBL

Goodwill EES 131,905
Total assets as per consolidated GEEIR A RFINEEE

statement of financial position

44,469,589
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6 Segment information (Continued) 6 oEER®
Geographical information (continued) HbI% & # )
2021
202148
Investment in Additions to
Segment associates and non-current
assets joint ventures assets
N ANCTDSS NE
NHEEE BAELEMNKRE ERBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT ARETFT
Manufacture of coal mining machinery 435 B AR,
The PRC =8 22,748,968 170,842 427,414
Germany = 3,246 - -
Other countries HEMER 26,145 - 113
Manufacture of auto parts Bl R B T IR
The PRC =8 7,584,037 88,097 323,222
Germany = 2,287,384 - 268,792
Other countries E B 4,371,882 - 753,377
Total segment assets BHEBEE 37,021,662 258,939 1,772,918
Elimination HH5H (104,198)
Unallocated: Kohe
Goodwill RS 412,850
Total assets as per consolidated A MEIRARFIRBEE
statement of financial position 37,330,314
Information about major customers FERPER
No customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for BE202F K201 12 AN B IEEE - WREARE
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. BRI ABBEI0%NEF °
7 Other income 7 HfblgA
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Government grants (Note) BT Bh (BT 3E) 315,104 254 525
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITFER - RHEWZTIER
receivables and finance lease receivables B EHE R WEIER ] BMA 161,326 130,724
476,430 385,249

Note: Government grants mainly represent government grants received from the
local government for compensation of research and development expenses
incurred, and in respect of construction of the Group’s new plant, which are
transferred from deferred income to profit or loss when related expenses
incurred or over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

et - BSHB TR ERHEMEEREMI REASE
ERRTERSS T8 BUS SR B A#EE) - &
HERXELRNEREEERFRNERTE
DON: ES Skl
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8 Other losses, net 8 HfhEiaFE
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 43) Hj’% el P A B Ui (PR 3E43) 195,494 -
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair NEETE AHBEFHTABEN
value through profit or loss %mﬁé%é’] NP EW TR 94,989 109,557
Net foreign exchange gain/(10ss) SNENZS (1R ) 358 37,760 (31,086)
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and HEME  HENREBEARERE
equipment, and intangible assets ERkERFERE 4,800 11,598
Net gains on disposal of associates LEH S AR FRE - 56,596
Gains on disposal of loans receivable from e B A N E R — A A
associates and a joint venture E’J%ﬁk”ﬁl - 22,550
Dividend from financial assets at fair value NEEFEAHE Eb.#)\ﬁmi
through other comprehensive income EH&Z S E B A EFTIS - 3,719
Dividend from financial assets at fair value ?TEJEHE """" Eb.#)\?@ 4z
through profit or loss %vaﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ B/RE = 240
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 472 - &= &%&ﬁ;‘)ﬁfﬁ(m;ﬂ‘m) (1,491) (1,732)
Net fair value (loss)/gain on derivative financial PTHESBMTARAFE(ERE),
instruments Gy (73,221) 5,069
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 20) A ERE(MEE20) (99,116) (83,739)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 19) AR E(FIRE19) (276,651) (78,935)
Others HA (2,598) (17,412
(120,034) (3,579)
9 Finance costs 9 RERAK

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBTIT

Interests on bank borrowings RITIEEF B 226,682 200,103
Interests on lease liabilities HEAREMNE 38,728 38,847
Interests on redemption liabilities BEOaEMNE - 24,741

265,410 263,691
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10 Income tax expense

10 FRIEBIFAX

2022 2021

202245 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREET T

Current income tax BIERFT1S R 486,735 514,833
Under provision in the prior year — enterprise BAFEREBETE 1%

income tax FrfSt 9,744 9,130

Deferred income tax EEFTERL (34,406) 29,485

462,073 553,448

(a)- PRC corporate income tax (@) FREIEMGH

The corporate income tax (“CIT”) is calculated based on the statutory
profit of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and the applicable
tax rate in accordance with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after
adjustments on certain income and expense items, which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

In accordance with the PRC tax laws, standard corporate income tax
rate is 25%. The Company and certain subsidiaries are qualified for
new/high-tech technology enterprises status and enjoyed preferential
income tax rate of 15% during 2022 and 2021. In addition, pursuant
to the Announcement on Increasing the Pre-tax Deductions in
Support of Technological Innovation (Announcement [2022] No. 28)
issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration
and the Ministry of Science and Technology, during the period from
1 October 2022 to 31 December 2022, the cost of newly purchased
equipment can be fully deducted against taxable profit in 2022, and
entitled to additional pre-tax deduction at 100% for these certain
qualified new/high-tech technology enterprises.

According to the Notice on Improving the Pre tax Deduction Ratio
of Research and Development Expenses (CS [2018] No. 99)
and relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
State Administration of Taxation, and the Ministry of Science and
Technology, as well as the Announcement of the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Taxation on Further Improving the
Pre tax Deduction Policy of Research and Development Expenses (CS
[2021] No. 13), the Company and certain subsidiaries are entitled to
additional pre-tax deduction of research and development expenses
at 100% during 2022 and 2021.

Germany profits tax

Applicable profit tax rate of Germany is 29% (2021: 29%). During the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no profit tax has been
provided due to accumulated losses as there is no estimated taxable
profits for the current and the prior years.

ERABEH(TRRAEN ] ZREFBENHK
ERERE R P B MRS A B R RIHEE
EAERTREEERS - B EHABERNA
B E BAFRIA AR E T HIA
B o

REFBIFE  IREREMBSHE A% 1
20226 K 20214F + AR R R oM E A B
BRI REER - ZZ15% N EESH
Koo o RBEFE - BISE R REHTED
CER A S FBHR AR AT NEMAS)
([2022)55285% ) » 720224910 81 H E 2022412
ANNAEME ARt EEREEN
1 E RN A A 2022F FERR B A AR 2 530
B - 3 A ZEESMO00%E B AT FIRE, ©

RIEFTIRER - TSR BT E B 12 = i
FUR B B AT DINET 0Bk Eo 5] A9 3@ &0 ) (B B
[2018)28995% ) SR B RAARTE LA R B BN EB K B 75
BRCEARNE— S ESWEEAHEA MR
R AE Y BIT[2021]851358) - ANARI RE
T A B 20224F K2 20214 A Z EEHM00%A)
TATTHE B A -

BEFISH

=B A M F SRR B29% (20214 + 29%) °
EHE2022F 202112 A3 B IEFE - AR
WERFTEE - Bt RHERSEEE  REA
BRI AT FEWEGTTERTEH o
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10 Fr8HiRX(®)

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for

(c) Others () EAb
Applicable profit tax rates of the Group’s other subsidiaries are HE202F K201 FE12831B ILEE - A&
between 9% and 34.01% for the years ended 31 December 2022 HtBARERNAERENTI%E
and 2021. 34.01% 2 °
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Profit before tax MR R Bl Vs A 3,090,078 2,623,316
Tax at applicable tax rate of respective entities BEOEBRHNRERAENTHE 500,295 514,914
Tax effect of share of result of associates and BB E N R RAEE
joint ventures REENHGTE (4,224) 6,712)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BARBW AN 2 (73,920) (92,207)

AR OR BT R

tax purpose 143,833 184,248
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary RIERTIEEE R

differences not recognised ERF B E 97,039 57,424
Utilisation of tax losses and temporary differences ) FB 5 Bif AR FE 2 11 18 /538 12

previously not recognised TR ERE (342) (145)
Additional deduction for qualified research and HEBRETREBAMEEIMNIT

development expenses (125,119) (113,204)
Additional deduction for qualified equipment A B RER IAEEIMNIT

expenditure (51,109)
Impact of eligible preferencial tax rate BEERHERERRNTE (34,124) -
Under provision in prior years BEFEREBTR 9,744 9,130

462,073 553,448

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in Note 24. FRIRERIEFF BRI 5E24 o
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11 Expense by nature (including cost of sales,
selling and distribution expenses, administration

1M ZHEE DB (BIEHERA -
HERDHMAX  THAX - EAMK

expenses, restructuring costs and research and AR ERAX)
development expenses)

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Raw material costs [ERYES I %N 22,232,787 19,589,708

Employee benefits expenses EERFFAXZ
(including directors) (Note 13) (BIEEE) (H7H13) 3,117,881 3,610,845
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment ME - BREMEEITE 582,889 671,359
Service fee i 439,346 391,743
Freight charges BEE 900,242 739,315
Amortization of intangible assets B A EE 190,402 239,999
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 152,526 155,729
Tax and surcharges BB R InEA 166,829 128,880
Short-term rental expenses MR ERY 15,890 14,489

Auditors’ remuneration TZEETEN S

— Audit service —ERTE 6,120 6,120
— Audit of overseas subsidiaries — N B A BB AR TS 9,200 7,349
— Non-audit services —IEEIZIRTE 1,919 1,277
Depreciation for investment properties WEYENE 18,815 11,682
Provision for inventories FEEE 42,423 6,851
Others H 1,057,858 1,241,370
28,935,127 26,816,716




12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration

RPN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20226 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the applicable Listing Rules and HKCO, is as follows:

IIV_\éﬂji%ﬁéé Bﬁ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

12 EE - BTRAEREEZMSE

REBEEAN ETRANRFBRARGOIRBENFAE
EREFEMOT

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BENRENANBLEE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
henefits payments  contributions  Directors’fee  Share options (Note 5) Total

RiERE

§4 1% HREAN BB MR
REMER s RS fELik) i ] (Ft35) @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR AEETT AEETT AEETR AEETTR AEETR AEETR

Executive directors; HiTEE -

Hir. o Chengyao (Notes 1,2) ERERA( - 2) 1513 132 2 - - 6,302 9,209
Mr. Jia Hao bt 2,466 1615 63 - 355 5,074 9573
Mr. Xiang Jiayu ARB/EE 1,072 Ll R - - 4228 6,253
Mr. Fu Zugang amLE 1,072 1,038 2 - 304 4228 6,674
M. Wang Xinying (Note 2 THe k() = = = = = = =
M. Cui Kal Mot 2 B k() - - - - - - -
Mr. Fei Guangsheng (Note 2) A (R Y)) = - - - - _ _
Sub-otal it 6,123 4,806 159 - 659 19872 31,709

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group.

Independent ron-srecutie dicctors: BV HHTEE -

Salary, wages
and other
henefits

#8418
REAER

RMB000
ARETT

Performance
incentive
payments

ERVE
ke
RMB'000
KRBT

LRAITEEME IR B EFE AR B RAEEER
BB IE MR A ARTS M AT -

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BZAnF12R3NALFE

Restricted

Retirement share incentive

benefit scheme scheme

contributions  Directors’fee  Share options (Note 5)

RiltthE

BHRER bl |
SRR EZhe Bhke (R¥&s) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AEETT ARETT

Wr. Cheng Jingle BEELE - - - 140 - - 140
M. JiFeng R - - - 140 - - 140
Mr. Fang Yuan ik cSid - - - 140 - - 140
Ms. Guo Wenging Ixgat - - - 8 - - 8
Sub-total it - - - 502 - - 502

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were

paid for their services as directors of the Company.

EBSIIET E F G IR RS E AR A
FTRHOBB T2 -
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12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 12 EE - BETRAEBREEZME )

remuneration (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BZARENANALEE

Restricted
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive
and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme

henefits payments  contributions  Directors’ fee  Share options (Note 5)

R RE

He I  HREHEY BHER A
REMER ke HE 25 ESHe BiE iES) ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB*000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETr ARBTR ARETR ARETn ARETR  ARETx

Supervisors: £z
Mr. Liu Qiang s 102 606 2 - - - 1,340
Nr. Wng Yue (Note 2) TR () - - = - - - -
M. Zhang Minglin iy 355 329 2 - - - 716
Mir. Bao Xugliang HEREE 214 160 2 - - - 406
. Cui Zonglin ERMAE 190 142 2 - - - 364
. Cheng Xiangdong BAREE = = = = = = =
ir. Znang Yonglong FAERE - - - - - - -
Sub-total it 1,461 1,21 128 - - - 2,82
Total @i 7,584 6,133 287 502 659 19,872 35,037
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BRANF12ANBLEE
Restricted
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive
and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
benefits payments  contributions  Directors’ fee  Share options (Note 5) Total
BIMRE
e I HREES RANGER S CIHE
REMET M HE5 Bxie B (izE5) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Notes 1,2) ~ EEAZEL A (Fis1 -~ 2) 1,268 1,274 K - - 5629 8,201
Mr. Jia Hao BEEE 2,458 1,782 57 - 406 4,503 9,206
Mr. Xiang Jiayu RRREE 938 942 P - - 3,752 5,662
Mr. Fu Zugang AR L 869 1,039 P - 348 3,752 6,038
Mr. Wang Xinying (Nofe 2) THa (M) - - - - - - -
Mr. Wang Bin (Note 3) TELAE (M) 21 3 - - - - 568
Mr. Cui Kai (Notes 2, 3) EEE (i 3) - - - _ _ _ _

Mr. Yang Dongsheng (Notes 2,3) 155 FHE B (fitEr2 - 3) - - - - - - -
Mr. Fei Guangsheng (Notes 3,4)  BREBs% 4 (FizE3 - 4) - - - - - - -

Sub-total gt 5,760 5,378 147 - 754 17,636 29,675




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration (Continued)

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group.

RPN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20226 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

12 E  BETBRAEBRESEME @)

ERATERME IR M EH AR R LA EEER

BB IR M IR A AR TS T A -

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BRONF12A31ALEE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive ~ benefit scheme scheme
benefits payments  contributions  Directors'fee  Share options (Note 5) Total

BHIMERE

¢ I8 HERREH RINER] e
REfEHN e SRS EENe Bk (3E5) &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETt ARETR

Independent non-executive directors: BV #H7TEE :

M. Liu Yao (Note 3) HErau(iE) - - - - - - -

Mir. Jiang Hua (Note 3) TERE () - - - _ _ _
Mr. Li Xudong (Note 3) FIRR A (M53) - - - - - _ _
Mr. Cheng Jinglei REELE - - - 140 - - 140
Mr. Ji Feng (Note 4) ZO A () - - - 17 - - 17
M. Fang Yuan (Note 4) FELE () - - - 17 - - 17
s.Guo Wenging (Note 4) Ba it (fiz) - - - - - - -
Sub-total Nt - - - 374 - - 374

The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were

paid for their services as directors of the Company.

BB IERITEEME SRR FEEAARNE

EMmREAORB AT -
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12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RRMEE

12 E% - BETRABRESEME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE0NF12R31ALLEE

Restricted

Salary, wages  Performance Retirement share incentive

and other incentive  benefit scheme scheme
bengfits payments  contributions  Directors' fee  Share options (Note 5) Total

BHIMERE

e I8 ERREYE  RIKET HEtEl
REMET] i HELRE e Bl (3E5) &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT AR%Tn ARETT ARETR

Supervisors: EZE:

Mr. Liu Qiang sk 624 611 R - - - 1,265
Mr. Cui Leilei (Note 3) EEERAE(IRE) 56 53 7 - - 544 660
Mr. Ni Wei (Note 3) {RBIE A (FEE3) 170 25 13 - - 1,501 1,909
Mr. Zhou Rong (Note 3) RRFEAE (M) 98 104 7 - - 1,689 1,898
Mr. Yuan Shaochong (Note 3) R (HF3) 67 69 7 - - 525 668
Mr. Wang Yue (Nots 2) TR () - - - - - - _
Mr. Zhang Yichen (Note 3 FARFEE (ML) 5 53 7 - - 544 660
Mr. Zhang Minglin (Note 4) ienyalin L) 3%9 32 30 - - - 691
Mr. Bao Xueliang (Note 4) BEREE(L) 190 159 30 - - - 379
Mr. Cui Zonglin (Note 4) ERMAE A (Fr3E) 179 201 R - - - 40
Mr. Cheng Xiangdang (Note 4) BARLE (M) - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Yonglong (Note 4) ok (i) - - - - - - _
Sub-total 1,779 1,797 161 - - 4,803 8,540
Total 7539 7175 308 374 754 22439 38,589
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration (Continued)

The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

Note 1: Mr Jiao Chengyao is also the chief executive officer of the Company and
his emolument for the role as chief executive officer is also included above.

Note 2: All or partial of these directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 were borne by investors, including Henan
Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd, investor of Hong Yi Investment and
Henan Asset.

Note 3: All of these directors resigned during the year ended 31 December 2021
and the amount shown above represents the remuneration paid for in
connection with their service as directors or supervisors.

Note 4: All of these directors and supervisors were newly appointed during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and the amount shown above represents
the remuneration paid for in connection with their service as directors or
SUPErvisors.

Note 5: The amount recorded in the restricted share incentive scheme were the
amount recorded in the financial statement.

The performance incentive payment is mainly determined on the basis
of the Group’s and individual performance for years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021, respectively.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or supervisors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Except for Ms. Guo Wenging, an independent non-executive director,
who has waived part or full of annual remuneration, no other directors
or supervisors has waived any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, respectively.

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

12 5

g

BETHAEREEMES @)

EME IR EEH AR R RAEEEBHNE

B R MO BRIS T 21 o

MIRET -

B2 -

P73 -

a4

B 5E5

FAGERENMARRRMNITRAE - MEEET
BAEFENFMIE A LS EA -

H 20224 2202112 A31 B I FE M FTA k46
DEEMNEHTMEREERESERRETA
Al AR E R mEES R EERE -

ZEERYREE2021F12A31 B I FEEHHT -
B EXFTRe B ST E SR E SN
Fif -

HZEEENEEYREE2021F12A318 IEFE
MEMT - BEXFIRSEERESETESSE
HFTHEEN -

ARSI RSB S B SRR A SRR 75
BEMERE -

RERBNN RS T REAKERERIARS BN
BE2022F K 20214F12 A31 A L FEMRIRETE

HE2022F 2021 F12 A1 B ILFE - REBTE
MEEREST IS EAE BN NE
REERFNH S R BERRE -

7 BIRE 2022 K 2021 F 12 A1 H L FE - BB
IFRTERBNE LI RERL DD LR FEH

Boh -

MEALMERRESTNETCMINE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

13 Employees’ remuneration

13 EEMS

Employee benefits expenses include wages and salaries, performance
related incentive payments, share-based payment expenses, pension costs
— defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

Of the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group,
four (2021: three) were directors or supervisor of the Company whose
remuneration is included in the disclosures in Note 12 above. The
remuneration of the remaining one individual (2021: two) was as follows:

BERNAXBEFERIE  ERRHHNE
& RO ARERONRAX  BRKERA—RE
HERE B R e R AMET S -

AEBREZZSFALTZFR  WE(202146F 1 =F&)
BRATEBNKES - HENMSFHBER LW
F12H0E - A — 2 (20214 - ME) ATHEIS
I

2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMET] 1,751 3,288
Performance related incentive payments EARIDAMOR RS 485 954
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFTEI K 63 88
Share options A% 178 406
Restricted share incentive scheme PR ) 1 A Sk B R T &1 1,480 2,627

3,957 7,363

The number of five highest paid individuals whose remuneration fell within

the following bands is as follows:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$9,000,000
HK$9,000,001 to HK$11,000,000

1,000,001 721,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001/ 7T £5,000,000% 7T
5,000,0018 7T 7,000,000/ 7T
7,000,001/ 7T £9,000,000% 7T
9,000,001 7T % 11,000,0007% 7T

HK$11,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 11,000,001 T2 13,000,0005 7T

MEeENFTIBENAERSHFALTRENT

2022 2021

20225 20214
O[O TR No. of employees

EEHE BEHA

N

_ o
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e MBEmRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&
14 Dividends 14 RE
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year FRNERBD RIS
— 2021 Final (RMB0.435 per share) —20214F K Hf
(B AR0.4357T) 774,080 -
— 2020 Final (RMB0.2099 per share) — 20204 K Hf
(% AR #0.20997T) = 372,525
774,080 372,525
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect WMERRE  NARESEEREEZR2022F12 75
of the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMB0.56 per share (2021: final STHIEFEIRMRER SR AR0.567T (2021
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of RMB0.435 F - gEE2021F12 A31 B I FERMN AR E T
per share) in an aggregated amount of RMB998,058,000 has been & AR ¥E0.4357T) - 4888 /3 A R #998,058,0007T -
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the BRERRNERERRBEFREHE - FAMEE -
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
15 Earnings per share 15 BREF
(@) Basic earnings per share (@) FRERZA
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of R FINRERFE(E G IRE AR BRI A T 8URE
the Company is based on the following data: o
2022 2021
20224F 20214
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings FTEEREREFNEF
per share (profit for the year attributable to (RARIBREEFARF])
owners of the Company) (RMB’000) (AR¥EETFIT) 2,538,235 1,947,785
Weighted average number of ordinary shares STESMIERZF AL R
for the purpose of basic earnings per share IHEFHE 1,745,986,996 1,732,574,872

Earnings per share (RMB cents)

FRENARESD) 145.38 112.42
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n'/_\/EI\E\ZI-;]’%ﬁ% IZﬁ.ELI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

15 Earnings per share (Continued)
(0) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has two
categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options and
restricted share incentive. The share options and restricted share
incentive are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares.

15 BRERN @)

b) FREFEET

BREERNEBRABDHITERBINEFS
BB AECHET EN T AR B
EITAHE - AR EMERBEHEYENE
A - BBAAE R R IR IR AR - BB R
PRI B ERR D B AT B -

2021
20214
Earnings: BF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company used — s+& SR # 8 2 FIFTEA QT
in the diluted earnings per share calculation AE B (2 R (A RET 1)
(RMB’000) 2,538,235 1,947,785
Number of shares: BREEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in HEEREGREBITTEERN
issue during the year per share calculation RS 158 1,745,986,996 1,732,574,872

Add: share options
restricted share incentive (Note 38)

hn - B R
25 1 s £ s h (P 5E38)

3,352,667
6,561,603

2,948,750
5,124,395

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in N E GRS ERIES

issue and potential ordinary shares used BHA O 39T RSB AE @ AR N
as the denominator in calculating diluted T8

earnings per share

1,755,901,266

1,740,648,017

Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) SREERF(ARES)

144.55

111.90
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022512 A31 B It F[E

16 V¥ - MERRE

Plant and Motor Other  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF RBERES B HitiRfe EEIR h
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR%ETr ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARET:
COST KA
At1 January 2021 R021F1 A18 1,586,516 3,987,357 52,163 983,908 665,032 1,274976
Additions NE 24197 127 474 8,010 74149 798,954 1,032,784
Transfer ER 85,961 250,499 1,019 36,294 (373,373 -
Disposals HE (106) (116,716) (7,231) (33,278) (35,887) (193,218)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) R E R EME (FF:18) (8,243) - - - - (8,243)
Currency exchange differences SHRBES (18,19) (244,204) - (195,761) (24.962) (483,145)
At 31 December 2021 12021412A318 1,669,727 4,004,390 53,961 865,312 1,029,764 7,623,154
At 1 January 2022 RA2F1A18 1,669,727 4,004,390 53,961 865,312 1,029,764 7,623,154
Additions RNE 25,290 249788 7,150 95,407 924,750 1,302,385
Transfer B 384,855 623,892 3,761 149,853 (1,183,709) (21,348)
Transfer in from investment properties (Note 18) B 1% & #1288 A (Ff3H18) 21,607 - - - 24,029 45,636
Disposals e (16902 (265,974) 8,954 (135,790) B (433331)
Disposal of & subsidiary HE-FNERR (36,657) (123,869) ©927) (2,338) (4125) (167,916)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18)  EBRZR B W (Fi518) (43,386) - - - - (43,386)
Currency exchange differences ERGHESR 10,750 89,791 - 64,382 7,33 172216
At 31 December 2022 1R2024F12A318 2,015,284 4578018 54,991 1,036,826 792,351 8477470
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZETEREE
IMPAIRMENT
At1 January 2021 0211 A18 377,241 1,616,256 27,509 582,330 29,803 2,633,139
Provided for the year FREE 80,458 397,730 5,283 187,888 - 671,359
Impairment loss for the year FRFEEE - 59 - 1,137 - 1,732
Disposals e (48) (76,828) (5,075) (29,684) (29.972) (141,607)
Transfer o investment properties (Note 18) BB EREME (F1:18) (6,194 - - - - (6,194)
Curency exchange differences RS (10202 (196,711) - (169,567) 0539 (379013
At 31 December 2021 12021412 A318 441255 1,741,042 21,117 572,104 2,702) 2,179,416
At 1 January 2022 1202251 A18 441,255 1,741,042 21,117 572,104 2,702) 2,179,416
Provided for the year EREE 172,077 389,474 6,763 114,575 - 582,889
Impairment loss for the year ERFEEE - 285 - - 1,206 1491
Transfer in from investment properties (Note 18) S ZME&E A (Fi5518) 9,151 - - - - 9,151
Disposals HE (15,929) (244,942 (7417) (130,583) - (398,871)
Disposal of a subsidiary LE—HHBAFE (11,406) (39613 (534) (591) - (52,144)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) R E 1R EME (FF:18) (899) - - - - (899)
Currency exchange differences ERIHER 4915 66,163 - 49,780 1,496 122,354
At 31 December 2022 1202412R318 499,164 1,912,409 26,529 605,285 - 3,043,387
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 R2021412A318 1,228,472 2,263,348 26,244 293,208 1,032,466 4843738
At 31 December 2022 R02E12B31 R 1516120 2,665,609 28462 431 541 0B 5434083
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16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16 W% - BMERSRE®

The Group was in process of obtaining the relevant property ownership
certificates for buildings with a net book value of approximately
RMB405,352,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB52,378,000).
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property
ownership certificates can be obtained in due time without incurring
significant costs.

The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment with a net book
value of approximately RMB294,474,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB195,578,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

REEFERPR2022F12 A31 BEEEFELO B A
R # 405,352,000 7T (2021 4F = A R #52,378,0007T )
TR EREHERE - AR BEER AN EF
ESAERE T B i - MAGELEEARMA -

R2022F12A31H » AEEEEREEFEOAR
#294,474,0007T (20214 = AR #195,578,0007T ) #Y
YE  BEREE  BASEERNRITHRENK
-qua °

17 Leases 17 #HE

(i) - Amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

() REBARKERH T HR

FEARKRIIRATEEEFTHENSE -

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20225 20214
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFTT

Right-of-use assets FRAEEE
Buildings EF 1,266,627 1,138,749
Land of use rights + b {5 F 4 512,850 471,142
Machines o= 8,364 4,924
Office and operating equipment MAERICE BN 3,468 4,640
Others Eh 44,132 49,000
1,835,441 1,668,455

Lease liabilities HEES

Current BNER 146,261 103,221
Non-current JEBNER 1,250,741 1,142,850
1,397,002 1,246,071

The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China
government.

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2022 financial year
was RMB312,789,000 (2021: RMB639,898,000), RMB7,521,000
of which (2021: nil) was transferred from investment properties.

The Group has pledged right-of-use assets with a net book value
of approximately RMB31,276,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB26,654,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group.

AEE P BEANMBRTT A L HE R

R22FHRFENFAEEERESBARE
312,789,000 (20214F : AR #7521,0007T) -
B SRR (20214F ) QI E Y EEE o

P02 12 A31H » AEED EHEREEF
B4 AR ¥31276,0007T (2021 4F : AR
26,654,0007T) MIE REEE - AAEEERK
RITREE ROIEIR o
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e BHRRMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&
17 Leases (Continued) 17 &)
(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or (i) RNEm&EAM2EKGERERD
loss and other comprehensive income TFE
The profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases: BaRi A TEASEEENESEE

2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARMETTT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: {FRESERNERYX

Buildings BF 119,328 120,120
Land use rights + ith {5 FA A 14,583 12,734
Machines s 1,378 2,180
Office and operating equipment PWNE RSB 2,028 1,854
Others Hi 15,209 18,841
152,526 155,729
Interest expense (included in finance cost) FERX (FARNERKA) 38,728 38,847
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in 45 BAFE E /AR5 2 (5 A S5 &R A
cost of sales and administrative expenses) MATERRHE) 5,566 4,592

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets AR EXF BEEREENEER
that are not shown above as short-term leases BEMEMRBRS(FIAITERRH

(included in administrative expenses) %) 9,543 9,177
Expense relating to variable lease payments RIAME B BRI EHEERIEE
not included in lease liabilities (included in R (PIATTHF)
administrative expenses) 781 720
The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was RMB207,202,000 RANFHENRESRALBEAARE
(2021: RMB167,987,000). 207,202,000 7T (2021 £ : A & ¥ 167,987,000

JT) e
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llV_\é\Ezl-ﬁ%ﬁ% Bﬁ-H
For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E
18 Investment properties 18 REWE
Leasehold land
and land
Buildings use rights Total
HETR
BF T b FARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT ARBT T
COST 5N
At 1 January 2021 72021F1 A1H 449,531 7,521 457,052
Transfer in from property, plant and BYE  WEL&E
equipment (Note 16) # A (ff3E16) 8,243 - 8,243
At 31 December 2021 72021912 H31H 457,774 7,521 465,295
Transfer in from property, plant and B - B KRE
equipment (Note 16) & A (f3E16) 43,386 - 43,386
Transfer out to property, plant and HEEREYE - BE N
equipment (Note 16) (Mf3E16) (54,018) - (54,018)
Transfer out to right-of-use assets EER (G HEEE - (7,521) (7,521)
Disposals k= (22,577) - (22,577)
At 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 424,565 - 424,565
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2021 7A2021F1 A1H 68,792 1,034 69,826
Transfer in from property, plant and BV - BEKEE
equipment (Note 16) & A (fF5E16) 6,194 - 6,194
Provided for the year FE R 11,532 150 11,682
At 31 December 2021 202112 H31H 86,518 1,184 87,702
Transfer in from property, plant and B - BE RE&E
equipment (Note 16) # A (ff3E16) 899 - 899
Provided for the year FR R 18,677 138 18,815
Transfer out to property, plant and EEEYE  WEMRE
equipment (Note 16) (Ft7E16) (17,533) - (17,533)
Transfer out to right-of-use assets EERS(FRREEE - (1,322 (1,322
At 31 December 2022 72022912 A31H 88,561 - 88,561
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2021 2021912 A31H 371,256 6,337 377,593
At 31 December 2022 20224512 B31H 336,004 - 336,004
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18 Investment properties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was RMB777,089,000 (2021: RMB660,518,000). The
fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by the
management of the Group. The fair value was determined based on the
direct comparison approach, which the directors of the Company are of
the view that it is the best estimate of the fair value of these investment
properties. The direct comparison approach reflects recent transaction
prices or current asking prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

18 REWE @)

R2022F 128318 - REEREMENRAFES
AR #777,089,0007T (20214F : A R #660,518,000
TL) c R AT EEREASEETEEFLNGHES
o ZAFERREERLEAGERSE - AQF
EERBUINEREMEN RN FENREGE -
ERBUEARMBUMENSOR HERIE R
BE - NMEEWMENATER  ERERGAEE
BEeak&EHRR -

R2022F12A31H » AEEMEEMERBEHEALTF
BEERNFBOT

Fair value as at
31 December

2022

RA20225

12A31H

FEIR AT E

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥T T

Investment properties located in PRC AR BRI E 777,089 777,089
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. FRREE A E T EIR

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 3.17%-4.75%
Land use right 2%

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised rental
income with the amount of RMB18,990,000 (2021: RMB21,234,000).

All the buildings recorded as investment properties are located in the PRC.
The Group had not obtained the relevant property certificates for buildings
with a net book value of RMB45,421,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB29,332,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the relevant property ownership certificates can be obtained in due time
without incurring significant costs.

N ERBEMERL RERBEEBRABREN
B RENFRET

¥ 317%ZE4.75%
b (F A 2%

HZE202F12A3BILFE - AEEBERES U
A AR #18,990,0007T (2021 £ = A R ¥#21,234,000
JL) °

FIRAREMENMEEFHMRPEERN - K
EE AR EREA2022F 12 AN BEEMFEAARE
45,421,0007T (20214F : A R %29,332,0007T ) KI#EF
TERAMENEEE - AAREERA - AERER
R EMTEEEM N BREKRKA
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n'/_\/EI\E\ZI-;]’%ﬁ% M{I.%I
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

19 Goodwill 19 BHE

The Group carries out its annual impairment test on goodwill by comparing
the recoverable amounts of cash generating unit (“CGU”) to the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of a CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations used pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period with a terminal value related to the future cash flows
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below beyond
the five-year period. The accuracy and reliability of the information is
reasonably assured by the appropriate budgeting, forecast and control
process established by the Group. The management leveraged their
extensive experiences in the industries and provided forecast based on
past performance and their expectation of future business plans and
market developments.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
identified. The following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each CGUS:

FERFBERRGELEM([REEEEMDH
A E R MREE - HEBETFERENS -
RAeELBNMAIRESRREERBEETEE
E o R EREEAREEEEMILEMNREDFH
RNFRIAEFENRRAIRERETRA - EZ
RICREREFANRKEBRIER T XAIIES
HIRRMEFHE R X R - ZERRERE N 5
EEBAEEFENEERE B LEFREFS
HAERE - EEEERTRENEBTELR
WIREIBE R LR EHARRER B MHHERE
ETREALE ¢ T TRA -

HENREAKBEDBANRSELSM - TR
BERGELEMNBENEME -

Currency
translation
Opening Addition Impairment difference Closing
£ wE HE S¥REER £
Year ended 31 December 2022 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BZA2F12A31ALEFE ARET T ARET T AR# T AR%TR AR#T

ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. THREREEERAR

(Shanxi) (*ASIMCO Shanxi") (W7m) ([ ErRhLA]) 104,516 - (60,894) - 43,622
ASIMCO Shuanghuan hERIEE 88,283 - - - 88,283
SEG group SEGEE 220,051 - (215,757) (4,294) =

412,850 - (276,651) (4,294) 131,905

Currency

translation
Opening Addition Impairment difference Closing
£14 wE HE ERBEEH FX
Year ended 31 December 2021 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HEANF12A31ALEE ARBFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
ASIMCO Shanxi THENLA 104,516 - - - 104,516
ASIMCO Shuanghuan DIRlER 88,283 - - - 88,283
SEG group SEGSEE 327,632 - (78,935) (28,646) 220,051

520,431 - (78,935) (28,646) 412,850
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19 Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment review on the goodwill of the Group has been conducted
by management as at 31 December 2021 and 2022, according to IAS
36 “Impairment of assets”. For the purposes of impairment review, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections based
on business plan for the purpose of impairment reviews covering a 5 or
6-year period. After taking into consideration the competition in the market
of the products of SEG group and ASIMCO Shanxi, the Group has adjusted
down the forecast and its cash flow projection. Accordingly, an impairment
of RMB276,651,000 (2021: RMB78,935,000) has been provided

for the goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2022,

The key assumptions and discount rate used in the significant CGU value-
in-use calculations are as follows:

As at 31 December 2022

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

19 & ®)

EIEER20214 2022512 A31 B IR ERE & 51
BIZE365% B ERE | A S E i B TR ERET o
BRERTME - ENRRESEREFERER
FTEHER c RRERSNFHBMRERSmE -
FREBFEFRAERESTEINRSRETEA -
et RSEGERE R TEHMEBHLUANERTSHT - &
EEEHEIRERSRETATA - 8t - ERN
HE2022F12A31 B L FEHEFHERAEARE
276,651,0007T (20214F = AR ¥£78,935,0007T) °

BRI S B A EH R TR R R
RIRKMT :

A2022F12A31H

Revenue Gross

growth rate profit rate Pre-tax

(%) (%) discount rate

MON LE R

(%) (%) BiATERE =

ASIMCO Shanxi B s STIpie) 0%-10% 18%-21% 14.91%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan EE s 35 0%-4% 34%-36% 14.91%
SEG group SEGEE (11%)-3% 16%-18% 16.25%
As at 31 December 2021 20215128310
Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate Pre-tax
(%) (%) discount rate
BABRE ERE
(%) (%) BATRAER =R
ASIMCO Shanxi DERHLTE (17%)-25% 16%-21% 15.00%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan TETRIEIR (3%)-2% 35%-39% 15.00%
SEG group SEGEHE (6%)-10% 17%-19% 15.79%

The budgeted gross margins used in the goodwill impairment testing,
were determined by management based on past performance and its
expectation for market development. The expected revenue growth rate
and gross profit rates are following the business plan approved by the
Company. Discount rates reflect market assessments of the time value and
the specific risks relating to the industry.

AREEREAANEEENEHEEBREBE
RENAEHTSRRNTEPET - BHRAEEER
REMRKBEARBHANEBE S - BIRE KRR
HEEEERTERERROT SIS
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A B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

20 Intangible assets 20 BEEE
Development Customer
Trademark Software costs  Patentright relationship Total
[l gt BERA Evill EFEfE @t
COST KA
At 1 January 2021 B0 51 18 77,860 163,302 1,014,066 625,068 585,506 2,465,802
Additions NE - 20,861 70,792 339 - 91,992
Disposals HE - (1,761) (226,515) - - (228,276)
Currency exchange differences B RES - (16,442) (93,343) (36,653) (32,133) (178,571)
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A318 77,860 165,960 765,000 588,754 563,373 2,150,947
Additions NE - 32,832 79,063 257 - 112,152
Disposals HE - (2,267) (17,162) (958) - (20,387)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHMBAT - - - (55,590) (145,920) (201,510)
Currency exchange differences ERGAER - 4729 H174 9,239 8,108 47050
At 31 December 2022 R2022E12A31H 77,860 201,254 852,075 541,702 415,561 2,088,452
AMORTISATION Be
At 1 January 2021 201118 53,203 113,261 62,362 246,639 189,789 665,254
Charge for the year ENk 15,672 45,627 59,248 65,140 54,312 239,999
Disposals e - (1,760) - - - (1,760)
Currency exchange differences EHRHRER - (12,969) (9,410) (18,530) (11272 (52,180)
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 68,875 144,160 112,200 293,249 232,829 851,313
Charge for the year FRMR 7414 23,945 60,723 57,146 H174 190,402
Disposals HE - (2,252) - (822) - (3,074)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR - - - (41,930) (74,176) (116,106)
Currency exchange differences ERGAER - 4,445 6,340 6,812 4616 2213
At 31 December 2022 R2022E12A31H 76,289 170,298 179,263 314,455 204,443 944,748
IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1 January 2021 201E1A18 - 340 285,815 43 - 286,587
Additions (Note 8) NE (M3s) - 5M 83,228 - - 83,739
Disposals e - - (226515) - - (226,515)
Currency exchange differences ERiRES - (61) (20998) 42 - (21,101)
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 - 790 121,530 390 - 122,710
Additions (Note 8) ARE (fit8) - - 99,116 - - 99,116
Disposals & - - (16,736) - - (16,736)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBLA - - - - - -
Currency exchange differences ERGAER - 2 11,566 1 - 11,599
At 31 December 2022 12022128318 - 812 215,476 401 - 216,689
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2021 H2021512A318 8,985 21,010 531,270 295,115 320,544 1,176,924
At 31 December 2022 2022E 128318 1,971 30,144 457,336 226,846 2118 927,015
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20 Intangible assets (continued)

Total research and development expense incurred during 2022 was
approximately RMB1,465,025,000 (2021: RMB1,342,528,000), among
which, RMB79,063,000 (2021: RMB70,792,000) related to auto parts
technology project have been capitalised as development costs. In
2022, the Group assessed the BRM technology impairment considering
the future market outlook of the technology, and made an impairment
of approximately RMB77,291,000, and the Group made an additional
impairment of approximately RMB21,825,000 on certain development
projects in progress according to the impairment testing result, which
belong to the manufacture of auto parts segment. During 2021, the Group
provided for an impairment of approximately RMB83.2 million related to
certain obsolete technologies, which belong to the manufacture of auto
parts segment.

21 Investments in associates

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022512 A31 B It F[E

20 BEEE®)

20224F EE A MR T B B 2 49 B A R #51,465,025,000
TC(20214 + ARR%1,342,528,0007C) * HAABREA
B HEMEE ART0,792,0007T (2021 F -
AR¥70,792,00070) EE RN AR BEKAR o 1
2022 EFEIZEIMBENTEIS  AEH
EBRMBL AT TRV E Rl - WAEHRE AR
77,291,0007C © A RAEERBRENHAOER -
HERELE BTG 2 I #EITRE T
T8 B EH BEINRE £ A R 21,825,0007T © 722021
F AEERBREETET IS HE TR
RITFHRREOARES2EET

21 REEE N TINKRE

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Cost of investments in unlisted associates JiE | T L h /NI 0E S =47 7N 92,278 92,278

Share of post-acquisition profits and DG U2 R T 2 Bt

other comprehensive income, EE - BRI S

net of dividends received 94,562 79,683

186,840 171,961
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e BHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&
21 Investments in associates (Continued) 21 REEE QNRINKRE ®)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had interests in the 20224 ] 20215F12 A31 B - AREER A TEZ A
following associates: RIEA R
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of Proportion of
Name of entity registration registered capital voting power held Principal activities
EREH Edlipik EEMEREELH ERBRAELH TEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 20214 20226 20214
Zhengzhou Suda Industrial Machinery Service Co., Ltd. The PRC 19.82% 19.82% 19.82% 19.82%  Aftermarket services
BINRETERMRBERHBRAF H SRS
Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd. The PRC 47.50% 47.50% 47.50% 4750%  Manufacture of mining
PETEREEERAERAR HE machinery
R
Yizheng Nahuan Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 49.00% 49.00% 49.00% 49.00%  Providing services for auto
FEREE AR AR e spare parts
RIS E TR RS
ZMJ Jiangxi Zongji Equipment Co., Ltd. The PRC 38.00% 38.00% 38.00% 38.00%  Manufacture of mining
BINEEOIR) S BEER AT B machinery
R
Xinjiang Kerui ZMJ Heavy Machine Co., Ltd. The PRC 35.00% 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%  Manufacture of mining
BINEEOIR) S BEER AT B machinery
R
ZMJ Tezhong Duanya Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The PRC 49.00% 49.00% 49.00% 49.00%  Manufacture of mining
B R R R B RSB R A e machinery
R
Pingdingshan Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic ~ The PRC 20.00% 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%  Sales of hydraulic products
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. F HERBEM

FRUTBREREZEERAT
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

21 REEDTIMNIRE )

2022 2021
20224F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit REBDIHIFER L ERHZNBEE
from continuing operations 23,147 39,416
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of other AEBDHEMEE S ETE
comprehensive income - -
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total AEBE D hE2ENEERE
comprehensive income 23,147 39,416
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests in -~ AREBR % FH# 2 A B EZ AR
these associates H{ELRRE 186,840 171,961
There was no commitments or contingent liabilities in respect of associates TA2022F 22021 FE12 8318 » WA B <N FH
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. AYES S AREE -
22 Investments in joint ventures 2 AEELENRE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARMETTT

Cost of investments in unlisted joint venture RIELTEEBERENRAR 55,895 55,895

Share of post-acquisition profits and other DGR R R H A2
comprehensive income, net of dividends received Wk - BB WA B 36,133 31,083
92,028 86,978

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had interest in the following joint

ventures: 2022512318 - AEBERATEECEERR
: o
Place of Proportion of nominal Proportion of voting
Name of entity registration value of registered capital power held Principal activities
ERER i ip:ka EEfEHEL A A RRELH TEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022F 20214F 2025 20214F
NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing The PRC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%  Manufacture of auto-parts
(Vizheng) Co., Ltd H HEABTHM
BIUERRTIRD R BERAR AR
Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent Working Face The PRC 28.00% 28.00% 28.00% 28.00%  Manufacture of high-tech
technology Co., Ltd. s coal and mining parts

BNEREETARMBRERAF

FESMBRABRRRE

THh
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

22 Investments in joint ventures (continued)

23

NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. is a
joint venture of ASIMCO Shuanghuan, which was acquired by the Group in
March 2017.

Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent Working Face Technology Co., Ltd. is a joint
venture of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. that was
incorporated by the Group in December 2018. The Group had joint control
on Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent Working Face Technology Co., Ltd. due to
the board representation and voting right.

22 REERENRE W

BILRRTHMM RO REBR AR
RHGEDE  REHAEENR017FIAWE -

BRI AR BE TR RHR A IR A B 2R B8N B A
SEBEMARABNGERE - HHAKERN2018
FI2AGEMKL - AEEREEERRLISEEY
BN D e TAFE MR BR AR BB KR -

2022 2021

20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARMET T

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit from REEBNDFBERLER

continuing operations S M| 4B A 5,050 5,639
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of other REESEEM P E KA

comprehensive income - -
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total REED(EEEWHERE

comprehensive income 5,050 5,639
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in -~ REBRZE A SN ERER

these joint ventures AR E LR 92,028 86,978

There was no commitments or contingent liabilities in respect of joint
ventures as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income/Derivative financial
instruments

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

23

R2022F M 2021F12 3318 » WEAMBAESDEDN
AERHARBE -

AATENBOARBH AARNS
MEE, LIATESEEHBEHA
EEQEWﬁmﬁﬂEE/ﬁiﬁﬂ
T

AnFeatE AREEEH A AREMEN
WS REE

2022 2021
202245 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT

Non-current assets JEMENEE
Equity securities listed in A-shares (Note a) AR _ETT IR AR 7B 2 (M 5Ea) 392,987 -
Unlisted equity securities (Note b) FE_EMER A H (FizED) 403,889 112,000
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LM F - 31,752
796,876 143,752

Current assets MENEE

Notes receivable (Note c) FEUE IR (M 5Ec) 4,494,325 4,111,050
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ll‘l_\éﬂjﬁﬁi MjEI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&
23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or 23 UAFEEEHSHTABENE
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other MEE UQFPEFEEESEHTA
comprehensive income/Derivative financial Hih2EKENESREE TESH
instruments (Continued) TAR®
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss NAFEFEEHED G ABRNE
Bl & E
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREETTT
Current assets MENEE
Other financial assets (Note d) EAoth @& E (Miskd) 4,648,622 2,316,990
Certificate of deposits FE 578,258 -
Unlisted equity securities JE TR AFE 5 1,296 1,296
Structured deposits IR = 918,000
5,228,176 3,236,286
Note: ML -
@  In August 2022, Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control Technology Co., Ltd. was (@ R2022987 + FRILIEEERHIRH BRARIRNIR

listed on ChiNext Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and the investment
was reclassified from unlisted equity securities to equity securities listed in
A-shares.

(b) In August 2022, the Group acquired 16.67% shareholdings of Luoyang LYC (b)
Bearing Co., Ltd. with a consideration of RMB389,323,000. And the Company
designated the investment as a financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income in 2022.

(c) The Group recorded the notes receivable as financial assets at other ©
comprehensive income due to the Group’s intention to either holding note
receivables to maturity or endorsing or discounting.

(d Asat 31 December 2022, the other financial assets were as following: (d
Assets management products (i) BEEIEEM()
Principal guaranteed financial products RAG BFEE R
Principal non-guaranteed financial products IERAN & REEE &

RFEIERET - URZIRE B EMBRARESE
O BREAR MRS o

20228 A - ANEBUWEEIRGLYCH A B R A A
16.67%0% 1 + {8 A A KK389,323,0007T ° AR
0NFEBHILEETANRAFEAFEBEEEH:TA
HEh2ERENESREE -

HRANEEEFE RN ZEE S Z s8R
WA E S ERZREAREMZE RESTENS

2022128310 - Efb R EEWT ¢

2022 2021
202245 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBFIT
4,077,805 1,286,026
100,000 580,000
470,817 450,964

4,648,622 2,316,990
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A B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

23 Financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income/Derivative financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or 10ss (Continued)

()  Asat 31 December 2022, the Group held some assets management products
amounting to RMB4,077,805,000. The assets management products are
the combination of different investment portfolios and are managed by the
securities companies entrusted by the Group. The fair value of the assets
management products are assessed based on the fair value changes of
underlying investment portfolios.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as
speculative investments. However, where derivatives do not meet the hedging
accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for accounting
purposes and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss below. The

Group has the following derivative financial instruments:

Derivative financial assets

Not designated as hedging instruments THEEREHMIA

23

AT EHBEESBH ABENS

BEE LATETRAESHHA

2 EUHOSRAE TSN
(&)

NAFEAZEHEH A ABRNE
Bl & B (|)

()  F202F12A318  AEBRBELHEEEEES
ANR¥E4,077,8050007C - ZEEEEEERATR
WEBESERMENK  THAEEZANELQEE
B BEEEHEMNAFAERERBEREMAEN
AEEEE TG -

TEE®MTA

TTETARAREEE DB - THAMNMIEIER
& o A WOTET AT hEHRE - #at
SHEEENDBAIFEEE] XARA T
AFEFEEEZH RS - AEEEE THI0T
EERTA:

Derivative financial liabilities

Not designated as hedging instruments TEEREMIA
Designated as hedging instruments EEREHFITA

TEEREE
p1177) 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETT
4,890 15,372
fTESMERE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
17,395 32,998
- 16,324

17,395 49,322




24 Deferred income tax assets/liabilities

The following is the analysis of the deferred income tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:
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24 BEFIEHEE AR
REASRETS -

EIEFTIS T AR

DT

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

Deferred income tax assets to be recovered 15 F U B R EEFS T B E
— within 12 months — 1288 /A 235,933 210,262
— after 12 months —12f8 A& 247,393 216,028
483,326 426,290

Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled BFEMOREMESHAE
— within 12 months —12@ AR (40,696) (29,941)
— after 12 months —12{& A% (308,437) (259,372)
(349,133) (289,313)
Deferred income tax assets, net FIEFTISTE EFE 134,193 136,977
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24 Deferred income tax assets/liabilities (continued) 24 EIEFIBHEE B
The following are the major deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) TR EZELEAMERERE/ (BE) REZEHN
recognised and movements thereon: N
Property,
Trade plant and Revaluation Revaluation
receivable Accruals equipment  Intangible onprepaid Revaluation  of property,
loss  Write-down and  Unrealized fax  assets tax lease of intangible plantand ~Revaluation
allowance ofinventory  provision profit  difference  difference  payments  assets equipment  ofFVOCI  Others Total
NAYE
itBAE
g% VES ESU 5PN
EU5E Bty A% RERRE BFEE ROEE EFEE  EER Hf2E

EERE GFEME B3R AE  BEER HEER  HRER Bt REEH LEEH L ot
RVBOOO  RMBOOD ~ AVBOOO  RMBOOD  RVBOO0  RMBOOD  RVBOO0  RWBOOD  RVBOOO  RWBOOD  RWBOOO  RWBOOD
ARBTTL ARMTR ARRTT ARBTR ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARWTT ARETR ARMTR AR%TTL

The Group pie-=c]
At1 January 2021 RONEIAIR 14671 13636 199,859 16,909 1258 210 (16949 (162683  (48560) - B3 165040
(Chargg)redt oproftorloss— 3MER (IR /3 A (Tson 46 (4 0% (B3 QR 63 B4 61D - M (84
Hiectofchangemtaxrate. REEHHTE i -1 - - - - - - - B (1284
Curency exchange dfferences 57 258 #19) 4y b3 - R% (04 - 23 - (59 1806
At 31 December 2021 RIEI2ANE %o 17516 181871 A4 3473 b (16206 (141738 (40,080) - 63 136977
Credtcharge) toprofitorloss— SEREHA /(1) 16,884 3529 8,366 18500 (8,817) u 603 4714 6,122 - 1894 34406
Crarge to oter comprefiensive. - AR 2 E AR

incone - - - - - - - - - (789 - (769
Dyosdotasitsy  E-EHELT oy P B - Sam e 1% - -4
Curency ewchange diferences &% 5 AZE 535 20 2691 (524) 1) 4 (19 (29) 213 - 6,202) 49

At 31 December 2022 Ra12Rs1A 16108 19008 189432 440 (120960) 03 (1330 @207 (3283 (6769  990%6 134192
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24 Deferred income tax assets/liabilities (continued) 24 FEEFBHEE BfEw
The net balances of deferred income tax assets and liabilities after FEIEFTSFHEELRBEIHREENEHFEEN
offsetting are as follows: K
2022 2021
20224 20214
Deferred income tax assets, net EESHEE S 313,657 383,830
Deferred income tax liabilities, net REAEHAEFE (179,464) (246,853)
134,193 136,977
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following REIEHR - AEEE NSRRI AR S AT IEE
unrecognised unused tax losses: B

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Unused tax losses RENBFIBEER 5,515,887 4,174,920
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above tax R TEORI R 2R 5 B SRR - BBt A kb i B TR S
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. BERELEHBEEE -
The expiry dates of the above unrecognised tax losses are as follows: aoRERBIRE R Em B EIAT

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT

31 December 2022 202212 A31H - 1,377
31 December 2023 202312 A31H = -
31 December 2024 202412 A31H = -
31 December 2025 2025512 A31H 2,024 2,113
31 December 2026 2026512831 H 3,562 5,961
31 December 2027 2027124311 86,924 -
No expiry date & m B AR 5,423,377 4,165,469

5,515,887 4,174,920
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25 Finance lease receivables 25 EiEFHEEWFIE
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Finance lease receivables due from customers W R P rt & M E R IGIA 100,957 65,271
Less: Finance lease receivables due within 1 year B M FARIBRNRERE
FEWRIA (50,963) (42,122)
Non-current finance lease receivables R AR EER I 49,994 23,149
Certain of the Group’s equipment is leased out under finance leases. All AEFEETHREREREHELME - FAEHEENUA
the leases are denominated in RMB. The terms of finance leases entered REGE - e EHEFHNT152106F -

into ranged from 1.5 to 10 years.

Minimum lease receivables

BRIREEEWRE

2022 2021

202245 20214F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETT

Within 1 year 1FER 54,945 42,571
Over 1 year but less than 2 years HRiB1FEDR2F 11,888 3,885
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BB F {8 DG F 20,640 10,884
Over 5 years HRIB5F 27,260 14,624
Less: unearned finance income B RBRENE IR A (13,776) (6,693)
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable KB EREWGRIEIRE 100,957 65,271

Present value of minimum
lease receivables

BIREEEKRRERE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREETTT
Within 1 year 1FER 50,963 42,122
Over 1 year but less than 2 years HBiB1FEDR2F 9,699 3,433
Over 2 years but less than 5 years HRiE2F B DA F 15,845 8,750
Over 5 years HRIBSEF 24,450 10,966

Present value of minimum lease payments receivable KB EEKFIBIRE 100,957 65,271
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25 Finance lease receivables (Continued) 25

The interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date for
the entire lease terms. The weighted average effective interest rate is
approximately 2.84% (2021: 4.66%) per annum.

The Group is not permitted to sell or pledge the collateral in the absence
of default by the lessee. As at 31 December 2022, none of the finance
lease receivable balances is secured by the leased equipment (2021:
RMB5,890,000).

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

REHEERFE G

HEMBHNEENARAEE  BAREEMR
EH o MNEFIHEIRE R KL 52.84% (20214 ¢

4.66%) °

ANEE B NFE AT AN £ L8 H & S 1R 1
Gh e RA2022F12 A31H - tEREHE E WA
EHRUFAERTREERER - (2021F : AR

5,890,0007T)

Please refer to Note 3 for the loss allowance of finance lease receivables. EHEREHERNFEREEEE - BRMNE3 -
26 Long-term receivables 26 REIEWFIE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREETTT
Long term receivable due from customers fEU = P iR HArE U soE 295,133 190,506
Less: loss allowance VEA =t (40,633) (43,333)
254,500 147173
Less: Long-term receivable due within 1 year B 1EA R R R B E UG A (88,032) (30,324)
Long-term receivable due after 1 year 1 & BB RERFEWGRIA 166,468 116,849
The amount is expected to be received as follows: FRIETE AR LA T B R U
Within 1 year 1R 91,334 31,512
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BB F1B D R2F 163,513 105,202
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BB F 18 D 5F 7,093 12,323
Less: unearned finance income W AREREE U (7,440) (1,864)
254,500 147,173

Note: The balance represents long-term receivables from customers arising from
sales of goods. As at 31 December 2022, the amount of RMB149,126,000
is secured by letters of credit (2021: Nil). The rest amount is interest free,
unsecured and repayable in 2 to 5 years. Deemed interest income of
RMB5,884,000 calculated based on effective interest method was recognised
during current year (2021: RMB3,786,388).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group provided loss allowance with the
amount of RMB40,693,000 (2021: RMB43,333,000) for the long-term
receivables.

MieE : ZEHREREREEMEBEREF N R BARIKR
T - 2022128318 + ARH149,126,0007TUA(Z
FABERERQ2IF : E) - RTREARE - &
A RARELFREE - BIEREBRF AT
HHH B U A A R%5,884,0007T (20214 : AR
3,786,3887T ) A AN [ A FERR ©

MR2022F 12 A31 8 - AEE B K HE WK IER
IR EE B A R 40,693,000 7T (20214 : AR

43,333,0007T) °
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27 Contract liabilities 27 EEAE
2021
20214F
RMB’000
AREFT
Contract liabilities SEEE
Contract liabilities, current MEERAE - RPR(ME)
— advances from customers (Note) 3,663,770 2,258,436
Contract liabilities, current mEERAE - FPHEmE
— R&D reimbursements from customers 84,579 13,930
3,748,349 2,272,366
Contract liabilities, non-current — R&D reimbursements ~ JERENAS R B E — B @ E
from customers 21,510 26,528
Note: Advances from customers are mainly from coal mining machinery group for ek : RPRAREBRETATHEE R KRG RAE
non-cancelable contracts, and normally would be recognized as revenue in Bl - =R Z B 1218 A RIER AR o ]R20224F -
next 12 months. RMB1,768,154,000 (2021: RMB1,426,025,000) of contract FTABYIMA R & & A R®1,768,154,000 7T (2021
liabilities that was included in the beginning of the period were recognised as F - AR¥E1,426,025,00070) EFERAUA ©
revenue during 2022.
28 Inventories 28 &
2021
20214
RMB’000
AREFT
Raw materials and consumables =R K SEFE 1,889,694 1,577,020
Work in progress past Tat 1,117,820 931,631
Finished goods B R 5,118,946 3,922,152
8,126,460 6,430,803
Inventory provision FERE (216,637) (188,396)
7,909,823 6,242,407
Movement in inventory provision during the year ended 31 December HE20225F K201 F12 A3 B It FENFEREE
2022 and 2021 are as below: BIERIT
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT
Opening balance FH LR 188,396 189,339
Additional provision in the year FREEIMNEE 44,879 24,775
Utilised E8A (2,456) (17,924)
Write-off i (4,185) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—MHBAR (15,380) -
Currency exchange differences B EREEE 5,383 (7,794)

Closing balance ERER 216,637 188,396
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29 EZ R HMEWRFIE

2021
20214
RMB’000
AREFIT
Financial assets SREE

Trade receivables H 5 W GRIA 7,100,804 6,268,846
Less: loss allowance B IR (569,818) (545,649
6,530,986 5,723,197
Financial asset receivables (Note) S RE ERWEIE M) 320,344 -
Deposits HES 179,397 111,567
Receivable from disposal of investment HE 15 FE IR IE 65,526 81,908
Staff advances BER 31,068 10,305
Others HA 709,124 215,255
Less: loss allowance B SRR (106,348) (38,692)
1,199,111 380,343
7,730,097 6,103,540

Non-financial assets EEREE
Prepayments to suppliers Mt FERS TR A 942,844 727,630
Other tax recoverable HAth AT U [B] Fi 18 445,686 542,903
1,388,530 1,270,533
Total trade and other receivables 5 R HAMmERFIES R 9,118,627 7,374,073

The following is the ageing analysis of trade receivables net of loss
allowance presented based on the invoice date at the end of each

reporting period:

AT AERENRRERAYZIINE 5 RKGR
R B RB AR AR DT

2021

20214F

RMB’000

AREETTT

Within 180 days 180K A 4,600,006 4,356,449
Over 180 days but within 1 year HBB180KE1FR 1,169,412 935,779
Over 1 year but within 2 years BiB1FE2FR 660,208 378,746
Over 2 years within 3 years BB (BE3FNR 87,560 52,223
Over 3 years HBiB3F 13,800 -
6,530,986 5,723,197

Note:

In December 2022, the Group purchased financial asset receivables amounting to
RMB320 million from third party securities companies. The estimated annual yield
rate is 3.8% or 5.0% and the financial asset receivables will be due in June 2023.

MEE -

20226128 - AEBAZRE=ZFBHTHESGHAR
BE320E BT o #§7020234F6 A B EIUEN R © Bh S EEFEUGR
I8 - HFEEBRMEA3.8%35.0% °
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29 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The trade and other receivables denominated in foreign currencies as at
31 December 2022 and 2021, are expressed in RMB as follows:

29 EZ R HMEWFIE G

LASNESTHE R E 5 M H Ath FE U FRIB FA 2022 4F K2 2021
F12A3HAAREZRAT ¢

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETT

EUR BT 623,241 499,862
usb ETT 504,204 323,054
Indian Rupee (“INR”) ENEEL 233,894 161,750
Brazilian Real (“BRL”) EEDRR 51,420 43,451
South African Rand (“ZAF”) mIERF 14,310 8,731
Mexican Peso (“MXI") BEFER 19,686 2,430
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) H 12,631 9,658
Russian Rubble (“RUB”) HREER 7,780 -
Hungarian Forint (“HUF”) &) ZF FFE AR 271 -

1,467,437 1,048,936

Movement of loss allowance on trade and other receivables

B 5 R MR SOR S R A

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Opening balance FHER 584,341 673,803
Provided during the year FNEE S 126,837 33,763
Write off sy (15,667) (119,809)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—fFHKBAR (18,505) -
Currency exchange differences EHE S EE (840) (3,416)
Closing balance FARESR 676,166 584,341

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had litigations against customers
with overdue trade receivable balances amounting to RMB249,218,000.
Among those litigations, the Group reached settlement for trade receivable
balance of RMB155,226,000, adjudicated for trade receivable balance of
RMB752,000, and remaining litigations for receivable of RMB93,240,000
were still on-going as of 31 December 2022.

R2022F 128318 - NEBEYHRFIREBHFD 5
N BRE 5 R GRIA 45 84 A R #5249,218,0007T ©
ZEFAR AEEREHERUBELEHBARE
155,226,0007CE A AR - FEEUWRIBAHRAAR
#752,0007CHYRRRA - MALZE20226F12 4318 - 82 1
A7 A R #93,240,000 7T FE R IB AU R A D AE AT
;:p o
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30 RERREEEY BITEX

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Cash and cash equivalents Cash RERBRLEEY
Cash e 448 411
Bank deposits with original maturity within [REEA B & =18 A sUA TRISRITIE
three months or less 3,612,995 3,195,263
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 3,613,443 3,195,674
Bank deposits RITFER
Pledged bank deposits BEIBIRITER 665,609 374,274
Bank deposits with original maturity over REIEAR A=A A EMRTTIER
three months 2,736,734 2,249,706
Restricted cash TIRH|IRS 92 320,122
3,402,435 2,944.102

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure bank
acceptance bills and letters of guarantee and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at market rates
which ranged from 0.0001% to 2.75% per annum as at 31 December
2022 (2021: 0.001% to 2.25% per annum).

BRI TE R AR T IRITAEEERI TR K ER
RIRENRFES - A EAREEE - DK
RITIFFIRTIS TR B - 1020226128318 +
FIZ A F0.0001% 2= 2.75% (2021 F = FF/%0.001%
%2.25%) ©
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31 Trade and other payables

N ESRHMEMSTE

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETFT

Notes payable (Note a) FER = (W 5Ea) 3,290,909 2,470,233
Trade payable (Note a) B SR RE (M 5Ea) 6,053,833 4,989,188
9,344,742 7,459,421

Salary and bonus payables (Note b) FER & B (Misth) 474,244 1,006,865
Deposits (Note ¢) HEACGE) 74,842 86,937
Interest payable FES R 2, 27,366 21,688
Other taxes payable H A RE R IR 728,248 511,726
Restrictive shares payable (Note 38) (< BR A1) A =2 (BT 5E38) 118,198 248,724
Factoring payable (Note d) IRIE FE T3R8 (B 5Ed) 49,586 29,735
Dividends payable % BB RE 36,686 -
Accruals and other payables (Note €) TEIR M E b FE A FRIE (B ie) 626,697 613,312
11,480,609 9,978,408

Notes:

@

b)

The following is an ageing analysis of notes payable and trade payables
presented based on issuance date/invoice date as at 31 December 2022 and
2021:

AR A7 20224 K 2021 6512 A 31 BiRE H B H#A, /5
ZHHZINENZERE SEMNFERE DT

2022 2021

202245 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFT

Within 1 year 1R 8,966,683 7,179,570
QOver 1 year HBiAE1F 378,059 279,851
9,344,742 7,459,421

Pursuant to the board resolution of “Distribution plan of 2019-2021 super
profit incentive scheme of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co.,
Ltd” dated 28 March 2022, the Group paid 8% of the total long-term super
profit incentive scheme amounting to RMB40,791,000 in cash directly to the
relevant employees, and contributed the remaining 92% of the total long-
term super profit incentive scheme amounting to RMB469,102,000 into
three trusts on behalf of relevant rewarded employees. The three trusts are
operated independently under the instructions of the trust committees.

Deposits represent the deposits received from suppliers for transportation and
other services.

1R 1% B B 5202243 A28 H V& B & R (N 1%
BHEREEROAERAT T NEFE_T-_—F
BIESES SRR ASENRSHEEABBE
BYXNRGEBHEEE S REENS%  EAAR
#40,791,0007C + WS & EARB R ED 5 RABEEER T
1992% (BN A R #5469,102,0007T ) (X M RA &R (E B 3%
EZIHER c ZHERKEAEZESNERBLE
;@ °

BRI HERKEE S R AMRBNETE
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Notes: (Continued)
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N ESRHEMESRE S

st - (8%)

(d)  From 2020, a subsidiary of the Group entered into an agreement to arrange d BH2020F @ AEE—FHHBARE—RITAI LD
factoring upon certain accounts receivables with a bank, and the Group BHEARE TRBIRRZHRE - MARNRERFE
derecognized those accounts receivables due to the factoring meets the BIFR B 53R 5 2RI T & B8 E R I FERRIR 2 -
derecognition criteria of financial assets under IFRS. The factoring payable AEEDLIEERZE KRR - RIBEMNRIBL
balance represented the cash flow received from the accounts receivables RIS RIEZ TR RIBRRZIRITUIEL
but did not pay to the bank yet as the Group acted as an agent to collect cash &2 E N FERERFKUER - B HRAZRITS

flows on behalf of the bank under the arrangement.

NHWRERE -

(€) Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payables for the acquisition of e TEREEMENFBEXZEERANEKEDE  BE
property, plant and equipment, rental payables, sales rebate and payables for REBENEMNTIE - ENES - HEBNREMAR
other services. TSR PR SR8 -

32 Borrowings 32 EHE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Non-current: JEBNER -
— Bank borrowings — secured or guaranteed —R1TIEE —FEA B R
(Notes ¢, d and e) (Ff&Ee ~ dfze) 2,286,588 1,650,018
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —RITIERE — KR 4,552,092 3,258,769
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings B IERNEAE B R B EAEE (2,525,936) (278,129
4,312,744 4,630,658
Current: BNER -
— Bank borrowings —secured or guaranteed —IRITEE - FIEIFEER
(Notes a, b, d and e) (Mf3Ea~ b~ dfze) 291,293 572,177
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —IRITIEE —EIKH 419,997 317,646
Add: current portion of non-current borrowings on o SERNARE BRI BIEAEE 2,525,936 278,129
3,237,226 1,167,952
Total borrowings EE®® 7,549,970 5,798,610
Secured PR 2,577,881 2,222,195
Unsecured i 4,972,089 3,576,415
7,549,970 5,798,610
Fixed-rate borrowings EREE 468,998 150,646
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 7,080,972 5,647,964

7,549,970 5,798,610

229



230

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

32 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

@

The balance of bank borrowings totally amounting to RMB19,606,000 (2021:
Nil) were secured by the trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2022.

The balance of bank borrowings totally amounting to RMB49,000,000 (2021:
RMB38,000,000) were secured by the pledge of the land use rights and
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2022.

The balance of bank borrowing amounting to EUR15,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB111,344,000) was guaranteed by the Company as at 31 December
2022 (2021: EUR22,000,000, equivalent to RMB158,833,000).

The balance of RMB2,397,931,000 as at 31 December 2022 mainly
represented:

i) SEG entered into a revolving facility agreement of EUR100 million with
the lenders in 2022, of which Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch
and Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited acted as mandated
lead arrangers and bookrunners. The Group has drawn down a loan of
EUR30,000,000 (equivalent to RMB222,687,000), with the effective
interest rate of 3-month Euribor+1.80% per annum, and it is a revolving
loan on a three-month basis and is repayable finally in July 2025. This
borrowing is guaranteed by SEG Automotive Germany GMBH, SEG
Automotive North America LLC and SEG Automotive Products (China)
Co., Ltd..

i) SEG entered into a term loan facility agreement of EUR300 million with
the lenders in 2022, of which Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch
and Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited acted as mandated
lead arrangers and bookrunners. The Group has drawn down a loan of
EUR293,045,000 (equivalent to RMB2,175,244,000), with the effective
interest rate of 3-month Euribor+1.40% per annum, and is repayable in
July 2025. This borrowing is guaranteed by the Company.

In addition, the revolving facility agreement is secured by the pledged shares
of New Neckar Holdings and Operations GmbH & Co. KG and are secured,
inter alia, by one or more of the following assets in SEG group worth of
EUR588 million (equivalent to RMB4,364 million):

(@ Global Assignment of money trade and insurance receivables and
intra-group receivables, security assignment of all intellectual property
rights, bank account pledge over all bank accounts (including in U.S.),
but excluding any bank accounts for the collection of trade receivables
that are the subject of arrangements constituting Permitted Factoring,
security transfer in respect of all moveable assets of SEG;

(o)  Shares of certain subsidiaries (SEG Automotive Components Brazil
Ltda., Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kft., SEG
Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, S.A. de C.V., SEG Automotive Spain,
S.A.U., SEG Automotive North America LLC);
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32 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes (Continued)

@

®

(Continued)

©

Bank accounts, rights and receivables (other than trade receivables) of
Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kift.;

The credit rights arising from bank accounts and trade receivables of
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U.;

Security agreement relating to bank accounts and insurance and intra-
group receivables of SEG Automotive North America LLC.

As at 31 December 2022, the secured assets in SEG group were as
follows:

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022512 A31 B It F[E
32 B8
P 5E (&)
@ (&
(c)  Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary
Kit. Y ERTTER = ~ R K MR IA (B 5 IR
RN

O RBIE[BAEMITAERABNRITESEEN
EERNREHEMFR

(0 BEERBRTEILEARQBMIRITES RIRR
AT S5 B FE AR A BV (R 1A ©

2022412 A31H @ SEGEE R A IKFEE M
T

2022

20224

RMB’000

AR®TT

Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 287,921
Trade and other receivables B S REAMRKTRIE 1,498,525
Property, plant and equipment WE - R MR 167,716
Investment in subsidiaries of SEG FASEGRFT B A IR E 1,638,015
Others A 772,058
4,364,235

The balance of RMB2,025,362,000 as at 31 December 2021 mainly
represented:

SEG entered into a facility agreement of EUR300 million with the lenders in
2019, of which Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch acted as mandated
lead arranger and bookrunner. The Group has drawn down two loans under
the above mentioned facility agreement:

EUR131,544,000 (equivalent to RMB949,707,000), with the effective
interest rate of Euribor+2.40% per annum, and is repayable from July
2019 to January 2023.

EUR75,789,000 (equivalent to RMB547,173,000), with the effective
interest rate of Euribor+2.40% per annum is an annually revolving loan
and is repayable finally in January 2023.

In 2020, SEG entered into an amendment to the above mentioned
facilitate agreement to have an Incremental Facility in an amount of EUR
91,500,000. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has drawn down the
loan of EUR73,200,000, equivalent to RMB528,482,040, with the effective
interest rate of Euribor+2.40% per annum is an annually revolving loan and is
repayable finally in October 2022.

€ P2021512A318 - s AR2,025,362,0007TF 2
=2

SEGHA20194F 2 iR X A RT 32300 B & BT /) jt & 1
Fo B EERETTIESTIEAREEELT
TREFEEA - A£BERE LlgE HEIRI
MEER -

() 131,544,000 B 7T (/& 7 A K % 949,707,000
JL) - BRREFE AEuribor+2.40%  ZBRA201947
F Z20234F1 B HAE1EIE -

(i) 75,789,000 7T (#HE M AR ¥E547,173,0007T)
B ER R AEuribor+2.40% © AR EEEED
BIRE R N2023F1 A1EE -

20204 + SEGHE 91,500,000 STy i £ @8 & A& +
MENE MR R] L —IBIEE] © 2021124318 -
ANEEE =B — 573,200,000 T (FHE R AR
528,482,040 7© ) ( 2020 & : 50,000,000 B 7T © &
B AR 401,20500070) MER - BEEFF XA
Euribor+2.40% * AR EFEENERE R 20224
10AEE -
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32 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes (Continued)

®

(Continued)

All of the above loans are guaranteed by the Company and SEG Automotive
Products (China) Co., Ltd., together with the letter of credit issued by the
Company, the pledged shares of New Neckar Holdings and Operations GmbH
& Co. KG and are secured, inter alia, by one or more of the following assets in
SEG group worth of EUR616 million (equivalent to RMB4,451 million):

Global Assignment of money trade and insurance receivables and
intra-group receivables, security assignment of all intellectual property
rights, bank account pledge over all bank accounts (including in U.S.),
but excluding the bank account held with Bank of China Stuttgart in
connection with the Existing Guarantee for the exclusive purpose of
providing cash collateral in respect of that Existing Guarantee, security
transfer in respect of all moveable assets of SEG;

Shares of certain subsidiaries (SEG Automotive Components Brazil
Ltda., Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kft., SEG
Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, S.A. de C.V., SEG Automotive Spain,
S.A.U., SEG Automotive North America LLC);

Bank accounts, rights and receivables (other than trade receivables) of
Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kift.;

The credit rights arising from bank accounts and trade receivables of
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U.;

Security agreement relating to bank accounts and insurance and intra-
group receivables of SEG Automotive North America LLC.

As at 31 December 2021, the secured assets in SEG group were as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries

Others HAth
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Carrying amount repayable:
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&
2 EEw@

At 31 December At 31 December
2022 2021

20224F 20214
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

AR THIHREENREE

Within one year —FR 3,237,226 1,167,952
More than one year, but not exceeding two years  #BiE—F BT BB E 450,000 3,750,658
More than two years, but not exceeding five years — #2:B 4B T BB A 3,862,744 880,000

7,549,970 5,798,610
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities B REBBEE TRERE (3,237,226) (1,167,952)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities

FRBABRTATER

4,312,744 4,630,658

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

AEEEENREEIA TIIEEEHE

At 31 December At 31 December
2022 2021

20224 20214
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

RMB ARE 4,945,906 3,549,646
EUR BT 2,604,064 2,248,964
7,549,970 5,798,610
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted AEBEENERFER(TMEENE RFIX)SE D
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows: ™

Effective interest rate per annum

Fixed-rate borrowings
Variable-rate borrowings

At 31 December At 31 December

p17.7) 2021
20224 20214
128318 12A31H

ERRFF=
EEMEE 0.95%~3.95% 1.00%~3.95%
FEEE 1.748%~3.965% 0.80%~3.80%
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33 Provisions

33 BB

Onerous Restructuring

Warranty contracts provision Others Total
w1& BEaaRE BHRE Hit #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT AR®TT AR%ETr
At 1 January 2021 202151 51H 200,817 351,258 676,866 - 1,228,941
Additional provision in the year G REBINEE S 138,575 65,368 117,560 8,245 329,748
Reversal/utilisation of provision — 48[3] ~&h FH &4 (107,813) (193,125) (413,982) (8,245) (723,165)
Currency exchange differences &% i #az= %8 (9,567) (24,702) (51,754) - (86,023)
At 31 December 2021 PR2021%12A31H 222,012 198,799 328,690 - 749,501
Current portion BNERER 222,012 136,642 328,690 - 687,344
Non-current portion JERDER SR - 62,157 - - 62,157
222,012 198,799 328,690 - 749,501
At 1 January 2022 202251 51H 222,012 198,799 328,690 - 749,501
Additional provision in the year 4 REBSNE 133,302 73,909 - - 207,211
Reversal/utilisation of provision /8l ~&h FA 448 (152,265) (135,907) (72,533) - (360,705)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRB AR (13,000) - - - (13,000)
Currency exchange differences  &#5 3 = %8 1,270 1,052 5,574 - 7,896
At 31 December 2022 2022512 A31H 191,319 137,853 261,731 - 590,903
Current portion BNHAZR > 186,865 122,679 261,731 - 571,275
Non-current portion FERNERES 4,454 15,174 - - 19,628
191,319 137,853 261,731 - 590,903

The warranty provision which represents management’s best estimate
of the Group’s liability under warranty periods granted to customers
(who purchased coal mining machinery and auto parts), based on prior
experience relating to defective products claims.

Onerous contracts provision represents management’s best estimate of
the expected contract loss, based on the forecast performance relating to

the contracts.

Restructuring provision represents the costs relating to the spin-off of
SEG group and restructuring plant plan from the former group and the

restructuring plan relating to SEG group in 2021 and 2022.

REBREREEBERBEATRAREERFRAM
MRS - BB A ERERR R T TR
MEPETRIEHANE ENKEMDE -

R aREBEEEEBRIEABERNTEARE
HIEMA RE B RERE

EAEEIEBRSECEE AR EENY TR EARE
STEIA N A B820214F [ 20224F SEGE B E/H 5128

AR o
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34 Transfers of financial assets

The Group entered into agreements with certain equipment leasing
companies and end-user customers, pursuant to which:

i) the Group sold hydraulic roof supports (which were designated to be
used by end-user customers) to the equipment leasing companies
and received the payments from leasing companies;

i) the equipment leasing companies lease the hydraulic roof supports to
the end-user customers;

iiiy  the Group are obliged to settle the unsettled leased amounts due
by the end-user customers to the leasing companies if the end
user customers defaulted on repayments to the equipment leasing
companies in the manner as specified in the agreement.

Given the substance of the transaction, the Group continues to recognise
receivables to the extent of outstanding lease obligation of the ultimate
end-users of the equipment in its consolidated statement of financial
position until full settlement of such lease obligation by the ultimate end-
users of the equipment and proceeds received from the equipment leasing
companies are recorded as financing arrangements.

The transferred trade receivables and associated liabilities were offset to
the extent of the settlement by the ultimate end-users of the equipment.

35 Employee benefit obligations

Defined benefit pension plan (a) TEFEE TR R EFE@)
Other employee benefit provisions E i B 18 F B

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022512 A31 B It F[E

34 eMEEEE

RABEETRERE R R M &5m AP 2 R] s
=il

) AKERREEELREEREREER
um AP ER) RAEE R RUER R

iy WREMREAFTHERBIZETFRIEHAFE

i) A A P LARZ B R BR Y 73 SAE R [A1RR 7R
ERFIER  AEBERATENKRAPEN
HERRMARGNHEDH -

ERESOIEH KRB RSO EET
ER AR AR HIERRRERHA - 1
RENKHAEREERSRESE  BAR

ﬁﬁ&“TWWMME£ﬁEﬂ§ﬁm

AREREAPHNAEEMS - CEENE SRR
BERERBED THEE -

35 EEEMNEILE

2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARMETTT

116,988 165,092
105,336 138,169

222,324 303,261
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

35 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@ Defined benefit pension plan

The Group’s post-employment benefits include defined contribution
plans and defined benefit plans. The defined benefit plans are funded
or unfunded pension systems or systems financed by insurance
premiums.

The major pension and post-retirement medical care plans are
described below. These plans are subject to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risks, interest fluctuation risks and capital market risks.

Germany

The pension scheme SEG VORSORGE plan (former Bosch VORSORGE
Plan), which was introduced on January 1, 2006, is a defined
benefit including interest with salary-based contributions. The SEG
VORSORGE Plan is partly funded via an external pension fund. The
value of the assets of the external pension fund is offset against the
pension obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method.
During the vesting period, employer and employee contributions are
added to the assets of pension fund up to the tax-allowed ceiling.
Contributions that exceed the tax-allowed ceiling are allocated to
the unfunded obligation. The benefit amount rises in line with the
performance of the pension fund. Grandfather provisions were
transferred to the former Bosch VORSORGE Plan. For a constantly
decreasing number of members of the workforce in the vesting
period, a transitional arrangement guarantees a fixed rate of return
on the defined benefit obligation. On reaching retirement, or in the
event of occupational disability or death, the earned benefits are paid
out in the form of a lump-sum payment, pension payments, or a
lifelong annuity.

India

The Gratuity Plan in India provides a lump sum benefit to employees
upon leaving for any reason. The benefit is 15 days of the final
base salary for each year of service upon retirement or termination
provided the employee has worked for the company for at least 5
years. In the case of death or disability during active employment,
there is no minimum service requirement to receive the benefit, and
the lump sum amount is 30 days of the final base salary for each
year of service plus 21 days of the final base salary for each expected
future year of service had the death or disability not occurred. There is
a benefit ceiling of one million Indian rupees except for management
employees hired before 7 May 1998 who have no benefit ceiling.

3B EERFET®
(@) TEEBAIRIREETE

REBRKNEEN BRI E B ENE 8 R ERR
MEHE] o ERARA B RS HFRARIR

ERGHARBEEINES o

TRERRE MRARRERRIEZAINBERER
AT o ZEHVEEBRERR(FIMERSE
b FEIREI AR KR EARTISER) o

e

SEG VORSORGE &t # iR &k & 5T %/ ( A7 Bosch
VORSORGEZ &) 72200641 A1 AL » A
FIEER(BEME) N EEERF - SEG
VORSORGETZ| /N BBRK S E B IR — 5
B o INBRARESESHNEEBEUERTEA
BNEATENRASETIRE - REBH
N BEREENEZRSMARKEESHE
EEZEREHERT LR - BHMIERF LR
HHFTE A RERERET - BASHEERER
REESHRIBEIN - NBPEXEEE =/
Bosch VORSORGE&TE! - mEHA 57 /8 ER S5 8 J15K
BHRERINBRANE @ BEBELHHRETE
FERAETHETEHRE - RERKHETE
BOREIR ol B R - FTBREREVAE FHE LA — IR IS
;o ORRENRERFFEH AR -

ENEE

EEMRR S 2 ARTMNREREMNERR
TR HET - MZEEBARRBMNE
EO5F  BAABREARIKRIEERES R
BEENZHEEGTNISE T o WREBUE
B HAR B il sk A R - SR I AR A
RISFHZESR - M—A N RSB AT R
EEE N ZHEEGFH0E FE - S0
BB ERNET —BHRABREFEIZ
BEEHFRIAHMH - &2F ERA—EEBHE
ELb - WRR1998 5 A7 BRI BB E IR E R
BmMEWERF LR -
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A M RARMIEE

35 Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(@ Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is
presented in the following table:

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

RPN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20226 3%

35 EERANETH)

(@ EREREFEKRSFTE @

ERENETREFENERNTRMAZY)

Impact of
minimum
Present value Present valug funding
Fair valug of of funded of unfunded requirement/
plan assets obligations obligations asset ceiling Net value
Sl
SHEIEE =R HHER  BREE
ZATE ERE EffRE LtR¥E FE
At 1 January 2021 R0 E1 A18 681,503 (887,997) (1,235 - (007,729)
Current Period: RERR - 6,321 (58,408) (155) - (52.242)
Current service cost RERBHRAK - - - _ _
Interest expense/(income) FEmZ/ (BAN) - (49,951) (146) - (50,097)
Past service cost and gains and BERBRAARLEE
losses on settlements WERERE 6,321 (8,457) 9 - (2,145)
Remeasurements: BE¥EE 57333 15,377 488 - 73,198
Return on plan assets, excluding HEEELR(TRETA
amounts included in interestincome ~ FI BUAKISFE) 57,333 - - - 57333
Loss from change in demographic BANBREEDHELNER
assumptions - 9 - - %
Loss from change in financial B EEREDELNEE
assumptions - 35,927 64 - 35,991
Experience gaing e - 20,645) 424 - (20,221)
Change in asset ceiling, excluding BE FBESH(TRIETA
amounts included in interest expense R 2RI IS E) - - - - -
Currency ranslaton differences EHREEE (67,597) 85,964 140 - 18,489
Contrbutions: {2 . (04,247) - - - (24,247)
Employers Ex (24,247) - - - (24.247)
Plan participants HE2EE - - - - -
Payments from plans: REFENNT (16,098) 44,162 - - 28,064
Benefit payments EUNES (16,098) 44,162 - - 28,064
Settlements #E - - - - -
Others Hify - - (625) - (625)
At 31 December 2021 RR2021F12A318 637,215 (800,920) (1,387) - (165,092)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

35 Employee benefit obligations (coninued) 3B EERANET®
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) TEREFRAKRESETE®)
The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is BHRANETAEFENERNTRMZS

presented in the following table:

Impact of
minimum
Presentvalue  Present value funding
Fair value of of funded of unfunded requirement/
plan assets obligations obligations asset ceiling Net value
TEEE HAEE  FHREL SEARER/
ZDTE R RE ﬁEJ:FEZwE HE
At 1 January 2022 72022F1 A1H 637,215 (800,920) (1,387) - (165,092)
Current Period: RE 8,608 (36,627) (117) - (28,136)
Current service cost RERIBHA - (25,460) (107) - (25,567)
Interest expense/(income) FIBRZ/ (WA) 8,608 (11,167) (10) - (2,569)
Past service cost and gains and B RIS R 4
losses on settlements ElmRER = - - - -
Remeasurements: BHFE: (46,818) 93,270 291 - 46,743
Return on plan assets, excluding STEEERR(TRESA
amounts included in interest income ~ FI EWARIEEE) (46,818) - - - (46,818)
Loss from change in demographic EAOBRREHELNER
assumptions - 1,770 - - 1,770
Loss from change in financial AU BRREDELNER
assumptions - 55,977 387 - 56,364
Experience gaing TRl - 35,524 (96) - 35,428
Change in asset ceiling, excluding BELREG(TREFA
amounts included in interest expense  FEH % 494%) - - - - -
Currency translation differences EHBEEE 751 (3,692) (37) - (2972
Contributions: {2 : (162,315) = - = (162,315)
Employers EE (162,315) - - - (162,315)
Plan participants sHE|zEE = - - _ _
Payments from plans: REFEIRAR: (61,269) 62,966 93 - 1,790
Benefit payments BRI (61,269) 62,966 93 - 1,790
Settlements #E - - - - -
Others Hip - 63 (208) - (145)
Transferred to third party BEYE=H (60,666) 253,805 - - 193,139

At 31 December 2022 72022512 A31H 315,512 (431,136) (1,364) = (116,988)
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REMEIRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z= 2022412 A31 B ILF/E
35 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 3B EEBINEE @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) ERERARKREFTE (@)
For the key regions, the present value of the defined benefit obligation MEHMEMS - ERENE(TAIRE ] HEE
can be reconciled to the provision as follows: BHERNT -

At 31 December 2022
72022512831 H

Present
value of the Plan Other Unrecognized
RMB’000 obligation assets assets asset Provision
ARET T BEERE HEEE 2 HEE KEIEE B
Germany =E 378,956 - (280,959) - 97,997
India fE 36,606 - (33,651) - 2,955
415,562 - (314,610) - 100,952

At 31 December 2021

202112 /318
Present
value of the Plan Other  Unrecognized
RMB’000 obligation assets assets asset Provision
ARBFIT BEERE HEEE 2 HtEE REREE B
Germany == 754,442 - (602,916) - 151,526
India HE 33,190 - (33,554) - (364)

787,632 - (636,470) - 151,162
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&
35 Employee benefit obligations (coninued) 3B EERANET®
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) ERERARKEETE (@)
The Plan assets comprised the following components: FIEIBERENTIER ¢

As at 31 December 2022
72022512831 H

Germany India

=E BE

Percentage Percentage

figures figures

BOLLEF BOLLEF

Equity instruments AT A 43% -
Debt instruments EBIA 46% -
Cash and cash equivalents R MRS EEY 1% -
Others Hitb 10% 100%
100% 100%

As at 31 December 2021

2021612 A31H
Germany India
=H ENE
Percentage Percentage
figures figures
BOLET B LET
Equity instruments g AR T A 49% -
Debt instruments BEIA 36% -
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSEEY 2% -
Others Hit 13% 100%

100% 100%
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IIV_\éﬂji%ﬁéé Bﬁ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&
35 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 3B EEBINEE @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) TEREMRAKREETE (@
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERERRENOT

As at 31 December 2022
720225128318

Germany India
=H HE
Percentage Percentage
figures figures
ARLEEE BoLEEF
Discount factor BRI Z= 3.70% 7.35%
Projected salaries growth rate TERISET BN I R R 3.00% 8.00%
Projected pension growth rate TERRARESIERE 2.00% N/A
TiE

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FTERERRAT :

As at 31 December 2021
202112 H31H

Germany India

1= ENE

Percentage Percentage

figures figures

AN LEF Epaid &3

Discount factor BRIBE = 1.10% 6.35%
Projected salaries growth rate TERI T BS & X 3.00% 8.00%
Projected pension growth rate TERRR S IG R 1.75% N/A
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

35 Employee benefit obligations (coninued) 3B EERANET®
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) ERERARKEETE (@)

To determine the discount factor in the Euro zone, reference was AETRBTREMMREEZ 2225 H—
made to bonds rated AA by at least one rating agency. This was EF RS BARMES - WERRE B H
reviewed as of the reporting date. In all regions the discount factor KRR - AR EEIRERER 25T
was determined in accordance with I1AS 19 Employee Benefits. ARFE1957EEEFIET -
Projected salaries are future salary increases estimated on the basis TERIE BN TR IR (L AR B 48 & B AR R N AR 1y
of the economic situation and inflation, among other things. FHEYRRE BN 1R o
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FTEBRERROT
Germany =E

As at 31 December 2022
2022512 A31H

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

EEE -0 3 B 4 A BRER D

Percentage Percentage

Figures Figures

Epalad (62 BHOLEF

Discount factor NS 0.5 percentage points  Decrease by 2.1 Increase by 2.4
0518 B 2 2 T#82.1 824

Projected salaries growth rate TR R = 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1  Decrease by 0.1
0.25EE 2 7801 T#80.1

Projected pension growthrate  FEBIiRR i K= 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.3  Decrease by 0.3
0.25EE 2 7803 T750.3

Life expectancy ST One year Increase by 0.6 N/A

—f £70.6 THER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

35 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

B EERBFETX®
(@ EREREFEKRSFTE @

India HE
As at 31 December 2022
1202251231 H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
R & EEE RER D
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
ARLLEF BALEF
Discount factor ARIR = 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 3.0 Increase by 3.2
058 H 5 B T#3.0 £73.2
Projected salaries growth rate &8I 5 Bl R 2 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.0 Decrease by 1.0
0.2518 5 5 B L#1.0 T#1.0
Projected pension growth rate ~ FERBRAS R & 0.25 percentage points - -
0.25{8 B 25 2 - -
Life expectancy TEEAS One year Increase by 0.2 N/A
—aE +70.2 TERA
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERERRENOT
Germany ==
As at 31 December 2021
7202112 A31H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
REEEE) RE&IE AN R
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
A LET BAOLLET
Discount factor ELLAESE 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 4.3 Increase by 5.0
051E B D E T584.3 +#35.0
Projected salaries growth rate TEBIH BN S & 2R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1 Decrease by 0.1
0.251E & 7 Bh 7501 T#30.1
Projected pension growth rate T BRRSIG R = 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.1 Decrease by 1.0
0.251E & 7 Bh F1 T#1.0
Life expectancy JER:EST One year Increase by 1.7 N/A
—& EF7 ANiE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&
35 Employee benefit obligations (coninued) 3B EERANET®
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued) (@) TEEARKREETE )
India NE
As at 31 December 2021
2021412 A31H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
(EE =) R EIE N RE&R D
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
BOLLEFT Epaisd &2
Discount factor ENEENSES 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 3.5 Increase by 3.7
0.51E & 7 & T#3.5 37
Projected salaries growth rate TERIFT IS R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.3 Decrease by 1.3
0.25(E B 5 2k L£F#1.3 T 513
Projected pension growth rate  FEEBR RS IE R & 0.25 percentage points - -
0.251E & 57 B4 - -
Life expectancy LT One year Increase by 0.2 N/A
—% +#0.2 TEA

36 Share capital

Listed A Shares Listed H Shares Total
L AR LHAR #t
Number of Number of Number of
share Amount share Amount share Amount
BHEE ¢8 RHEE ¢8 RHEEA Ex.c)
000 RMB’000 000 RMB’000 000 RMB’000
B ARMTR B ARMTR TH ARMTR
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 1,536,259 1,536,259 243,234 243,234 1,779,493 1,779,493
At 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 1,535,411 1,539,011 243,234 243,234 1,778,645 1,782,245
() Movements in ordinary shares () ERIREHER
Number of shares Total
BROEE et
Note (thousands) RMB’000
FaE (Fr) ARETIT
Details E3
Opening balance 1 January 2021 20214F1 A1 B HAW 64 1,732,471 1,732,411
Exercise of share options — proceeds received — 17{# B A% —
BUATSRIA 37 4,722 4,722
Restricted share incentive scheme issues PR &4 & = B st 23517 38 42,300 42,300
Balance 31 December 2021 20214F12 A31 B &564 1,779,493 1,779,493
Forfeited restricted shares during the year R R UL BIBR i) 1 AR 22 38 (848) (848)
Exercise of share options — proceeds received — 77{# A —
BT RIA 37 - 3,600

Balance 31 December 2022 2022F12 A31 B 454 1,778,645 1,782,245




RPN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20226 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 Share option

Employee Option Plan

The establishment of The A Share Option Incentive Scheme was approved
by shareholders at The Second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019, The
First A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 and The First H Shareholders
Class Meeting of 2019 held on 21 October 2019. In accordance with the
Share Option Incentive Scheme, the Company would grant a number of
options to the qualified participants to purchase A Shares of the Company.
Under the plan, participants are granted options which only vest if certain
performance standards are met. Participation in the plan is at the board’s
discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the
plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of the
Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options remain
exercisable for a period of 12 months.

The Company has provided RMB7,116,000 (2021: RMB8,578,000) in
respect of these options as share-based payment expenses in 2022.

The source of the underlying shares of the scheme shall be ordinary A
Shares in RMB to be directly issued by the Company to the participants.

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

37 B RE

e & BT 2

&P 20195F10 A 21 B E1TAI20194F 28 — X E& FF AR
BAE 20196 5 — RARRIBRIRE X2 20194
B IRHIEFE BB K& _EHE R S ARG AR ZE HA 4
HENETE - IRERZEE AR S AQRE M
AERBENE R T 2B S E A D FARAR
T o BIBZTE - BT HEEROMEEETEE
FRBZER - T EHEE - AUZTEIN2HAE
ZeWFRE  EMECAEAEESREDINUS
HZ AT B SR BT B (R 55 ©

i 57 8 H) B B EUR M A R R REAA 2 B E MR
BME - —RKBE - BRER12(EABEATT
1T~

R2022%F  RRFRIERZFHESFREARS
7,116,0007T. (20214 = A R#8,578,0007T) {73 JABR
" REREMRFERZ

ZETERANRE R BA R B B AR R
TTEYARBEARE BARALEE

2022 2021
202245 20214F

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option options option options

BHRE BiHlkE

HARERY HtEs

FHTEE BRI R FHITEE HtEE A
As at 1 January M1A1H 5.5851 10,063,400 5.795 16,030,000
Granted during the year RERET - - - -
Exercised during the year (Note) FNF AT () 5.1501 (3,600,300) 5.5851 (4,722,300)
Forfeited during the year REREI 5.1501 (662,500) 5.5851 (1,244,300)
As at 31 December M®12A31H 5.1501 5,800,600 5.5851 10,063,400
Vested and exercisable MW12/31H8
at 31 December BB KA F1TE 5.1501 891,000 5.5851 -
Note: The consideration of the share options exercised was already received in MIET © 4T A BEARRE B B FA20224E 12 A URER + 1B #7A%

December 2022, but the new shares registration procedures were completed

in January 2023.

DEFIEFERR2023F1 A5k ©
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37 Share option (Continued)

Employee Option Plan (continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry

37 BRE®

e B BAtEsT 2l ()

REREARTTEORZIEEFIA TR A RIT6E

dates and exercise prices: &
Share options Share options
outstanding at outstanding at
Exercise 31 December 31 December
Grant Date Expiry date price 2022 2021
i n
20224 20214F
12831H 12H31H
ie ARAT BEHY B ARAT A
B AH EpC = TEE £} R EARE
04 November 2019 19 December 2022 5.1501 - -
20194F11 A4H 202212 A19H
04 November 2019 19 December 2023 5.1501 891,000 4,956,600
20194F11 F4H 202312 A19H
04 November 2019 19 December 2024 5.1501 4,909,600 5,106,800
20194F11 F4H 202412 A19H
Total 5,800,600 10,063,400
#Et
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period 0.66 years 1.49 years

REAREARTTE BRI B8R T A R 11

(i) Fair value of options granted

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB0.49 per share. The fair
value at grant date is independently determined using an adjusted
form of the Black Scholes Model which includes a Monte Carlo
simulation model that takes into account the exercise price, the term
of the option, the impact of dilution (where material), the share price
at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share,
the expected dividend yield, the risk free interest rate for the term
of the option and the correlations and volatilities of the peer group

companies.

() EREBENITEE

REE2022512 31 B IEFER A B R 1%
i B H A TS A B AT R AR E0.49
T o IR BRI A ETVE A ARME R

B FAHT(Black Scholes)iR A BB F

A IER R

S bR 7 (Monte Carlo)i& 8% » & Fh st K& HARE

MTTEEE - 8 - #8m

(IEEK) - 1

B B EE AR B R ARRA R (0 O TRERE AR IR -
AR B - B HIARREERAE - LA
K [FE SR E R~ R RO REH 1 SRR
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37 Share option (continued)

Employee Option Plan (Continued)

(i) Fair value of options granted (Continued)

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31
December 2022 included:

(@

options are granted for no consideration and vest based
on Company’s ranking within a peer group of 20 selected
companies over a three year period. Vested options are
exercisable for a period of two years after vesting

exercise price: RMB5.795 (the exercise price changed to
RMB5.1501 per share in 2022)

grant date: 4 November 2019

expiry date: 19 December 2022, 19 December 2023 and 19
December 2024

share price at grant date: RMB6.05 per share

expected price volatility of the Company’s shares:

30.38% First phase
% —F&EZ30.38%

expected dividend yield: Nil
risk-free interest rate:

2.8219% Two years
R F2.8219%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based
on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

37 BRE®

e & BEET &l ()

@

29.93% Second phase
£ [ E29.93%

2.9280% Three years
=%2.9280%

ERHBENDIPEE)

REZE2022F 12 A31 B IEFER A B R
AU AR B4E

(@ HREDRTRERL  YREBEARFER
0fELEE R AN FEEERNSEER=
FHRRE - C BB IEREBEMFY
BRI F1T1E

b) 1TEE : ARMES7957T (20222 F TR 1T
FER A ARE515017T)

© REBEH 2019511 A48

d FIEAIR : 2022512 5198 - 2023512 7419
H %2024F12 A19H

() MEHAHKRE  SRkH AR6.05
JT

0 AEROOBERERKE

40.83% Third phase
% =& ER40.83%

O FEHREMS  m
0) AR -

3.0197% Four years
P943.0197%

TERR(E AR IR MR D B R S 1R R (AR IR 4 1
HRTFHFE)GL - LRBARAFSENE
B ERTRHIAR ML IR EH A
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38 Restricted share incentive scheme

On 4 June 2021, the Annual General Meeting of the Group adopted a
restricted share incentive scheme (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, a
total number of 42,300,000 A shares of the Group issued and granted
to the selected 186 employees (including directors) of the Group (the
“Participants”).

The Validity Period of the Scheme is no more than 48 months from the
date of the completion of the grant registration of the restricted shares
to the date when all the restricted shares granted to the Participants are
unlocked or repurchased and cancelled.

The Lock-up Period for the restricted shares granted under the Scheme
commenced from the date on which the restricted shares were granted to
the Participants with an interval of 12 months between the Date of Grant
and the unlocking date.

Participants who were granted with the restricted shares were entitled
to acquire the restricted shares on the grant date and sell the restricted
shares after the lock-up period of the relevant restricted shares, subject to
the fulfilment of the relevant conditions under the Scheme.

Upon expiry of the Lock-up Period, the Company shall proceed with
unlocking for the Participants who satisfy the Unlocking Conditions, and
the restricted shares held by the Participants who do not satisfy the
Unlocking Conditions shall be repurchased and cancelled by the Company.

On 7 June 2021, 42,300,000 A shares were issued at the price
of RMB5.88 per A share under the Scheme, and the amount of
RMB248,724,000 cash received from the Participants is recorded as trade
and other payables (Note 31). In 2022, upon the first unlocking period
due, except for some forfeited shares which were repurchased, the related
repurchase liabilities for these unlocked shares were derecognized. As
at 31 December 2022, the remaining balance of repurchase liability is
RMB118,198,000 (2021: RMB248,724,000) recorded in trade and other
payables (Note 31).

In 2022, the Company has provided RMB84,743,000 (2021:
RMB79,364,000) as share-based payment expenses in respect of these
restricted shares.

38

Ll e R

20216F6 48 + AEBRERFASEHM—IER
IR S BN R T 21 ([ 3251 81]) - BIBZATE] © [AIA
EE1HLETEE (RRES) ([ HEYHR]) %
17 R % F 4 $£42,300,0000% 2 £2 EIARL °

ZETEI B S A BRFIERZR 5K 2 B
RN RIER AR FIER R 2 SRR R S k0 iR
i BIE - THBB48 EA

ZET B T R BR B 1A% 2R E B B BB S R SR
IR R HlRE - BETRMNERRE R 2FEH
ik A12 @A -

BERR IR B REENE T BB ARSI
MR R R ERR B R R E IR B ERBIE
BRER - MR R AR AT IR N HIARB R -

FRRR IR & BRI IR - AN RIS i e AR B IR & IR
RUREIE REFBRIRE - TR 2 BR PR PR & IR HOAL
BV RAAFR IR K A AN R R BT o

R2021F6 A78H © AR BIREZTEIRTIRARA
R 5 88 7T KB 18 3£ 1742,300,0000%AR% - B 88 &
S UERRYIR & ARH5248,724,0007 5T A E 5 R HAb
FERTFRIB (FIEEST) » FA20226F - A B AR R & 5
E|HAfE - BRE QBRI BRI - ZEFE R
BRIREAR (DB BB G AR LR - 7202246124
31 - RESREMEMNFESSHBEEEER
AR 118,198,000 7T (2021 45 = A R # 248,724,000
70) (BIE31) ©

20226 - ANRARIE A SRR ZHEARE
84,743,0007T (20214F © AR #79,364,0007T ) 1E & LA
RAD AR RIS o
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38 Restricted share incentive scheme (Continued) 38 PR MR BT &l o)
The arrangements of Unlocking Period under the grant of restricted shares ZETEE TR Bl 1 I 2R RO AR BR PR 65 HA & & R 5 AR
and unlocking duration for each reporting period pursuant to the Scheme fEFRIRE R BN TR

are set out in the table below:

Unlocking
Arrangement of Unlocking Period  Unlocking duration percentage
fRBRIR E 1 T 5 fEBRIR & R % BR PR £ L 51
First Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 12 months from the Date 40%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date of
Grant
B — IR FRBRIR E EA BRTHEBIEAENEER S HRER T HE24E AR &E —(ER
ZHRERIE
Second Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 24 months from the Date 30%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date of
Grant
IR FRBRBR E ER BRTHBUERENEER S HREER T HE36ME AR RE —(ER
ZHRERIE
Third Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the Date 30%
of Grant to the last trading day upon the expiry of 48 months from the Date of
Grant
6= IR FRBRIR E EA BT HIEBGEAZENEER S HRER T H48E AR &E —ER
ZHERIE
The evaluation period for unlocking the restricted shares under the ZETEIE TR B R AR IR E M Z %A1 A20214F
Scheme shall be from 2021-2023 and the evaluation shall be conducted 2023 - ERRAIRFET - SERBREHNESR
annually. The performance evaluation for each Unlocking Period includes ERBENRFEERERRHBEREAESE
performance evaluation requirements for the Company and individual IZE KA RRBRIR &
performance evaluation requirement for the Participants.
The restricted shares outstanding at the period end listed below: BARBA TSN RSN EDREAT -
2022 2021
20224 202148
Number of Number of
restricted restricted
Issued price shares Issued price shares
PR il PR 1l 14
BATERE FHA BAT(EE S =
Opening balance 1 January 1R1B BN & R 5.88 42,300,000 5.88 -
Issued during the year MRERZEIT 5.88 - 5.88 42,300,000
Forfeited during the year REREI 5.88 (848,000) 5.88 -
Unlocked during the year RERNRG 5.88 (16,804,000) 5.88 -

Balance 31 December 12 A31 B &% 5.88 24,648,000 5.88 42,300,000




250

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

39 FRiERRER
TERIRAEAIEERIERS A EBMIER BN BEA

39 Non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

Group that have significant non-controlling interests: EESEIE
Place of Proportion of
establishment equity interest held by Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business as at December 31 Year ended December 31 as at December 31
W12A31H BZ12831BLLEE
Bt E R FEREZHFEN PREFERERN ®W12A31H
HEAREE TEEEMY RAEZE DL afl/ (B8) Rt FERER
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
20226 2021F 20226 2021F 20226 20214
ASIMCO Shuanghuan PRC 36.46% 36.46% 51,224 51,116 410,004 388,419
THRER HE
Zhengzhou Hengda Intelligent Control Technology
Co., Ltd. (*Hengda Intelligent”)(Note) PRC 14.98% N/A 24,092 N/A 241,510 N/A
BMEEBEREROERAF
(MEERE]) (M) H TEm TEm TER
Hubei Super Electric Auto Motor Co., Ltd.
(“Super Electric”) (Note 43) PRC N/A 49.00% (1,172) 7,500 N/A 295,605
MR EREERERLAR([BE])
(FI5E43) HE TEA TEA
ASIMCO Camshatt (Yizheng) Co., Ltd.
("ASIMCO Camshaft’) PRC 37.00% 37.00% 2,341 15,029 121,158 125,454
DR RBRT)ERLA
(AR e | HE
Individual immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests PRC N/A N/A 12,785 48,438 58,252 46,008
EERERNENTERNHER HE TEA @A
89,770 122,083 831,014 855,486
Note: On 9 September 2022, Hengda Intelligent entered into the capital increase MHET : FA20224F9F9H @ EBEFIEEANF - £EEHE
agreement with the Company, the business partners and investors of EBNIEEE - ’Tﬁé%?%umﬁﬁx%&@zﬂik&
the Group, the core shareholder of Hengda Intelligent and the strategic BEFTLEBRS - RARIEEHRETRER
investors. Prior to the entering into and implementation of the capital increase Al AR B A EESIE100%8 %4 - BEET

agreement, the Company held 100% equity interest in Hengda Intelligent,
and Hengda Intelligent was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
business partners and investors of the Group, the core shareholder of Hengda
Intelligent and the strategic investors contributed RMB871,650,000 and held
14.98% equity interest in Hengda Intelligent in total, which resulted in the
increase of non-controlling interests by RMB216,708,000. After the capital
increase transaction, the Company held 85.02% equity interest in Hengda
Intelligent.

BEARRZE2EWNBRAR - EEEEEEBARE
- BEBEROEHRELEBIEEELEA
R 871,650,000 7T & FF 75 B 183 29 1214.98% ik
- BHIEERRAE 2 1 hn A R #5216,708,0007T ©
WER GRS - AR A EEES185.02%0%
1 o
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39 FIERER )
AEEEREHBATOEEHEERBIINT -

39 Non-controlling interests (Continued)

The key financial information for the non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group listed below

ASIMCO Shuanghuan TR IR
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Current assets mENEE 995,805 838,263
Non-current assets SEMBEE 702,691 565,600
Current liabilities mENBE 504,847 268,282
Non-current liabilities EmBAE 68,872 70,252
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR R IR G 714,683 676,910
Non-controlling interests FEIERR A A 410,094 388,419
Revenue WA 811,079 803,890
Expenses =53 (670,586) (663,652)
Profit and total comprehensive income e R EE W S AEE 140,493 140,238
Profit and total comprehensive income AN E IR SR FE MR R ) &
attributable to owners of the Company KRR 89,269 89,122
Profit and total comprehensive income JEPE RS R S FE AR ) &
attributable to the non-controlling interests 2HEKEBTE 51,224 51,116
Profit and total comprehensive income A R e S A EE 140,493 140,238
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEEFIR SR AEEE 63,794 128,124
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities & EESINIRE GRE) /TR AEEE (120,617) 60,543
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activites gt & EBIRIIR A (R ) S5 10,262 (127,416)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Ba(rd),/ mAFE (46,561) 61,251
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

39 FEIERER )

PREBFTRIEIR 2SN - D AT HIER T IR A i aa Y
T2UBERBIIT

BLE B IR N,

SUERERW O - TR REEETE - BMNEE
REEMAIR A B R BN R AR AR o

39 Non-controlling interests (continued)

Other than ASIMCO Shuanghuan, the key financial information for the
remaining non-controlling interests by segment is as follows:

Manufacture of coal mining machinery

Manufacture of coal mining machinery segment, including mainly Hengda
Intelligent, Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd. and

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd.

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Current assets BB E 3,442,268 452,478
Non-current assets IEMEBNEE 527,089 386,439
Current liabilities mEEE 2,141,121 695,437
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE 31,208 6,600
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RN TR R RS 1,497,267 90,872
Non-controlling interests FEERR R RS 299,762 46,008
Revenue WA 3,267,354 1,640,696
Expenses Hx 2,574,922 1,496,137
Profit and total comprehensive income A R eI AASE 692,432 144,559
Profit and total comprehensive income NN BRI R A s ) K
attributable to owners of the Company FHEN SRR 655,555 96,122
Profit and total comprehensive income IR (T &
attributable to the non-controlling interests AW EREE 36,878 48,438
Profit and total comprehensive income AR REE 692,432 144 559
Net cash inflow from operating activities KRR S RAFRE 882,340 62,202
Net cash outflow from investing activities A RBRIR S R FEE (930,872) (7,187)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities ~— BYESEEINIREMA (R ) E58 140,094 (64,794)
Net cash inflow WERAFEE 91,562 221
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39 Non-controlling interests (Continued) 39 FFIERER ()
Manufacture of auto parts FUERBEE I
Manufacture of auto parts segment, including mainly ASIMCO Camshaft and SLENET DI - TEBRBEFR R &S
Super Electric. E

2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARMETTT

Current assets MEEE 175,719 819,904
Non-current assets ERBERE 277,232 529,629
Current liabilities MEBE 98,873 352,454
Non-current liabilities FERHEE 125,498 54,851
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RN AR R RS 107,422 521,169
Non-controlling interests JEFE N = 121,158 421,059
Revenue WA 320,095 986,234
Expense B 314,810 930,308
Profit and total comprehensive income wA R R AR 5,285 5,285
Profit and total comprehensive income AN E IR SR FE MR R ) &

attributable to owners of the Company KRR 3,617 33,397
Profit and total comprehensive income JEPE RS R S FE AR ) &

attributable to the non-controlling interests PR EEE 1,668 22,529
Profit and total comprehensive income A R R AR 5,285 5,285
Net cash inflow from operating activities EESEBMIR S RAFRE 133,456 137,485
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEFMNIRe R FRE (25,119) (61,960)
Net cash outflow from financing activities MEEHHIRE R FEE (172,766) (35,694)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Ba(rd),/ mAFE (64,429) 79,906

40 Capital commitments 40 EEIE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT

Capital expenditure in respect of BRI B RELE M REATIR
acquisition of property, plant and BENEBREBYE  BEX
equipment contracted for but not provided BREHNEAT

in the consolidated financial statements 999,163 857,979
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41 Related party transactions N BHAERS

Before 26 February 2021, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the ultimate controlling party of the Company was Henan SASAC of the
PRC government and that the Group is subject to the control of the PRC
government. In accordance with IAS 24, entities that are controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“PRC
government related entities”) are regarded as related parties of the Group.
Due to the complex ownership structure, the PRC government may hold
indirect interests in many companies. Some of these interests may, in
themselves or when combined with other indirect interests, be controlling
interests which may not be known to the Group.

From 1 January 2021 to 26 February 2021, apart from the significant
transactions with Henan SASAC related entities, the Group’s transactions
with other PRC government related entities are collectively significant
as a large portion of its sales of goods, purchases of materials, most
of bank deposits, and other general banking facilities and the relevant
interest income earned and expenses incurred during the period ended
26 February 2021 are transacted with entities owned/controlled by the
PRC government. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions with PRC government related entities are activities in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business and entered into under normal
commercial terms and conditions, and that the dealings of the Group have
not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and
those entities are government related. The Group has also established its
approval process for sales of goods and purchases of materials and its
financing policy for borrowings, such approval process and financing policy
do not depend on whether the counterparties are government related
entities or not.

After the group structure changed from 26 February 2021, the Company
has no de facto controller (Note 1), in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the investors held more than 5% and their related parties
treated as the related parties of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group entered
into transactions with its related parties and the transactions set out below.
The related party transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business and at terms negotiated between the Group and the respective
related parties.

(@ The Group and its investors

Sales of goods and service

202128260 2R * AAREERA  AR7A
AL HIF APBEBITmEREE - AmAt
B XA BRI o IRIEBR 2R E245% - %
FREIIR LS « EIEHISREATENERE ([P E
BFREER DR AREENREE S - ARE
TELEEE - PRI M F a2 A aE
Mo oS HE AT EEMEEESELES
B - A AEE A AN S B R A AR A AR A 25 o

2021 F1 B1HZE202162 260 » BB 4
EZHEERETNEAR SN REEEEF
BB REEEETHRSEAKRBER BER
HZE2021F2A26H ILHIRM AT D ERIEE W
BHREE - KO WITHER - Hb—RRIBITRAE A K
B BEVRRE R B A K B E R % & B B
IFETEE RN BEEITNR S c NARIEER
B ZERTEBTEEERETAR S IAEE
B FEKBREPNES - Wik — BB G
Ha]3 > MASEBETZER H W EANEBEZ
SERAPTHEEMIIENITETE - AEEH
TNhE S MR R AR - U RLEE
REMERR - ZEMEREREREBRLTER
R SHFREBRTHEEE -

H202152 A26 B L B RIBE A EF)E - AARL
EEBIZEGIA MG - ARFEERE - HH%
LA_E RS RO E & N H B 5 AR A AN B YR B
7‘50

HE2022F 2021 F12 A B ILFE » AEBEE
BRI S ZERFEN T - BB AIRS
ThRN IE B ¥ 55 B IE R IR R & B B4R FE R i 5 iR )
1EFGETT ©

2021
20214
RMB’000

ARET T
4,644

Purchase of goods and services

REEE mh K RS

2021
20214F
RMB’000

ARETTT

2,604,606 44,226




41 Related party transactions (Continued)

RPN A SR B AR (D B IR A B 20226 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

M BEBAERS @)

(@ The Group and its investors (Continued)

The details of outstanding balances with investors and their related
parties are set as follows:

(@) NEELHKEE @)

R EE R B K R GRS
T

2022 2021

20224 20214F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Trade and other receivables from investors JEURIS & E B E 5 KR E b UGB 25,491 95
2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Trade and other payables to investors ERIREENE S R E M ERFIR 2,044 2,740
2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Amount prepaid to investors AR EERFRIA

78,134 -

The Group’s investors include the investors and their subsidiaries.

The amount due to investors related entities was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

(b) The Group and other PRC government related entities

The Group ceased to be controlled by Henan SASAC since 26
February 2021, and other PRC government related entities were not
considered as related parties since then.

AEENKEEBRRBRREENAMBRR -

N EREERRERNRAREERR 8K
TARBRIEE -

(b) AEERE M EBRFEREER

B2021F2 A28 - AEEFZAMEHE
T - Bt RBUTEEE R A L T B R
AR o

295
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41 Related party transactions (Continued) N BBRAIRS @
(c) The Group and its associates and joint ventures ) AEEHEEBEARILREEDRE
The Group had the following significant transactions with its associates AEEBEABE AR RS EDEEIT NIIE
and joint ventures. BRG o
2021
202245 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMET T

Sales of goods and services HEE m &R
Associates /NG 164,238 48,599
Joint ventures SETE 10,673 2,465
174,911 51,064
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Purchase of goods and services HE S m MRS
Associates i l/NG]| 278,176 243,428
Joint ventures SEE 51,461 50,833

329,637 294,261
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M BEBAERS @)
O REEHHEBENANAZEDE

41 Related party transactions (Continued)

(©) The group and its associates and joint ventures (continued)

(5&)
The Group had the following outstanding balances with its associates 20224 22021412 A31 B » ANEE B H B
and joint ventures as at 31 December 2022 and 2021: RNAIRAEETEB AT KREEEH

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREETTT

Trade and other receivables from: H 5 & EA WS
Associates i /NE] 1,454 34,668
Joint ventures BEDHE 69,996 72,962
71,450 107,630
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT

Trade and other payables to: B 5 REAMERFIE
Associates il/NE]| 64,712 143,865
Joint ventures BEE 20,803 6,141
85,515 150,006
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFIT

Amounts prepaid to: JERTRBI &5 5R0E ¢

Associates /N 4,625 -
Joint ventures BEE 22,510 -
27,135 -

EME L AR EENBRERRRAZD
XFEGREES - BRNBERRNAERE
RERELR - RENERERERE

All amounts due from or due to associates and joint ventures are from
trade in nature. The amount due to associates and joint ventures are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

257
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41 Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key
management were as follows:

N BEHRAERS @
d TEEIEASH
HTEELEMIEERABOMESIT :

N
7

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Short-term benefits EEEAF 21,079 21,830
Restricted share incentive scheme PR 1) 14 R 22 8B =1 2 25,791 27,693
Share options % SEHARE 1,369 1,566
Post-employment benefits RIREF 452 452
48,691 51,541

Key management represents the executive directors and other
senior management personnel disclosed in the annual report. The
remuneration of key management personnel is determined with
reference of the performance to individuals and market trends.

42 Contingent liabilities
(@) Notes receivable

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain
notes receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with
full recourse. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk
of the default in payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low
because all endorsed notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to the Group that may
result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised notes
receivable at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

Outstanding endorsed notes receivable
with recourse

TEERASEEFRTRBENRITES A
EREEAR - TEERABNMEIRE
BARRETSEBETE -

42 HZAREE
(a) EUEIE

RAFE - AEEAEERRIEHRE TR
SEMHAEEAZHERENE S REME
IR - ARREERL - ARNAESERE
WERERBERFODBRITHE L RIRHIE
® - BMRNEENEEEENRRAE - R
BERR - AREAIEARNZESERKILE
R EWRER M AAENRARRIT

BERENHAEEDEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
1,922,511 2,133,197

These endorsed and derecognised notes receivable have a maximum
maturity of 1 year, and the total undiscounted cash flows of these
endorsed and derecognised notes receivable, representing the
Group’s maximum loss if the issuing banks fail to honor their
notes and guarantees, amounted to RMB1,922,511,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB2,133,197,000).

ZEEERK EERNEBE RN SRE M
[RA—E  R202F12A31H » ZSEERK
IEERNEREERMIBE S RBEAARE
1,922,511,0007T (2021 6 = A R #2,133,197,000
7o) v MEITIRITARAE IR H B MR - Al
REAEENHEREERE -
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42 Contingent liabilities continued) 2 FREFE
(b) Trade receivable transferred ) EEIEMNE FEKFIAR
During the year, the Group has derecognized certain trade receivables FA - AEEEKRIERC SERRITH RS
without recourse which were transferred to banks with amounting to AR #283,140,000 TR E TEIBREE 5 I
RMB283,140,000. FRIE o
43 Disposal of a subsidiary 43 HE—FEMBLATR
In March 2022, the Group signed an equity transfer agreement to sell R202F3A  ARBEESREEEHE  HE
all of its 51% equity interests in Super Electric to a third party, Hubei BEMNEES1%EE Hxﬁﬁé mHETE= E,Eﬂilz
Jingchuan Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd. with total consideration BIEEEERHERAT RELBRARE
of RMB331,328,000, among which, cash consideration was 331 328,0007T ﬁﬂpfﬁﬁwﬁﬁ%)\ﬁﬁ%mo,sm,ooo
RMB310,673,000. The cash consideration has been fully received and the o B Fiﬁfﬁﬁﬁfﬁ BREUE K2 B HA2022F3 A
transaction was completed in March 2022. After the transaction, Super 7552 RPTENKE HETHAAEENNB A
Electric ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group. Al e
The financial performance and cash flow information of Super Electric B2 IR RIR S REE R THE E2022
presented are for the three months ended 31 March 2022. FIANBIE=MEA -
Revenue WA 157,495
Expenses Fs (160,309)
Loss before income tax B P 1S B BT U ax (2,814)
Income tax credit FriSHif e 422
Loss after income tax BRATISBiE &R (2,392)
Total loss after income tax for the period attributable to: LAR AT (G BR T2 B 184858
Owners of the Company PiN/NC]ig: S (1,220)
Non-controlling interests IR 1,172
Gain on sale of the subsidiary after income tax (Note a) BRFT/SHi % HE M B T UL 2s (FizEa) 174,839
Net cash inflow from operating activities ETREMIR S MAFEE 2,459
Net cash outflow from investing activities ARSI FE (165)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REEEMIREMAFEE 2,653

Net increase in cash generated by the subsidiary MEBAREENBESEINESE 4,947
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43 Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)

Note a: Details of the sale of the subsidiary

43 HE—RBMB AR (@)
Mista : HEKBLGIF#E

Consideration received or receivable: Bk EARAE -
Cash Re 310,673
Non-cash consideration JFEERE 20,655
Total disposal consideration HERERH 331,328
Carrying amount of net assets sold EEFEAERAEE (158,960)
Gain on sale before income tax and reclassification of BRETEHATKERSE R EF D EINSREFE

foreign currency translation reserve 172,368
Reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve B D EINERE 23126
Gain on sale before income tax BRATE R AT S E W 195,494
Income tax expense on gain s AR R X (20,659)
Gain on sale after income tax BRATER B HERE 174,839

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of Super Electric as at the REERAWEELERABNRAERS
date of disposal were:

Cash and cash equivalents HeERREEEY 36,060
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFEBEZEH AL EEEN

other comprehensive income SREE 130,115
Trade and other receivables B 5 M HEH A EUGRIA 186,526
Inventories FE 174,454
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB MR 115,772
Right-of-use assets FREEE 22,982
Intangible assets mILEE 85,404
Deferred income tax assets EEFTISHARE 8,913
Total assets EEE 760,226
Borrowings (=3 30,000
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENTKIE 388,578
Provision B 13,000
Deferred income tax liability RILFTSTiaGE 17,019
Total liabilities waeE 448,597
Net assets of Super Electric HEEEFE 311,629
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44 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 44 BEEZEFFELENAEBYHE
activities

(a) Net debt reconciliation (@) BEFHHRFEE

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities and equity
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

TRAENAEE SRR R A B R
H2Y - DERSRIRLEY - LB

EERBEREDIEER

EREIRKARER

AEEGARERERTCORXB D BLR
BRPMELNRSRENZFAB -

Liabilities

associated with

transferred
trade Redemption Interests
Borrowings Leases receivables liabilities payable

HEZEH

E5 WA
HE HE  HENAE BEAE ERFIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 202151 18 4,598,895 805,206 830,941 1,420,875 25,552
Financing cash flows — net RERSRE— 35 1,454,132 (153,498) - (1,425,868) (228,708)
Finance costs (Note 9) BN ED) - - - 24741 200,103
New leases g - 639,899 - - -
Currency exchange differences BRR RS (254,417) (45,536) - (19,748) 24,741
Others (Note) Hi (PfzE) - - (143,468) - -
At 31 December 2021 #2021F12A318 5,798,610 1,246,071 687,473 - 21,688
At 1 January 2022 202261 /18 5,798,610 1,246,071 687,473 - 21,688
Financing cash flows — net MERETE 38 1,777,475 (191,312 - - (221,602)
Finance costs (Note 9) BN ED) - - - - 226,682
New leases HHE - 312,789 - - -
Currency exchange differences EWHmER 3,885 29,454 - - 598
Disposal of a subsidiary HeE—EBAR (30,000) - - - -
Others (Note) Hi (Pf3E) - - (418,062) - -
At 31 December 2022 #2022 12 A31H 7,549,970 1,397,002 269,411 - 27,366

Note: The amount of liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables
represented the offset of trade receivables against liabilities associated
with transferred trade receivables to the extent of the settlement by the
ultimate end-users of the equipment.

izt EEEHEZEREGARBNEESREE
B ZRKSIREHC B NE Z REYUGR

RN AR

M o

AR B AP AN E R
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44 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

(b). Non-cash investing and financing activities

44 BEZBREENREH K@

(B) PR EIE KAL)

2022 2021

20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMET T

Dividends declared to non-controlling M IR R T IRE AR HIE
interests but not paid (Note) (F3E) 141,764 -

Note: In March 2022, Super Electric declared a dividend of RMB141,764,000
to non-controlling interests, which has not been paid upon disposed.

45 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share premium and
other reserves.

Management of the Company reviews the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of management, the Group will balance its overall
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

The gearing ratio ((total liabilities netting off cash and cash equivalents)/
total equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and were as follows:

Gearing ratio BEEERL X

FRE - 7R20226F3 8 » 1B RIIHEIER T IR AR
141,764,0007CHIBE B, - BRI EREARIRT ©

45 EXEMBEE

REFEREER - UERNEENNE R A&
BRELE - MBCRINAEBR(CER MERER
RS RARI - NRE 2 BRERBEE[TE

=

REENEARBEREB ALK R BRREGE
EFRREBRA - B E REAMEE -

AARERBEFENEARE - (FRZAENN
Hp—R EEESEREANAREGRESRR
RORR - REEEENES  AREREBXN
BB - BITHR  SEHERREEREEBTE
HERBRE -

AREER2022F12 A3 H B BEREFLR(BE
WERRE MRS FEY), RS ERE)mT

2022 2021
20224 20214
119% 118%
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46 Financial instruments 46 €FTHE
Categories of financial instruments TRt LA

2021
20214
RMB’000
ARETTT
Financial assets: SREBE
Financial assets at fair value: BAFEYERENERIEE
Financial assets at fair value through AAFETE B EEEETA
profit or loss BRI emEE 5,228,176 3,236,286
Financial assets at fair value through other AATERTE B E&E ST A
comprehensive income Hib2mE S mEE 5,291,201 4,254,802
Derivative financial instruments TSR T A 4,890 15,372
Financial assets at amortised cost; BEBIER AT EZ EMEE -
Trade and other receivables (excluding 5 hHAMBEWFAECTRIE
prepayments and other tax recoverable) TEA FRIB R E A AT IR B R IE ) 7,730,097 6,103,540
Cash and cash equivalents R MIREEFEEY 3,613,443 3,195,674
Bank deposits RITER 3,402,435 2,944,102
Long-term receivables RHIEWEE 254,500 147,173
Transferred trade receivables BEENE 5 ERFE 269,411 687,473
Finance lease receivables AR EEWTIE 100,957 65,271
Total it 25,895,110 20,649,693
Financial liabilities: SREE
Financial liabilities at fair value: BEATEYIERNSmEE
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA 17,395 49,322
Liabilities at amortised cost RESER AT ENBE
Trade and other payables B REMENKIE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (T BifEemER) 10,278,117 8,459,817
Liabilities associated with transferred trade HEBEMNE S REIGER BN
receivables =N 269,411 687,473
Borrowings B’e 7,549,970 5,798,610
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,397,002 1,246,071
Total et 19,511,895 16,241,293

47 Events after the reporting period 47 REHREE

The Board held a meeting on 21 December 2022 and passed a resolution,
pursuant to which it agreed to handle the matters in relation to the
exercise by 292 eligible participants during the second exercise period in
accordance with the relevant requirements of the 2019 A Share Option
Incentive Scheme of the Company, involving 4,491,300 exercisable
shares.

On 29 December 2022, the Company received capital contributions of
RMB18,541,905.03 from 286 participants, involving 3,600,300 exercised
shares.

On 5 January 2023, the Company completed the registration procedures
for the additional 3,600,300 A Shares underlying the exercise for such
286 participants. The number of issued A Shares of the Company was
changed from 1,535,411,470 shares to 1,539,011,770 shares; and
the total number of issued shares of the Company was changed from
1,778,645,670 shares to 1,782,245,970 shares.

BEZER2022F12 A21 BT H B BMAEERE
= FAEREARDTI2019FARRZ B4 g st 2
MAMBRTE » B KERN22E SBE REE
ZETRESITENEEEE  UTRERDEES
4,491,3000% ©

R2022E12 298 © A &) B U B E A 286 % 5
S B A B #18,541,905.037 © 1THERZID
812 /43,600,3004% °

R2023F1 A58 @ AR R A% E286% HEN L R
I8 52 8RR 1T R FT 18 3,600,300 A AR A 1 B &5 58 F
1B o RNREBITARRM % EE 1,535,411,470 %
B £1,539,011,7700% : ANA R B BEITIRD B H
1,778,645,6700% & 5 /A1,782,245,9704% °
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48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 48 ANREEMB AT ZFHE
company
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 20224 % 2021F12 A318 » ARFIKMIB AR 27
are as follows. BaAR o
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
SR ERTRAZKRE FEERAERR
i) PNGIEE TEEK R/ EE 2 HMEAEE TRERD L
2022 2021
20224 20214F
% %
Directly held:
BERE
Hengda Intelligent (former name: “Zhengzhou  Manufacture of hydraulic ~ The PRC RMB360,000,000 85.02 100.00
Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical ~ products H AR #360,000,0007T
Control Co., Ltd.) EEREER
B - BNEEREEEE
fRAT]
Zhengzhou Coal Mining machinery Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #100,000,0007T
BN R B ER AR H E R
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Trading of raw materials ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100.00 100.00
Material Trading Co., Ltd. and products H AE#10,000,0007T

BMREEHEENERBERLR  RHRERE

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 53.21 53.21
Machinery Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #50,000,0007T

M B REERBR AT HEEREE

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 54.00 54.00
Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #50,000,0007T

BREERRTIERMERAF] HERRE

Zhengzhou Zhima Street Industrial Co., Ltd. ~ Hotel Managementand ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
BINZMEEERRAR construction service AR AR #100,000,0007T

R BT MR E R
Zhengzhou Coal Mine Machinery Co., Ltd. Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
B EERERERETAR machinery + AER1,000,000,0007T

HERRE



EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Directly held (Continued):
EBEHE ()

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Siberia Co., Ltd.
BREEREFDEREERA

ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd.
HEBERES(FR)BRAF

ZMJ Germany GmbH
HEBEEERAR

ZMJ America, Inc.

BEECENBRAR

ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd
BEBORANE)BRAT

ZMJ Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.
HEMEEREERAT

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Shuyun
Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd.
N E SRR AR AR

Principal activity

FRER

Aftermarket service of
mining machinery

B SR IRT

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE IR
KR e

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE IR
KR E

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE IR IR
KR e

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE IR R
KR E

Commercial factoring

BEIE

Providing technology
service

PRI AR

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

48 KRATEEMB LR ZHERE @)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
operation registered capital held by the Group
HFMRIL, ERTRMERE rEERERER
R,/ EEHS HMEAEE RAERDL
2022 2021
2022 202148
% %
Russia 1USD100,000 100.00 100.00
RS 100,000 7T
Hong Kong UUSD7,500,000 100.00 100.00
BB 7,500,000 7T
Germany EUR1,000,000 100.00 100.00
(= 1,000,000 7T
Canada CAD100 100.00 100.00
mnex 100407T
Australia 1USD200,000 100.00 100.00
BRI 200,000% 7T
The PRC RMB100,000,000.00 100.00 100.00
H AR 100,000,000.007C
The PRC RMB10,000,000 60.00 60.00
H AR10,000,0007T

265



266

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEATERE

Directly held (Continued):
EERE  (F)

ZMJ Emerging Industry Investment (Henan)
Partnership (Limited Partnership)

B EERRE (M) AR
(BR&%)

SEG Automotive E-Drive System Co., Ltd.
RERABEHERERAA

ASIMCO (Beifing) Limited
THH TERMER)ERAR

CACG LTD. I (“CACGI")

Zhengzhou Shengji Mechanical and
Electrical Equipment Company Limited

HNEERERBEBRAR

ZMJ Zhiding Hydraulic Company Limited
(“ZMJ Zhiding”)

HERERRBEERRA
([HHEHEER])

Principal activity

FRER

Investing
RE

Sale of auto parts

HETETHMT

Sale and purchasg of auto
parts and components
HE R E T

Sale of auto parts

HETETHMT

Sale of auto parts
HERETIY

Manufacture of mining
machinery

EEREH

48 KRB EEMB LRI ZHEE @

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation

A

R/ EEhE

The PRC
HE

The PRC
HE

The PRC

I
Cayman Islands
HEHS
The PRC

FE

The PRC
HE

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
ERTRARRE
HMEREE

RMB389,516,702
AE389,516,7027T

RMB100,000,000
AFEE100,000,0007T

RMB1,200,000,000
AR #1,200,000,0007T
RMB418,970
ARE4189707T
RMB2,450,000,000

AR #2,450,000,0007C

RMB50,000,000
ARH50,000,0007T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEEREEER
TAERDL
2022 2021
2022 20214F
% %
100.00 N/A
TEA
100.00 N/A
TEA
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00



company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Indirectly held:
BB -

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Intelligent Control Technology Innovation
Center Co, Ltd. (former name: “Intelligent
Control Software and Network Services
Technology (Zhengzhou) Co.,Ltd.”)

EPIM GRS R AT B R
ARAF (RIS - [EEEMRR
(BM)BRAF)

Intelligent Control Software and Network
Services Technology (Shenzhen) Co.,Ltd.
BEEMMER R AR AR

Zhengzhou Yingzhike Technology Co., Ltd.
BMmz BEHRBR AT

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd.
BINERBBRER LA

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Gelin Material Technology Co., Ltd.
(“ZMJ Gelin Material”)

HINER R B BR A E]
([ EBHEHARARM L))

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Principal activity

FRER

Software and [T services

i & AR R

Software and [T services

i & AR R

Software and [T services

i & AR

Sale of molding and
metal material
REARSBMEHES

Sale of molding and
metal material
REARSBMEHES

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

48 XA T EEM
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital
Baliizapd BRIRAMRRAE
R,/ EEHS HMEAEE
The PRC RMB8,000,000
H AF 8,000,007
The PRC RMB8,000,000
H AR8,000,0007T
The PRC -
FE
The PRC RMB30,000,000
H AR30,000,0007T
The PRC RMB50,000,000
H AR50,000,0007T

BARzH B @)

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEBREEEER
RREBDL

2022
20224

2021
20214
% %

85.02 100.00

85.02 100.00

85.02 N/A

TEH
55.26 55.26

55.26 55.26
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Name of subsidiary

WEATERE

Indirectly held (Continuea):
EERE - (8)

ASIMCO Camshaft
DR

ASIMCQ Shuanghuan
TITRIEIR

ASIMCO Shanxi
BHRILFA

ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd
(Anhui) (“ASIMCO NVH")
DHRIRERIRE R (R AR AR
([ZREARINVH])

Hong Kong SMG International Co., Limited
EEEEERERAF

ASIMCO International, Inc.
SRR ERAA

ASIMCO Alloy Materials (Yizheng) Co., Ltd
(former name; “ASM ALLOY MATERIALS
(YIZHENG) CO.,LTD")

TERa e MBI ARRA)
(RITE : [BETRE MR EIE)
ARAF])

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2022

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

Principal activity

FRER

Sale of auto parts
HERETIY

Sale of auto parts

HETETHMT

Sale of auto parts
HERETIY

Sale of auto parts
HERETRM

Sale of auto parts

HETETHMT

Sale of auto parts
HERETRM

Sale of auto parts
HERETRM

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RRMEE

48 KRB EEMB LRI ZHEE @

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
MBI
B,/ EE

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The USA
ESe

The PRC
i

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
ERTRARRE
HMEREE

RMB118,043,007
AEE118,043,0077C

RMB229,703,231
AEHEE229,703,2317C

RMB420,362,000
AEE420,362,0007T

RMB299,200,000
AFE#299,200,0007T

EUR310,000,000
310,000,0008% 7T

USD1
ES

RMB41,308,285
ARH41,308,2857C

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEEREEER
TAERDL
2022 2021
2022 20214F
% %
63.00 63.00
63.54 63.54
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
63.54 63.54



company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Indirectly held (Continuea):
EERE - (&)

Yangzhou Yingwei AutoMotive Parts Co., Ltd.
BNHE TETE AR AR

Anhui ASIMCO Sealing Technology Co., Ltd.
ZHDMREHEMERRA

Ningguo ASIMCO Wujinzhipin Co., Ltd.
EEMDHH NS HRERAR

ASIMCO Sealing Technologies (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.
EIREL R (RE) AR AR

ASIMCO Technologies (Yuncheng) Co., Ltd.
IR TR GEM) AR AR
Super Electric

88

SMG Acquisition Fund, L.P.

SMG Acquisition Fund, L.P.

SMG Acquisition Luxembourg
Holdings S.ar.I.
SMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings S.ar..

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Principal activity

FRER

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE
Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

48 XA T EEM

Nominal value

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital
Baliizapd BRETRBERE
R,/ EEHS HMEREE
The PRC RMB2,000,000
H AR #2,000,0007T
The PRC RMB50,000,000
H AR #50,000,0007C
The PRC RMB20,000,000
H AR #20,000,0007C
Thailand THP22,500,000
ZE 22,500,000Z5 4k
The PRC RMB200,000,000
H AR #200,000,0007C
The PRC RMB206,000,000
H AR #206,000,0007C
Cayman Islands EUR499,999,905
HEHS 499,999,905 7T
Luxembourg EUR12,000
ERE 12,00087T

e BHRRMETE
BARz&#Ew®m)
Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEERERER
RAERDL
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
% %
63.54 63.54
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
- 51.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
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A B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEATERE

Indirectly held (Continuea):
EERE - (8)

New Neckar Autoparts Holding GmbH
New Neckar Autoparts Holding GmbH

New Neckar Autoparts Holdings and
Operations GmbH & Co. KG

New Neckar Autoparts Holdings
and Operations GmbH & Co. KG

SEG Automotive Germany GmbH
RERAEERERRA

SEG Automotive Components Brazil Ltda.

RRBAERHERBRAR

Starters E-Components Generators
Automotive Hungary Kit.

Starters E-Components Generators
Automotive Hungary Kft.

SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd.

RERAERH(FR)BRAT

SEG New Energy Automobile
Technology Co., Ltd.
REERHERTERMAR AR

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

Principal activity

FRER

Sale of auto parts
HERETIY

Sale of auto parts

HETETHMT

Sale of auto parts
HERETRM

Sale of auto parts

HETETHMT

Sale of auto parts

HETETHMT

Sale of auto parts
BEETHY

R&D of auto parts
HERETRM

48 KRB EEMB LRI ZHEE @

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation

A

R/ EEhE

Germany
=E

Germany
=E

Germany
=E

Brazil
il

Hungary
Ll

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
ERTRARRE
HMEREE

EUR25,000
25,0088 7T

EUR625,000,500
625,000,5008% 7T

EUR25,000
25,0088 7T

EUR50,300,715.57
50,300,715.578R 7T

EUR15,050,000
15,050,008 7T

RMB290,400,000.00

A H#290,400,000.007T

RMB22,000,000.00

AR #22,000,000.007T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEEREEER
TAERDL
2022 2021
2022 20214F
% %
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
99.99 99.99
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
N/A 100.00

TER



48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the

company (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Indirectly held (Continuea):
EERE - (&)

SEG Automotive India Private Limited
RERAENEARAA

SEG Automotive North America LLC
RERAEILEERAA

SEG Automotive France S.A.S.
RERAEEZRFR AT

SEG Automotive Japan Corporation
RERAEAAKA &1

SEG Automotive Mexico Manufacturing,
SA deCV.
REBERATREERAF

SEG Automotive Mexico Service,
S.deR.L.deClV.
REBERATREERAF

SEG Automotive Mexico Sales,
S.deR.L de C.V.
REBERATHEEERAF

SEG Automotive Portugal, Unipessoal Lda.
RERAEEETARAT

Principal activity

FRER

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts

HE BT

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

Sale of auto parts
HERETE

EIMEERMEBRMD AR AR 202255

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &, Z=2022F12 A31 B IL F /&

48 XA T EEM

Nominal value

Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up
establishment/ share capital/
operation registered capital
HFMRIL, BRIRAMRRAE
R,/ EEHS HMEAEE
India EUR134,395.95
E 134,395.9580 7T
North America EURO
JEEM 0BT
France EUR50,000
B 50,000BL7C
Japan EUR736,982.46
B 736,982.46 7T
Mexico EUR486,633.91
etk 486,633.918 7T
Mexico EUR89,994.28
=itk 89,994 28 7T
Mexico EUR95,008.49
=itk 95,008 498 7T
Portugal EUR25,000
BET 25,000807T

e BHRRMETE
BARz&#Ew®m)
Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEERERER
RAERDL
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
% %
99.99 99.99
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
99.99 99.99
99.99 99.99
99.99 99.99
100.00 100.00

2171
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;= 2022412 A31 B [t F[E

48 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 48 XATEEMBARIZFE @)
company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
i) A ERTRARRE FEEREEER
MEL=RER TEER B,/ EE HMEREE TAERDL

2022 2021
20224 20214
% %

Indirectly held (Continuea):
EERE - (8)

SEG Automotive South Africa Sale of auto parts South Africa EUR59,711.7 100.00 100.00
Proprietary Limited HERET I e 59,711.78T

RBRTERIFERAT

SEG Automotive Korea Co. Ltd. Sale of auto parts Korea EUR36,834.26 100.00 100.00
RERSBEEBRAAF HERBT M FE 36,834,268 7T
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U. Sale of auto parts Spain EUR9,616,000 100.00 100.00
RERSERRFER DT HERBT M itk 9,616,000 7T
SEG Automotive ltaly S.r.l. Sale of auto parts Italy EUR500,000 100.00 100.00
RRRSBERFGRATE HERBT M EAH 500,00081 7T

Note: Except for SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd., all other PRC Wt BREBZREDF(REDERIRIN - FTEEM

subsidiaries are invested by PRC enterprise. FEIMB AR ARBEEERE -



BHERRREERAERAT 20258 D[ 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

49 Information about the statement of financial 49 FREAARQ AR R K 2 ER

position of the Company

2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 1,543,709 1,102,818
Right of use assets FRAEEE 26,005 30,242
Investment properties EME 214,262 223,528
Intangible assets mAEE 258,703 202,662
Investments in subsidiaries RMB AR Z’E 8,472,516 7,944,431
Investments in associates REEERF 2 IE 145,859 129,575
Investments in a joint venture RN—ERELEZIRE 37,123 33,805
Financial assets at fair value through other A EFEEZ ST A
comprehensive income HEarmEnSraEE 392,987 112,000
Deferred tax assets EEFRIEEE 107,503 184,359
Finance lease receivables R & EFEWRIA 4,442 -
Long term receivables REAEUGRIA 196,387 182,901
Total non-current assets FRBEERSE 11,399,496 10,146,576
CURRENT ASSETS BN E
Inventories e 4,107,529 2,889,094
Loans receivable from subsidiaries BB ATIER 170,000 190,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk EAFEW A 4,949,933 3,195,159
Transferred trade receivables BEENE 5 EUWGRIE 269,411 687,473
Finance lease receivables, current portion BETMEEWRIE  REE D 45,718 38,400
Long-term receivables, current portion REFFEWGIE @ B 88,032 32,336
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss ~ LAAF(EETE B HEH)ETA
BaemEE 3,881,101 3,016,026
Financial assets at fair value through other A EREBEZSTA
comprehensive income HEtezmbiEnsmiE 3,376,123 2,675,277
Bank deposits RITEN 2,971,915 2,576,046
Cash and cash equivalents ReLIREZEY 2,239,639 2,053,992
Total current assets HWRBEE 22,099,401 17,353,803
Total assets wEE 33,498,897 27,500,379
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position of the Company (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H (L4 /&

49 BEEARTAUBRRR 2ER (@)

2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Other non-current liabilities HiIEREaE 166,888 186,834
Employee benefit obligations EERMEME 16,811 -
Borrowings BE 2,137,500 3,247,769
Lease liabilities HEEE 23,740 27,821
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEERE 2,344,939 3,462,424
CURRENT LIABILITIES BB E
Trade and other payables B 5 N E i fER IR 7,411,217 5,519,982
Contract liabilities AREAEE 2,942,164 1,905,066
Borrowings gg 2,416,092 214,500
Liabilities associated with transferred HEBEMNESRKEEENAE
trade receivables 269,411 687,473
Lease liabilities HEamE 19,660 14.250
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 13,058,544 8,341,271
Total liabilities P =R 15,403,483 11,803,695
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A& A K e
Share capital A% 7R 1,782,245 1,779,493
Share premium B8 1735 (B 4,538,675 4,426,102
Reserves (Note (a)) b (F5E @) 11,774,494 9,491,089
Total equity MR 18,095,414 15,696,684
Total equity and liabilities ERREEHARE 33,498,897 27,500,379
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

49 Information about the statement of financial

position of the Company (Continued)

Note (a)

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2022412 A31 H [F /&

49 BEARQRAMBRR TR ZER )

)
Statutory
Treasury Surplus Other Retained
share Reserve reserves earnings Total
BEERG EEREE HiREE REBEF] st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARETIT ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT

Balance at 1 January 2021 2021 F1 A1H & - 1,023,520 117,681 7,233,700 8,374,901
Profit for the year F R F - = = 1,748,273 1,748,273
Transfer P - 174,827 - (174,827) -
Share options RN - - 8,578 - 8,578
Restricted share incentive scheme PR )14 A% 22 B A T 2

(Note 38) (Fft3E38) (248,724) - 79,364 —  (169,360)
Return of contributions to State-owned ~ ZEFEHIREEMHHE

investors - - (95,000) - (95,000)
Disposal of associates HER SN T - - (3,778) - (3,778)
Dividends (Note 14) g2 (HiEE14) - - - (372525 (372,525
Balance at 31 December 2021 202112 A31 B s 4 (248,724) 1,198,347 106,845 8,434,621 9,491,089
Balance at 1 January 2022 20224F1 A1 B %% (248,724) 1,198,347 106,845 8,434,621 9,491,089
Profit for the year F R - - - 2697512 2,697,512
Other comprehensive income for year FREMEEEE - - 238,839 - 238,839
Profit and total comprehensive income for = 9% Fl| &2 2 T U e 42 58

the year - - 238,839 2,697,512 2,936,351
Share options fE N - - (10,242) - (10,242)
Restricted share incentive scheme PR 1 AR R B 5T )

(Note 38) (M$5E38) 130,526 - 303 547 131,376
Dividends (Note 14) A (FEE14) - - —  (774,080)  (774,080)
Balance at 31 December 2022 202212 A31 B &4 (118,198) 1,198,347 335,745 10,358,600 11,774,494
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Five Year Financial Highlights

IFMBRE

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

REBERREERE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12ANBLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

2026 20214F 20204F 20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETIT AREFT ARETIT AREFTT

Revenue WA 32,043,306 29,293,527 26,519,393 25,721,417 26,011,730

Cost of sales FHEMAK 25,644,599 23,221,695 20,218,738 20,923,902 21,159,849

Profit before tax B ATET 3,090,078 2,623,316 1,939,894 1,530,076 1,288,738

Profit for the year FEREH 2,628,005 2,069,868 1,378,781 1,139,910 938,908

Profit for the year attributable to: UTATEIEFEAR
wA

Owners of the Company ZA/NET )3 2,538,235 1,947,785 1,239,149 1,040,253 832,344

Non-controlling interests FEFER R 89,770 122,083 139,632 99,657 106,564

2,628,005 2,069,868 1,378,781 1,139,910 938,908

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Financial AR RIEE
Position
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

20224 20214 20204 20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T AREFTT AREFTT ARETT ARBFT

Non-current assets EREBEE 10,270,311 9,407,764 9,352,372 9,470,921 9,336,011

Current assets REVEE 34,199,278 27,922,550 25,104,222 20,347,930 18,672,760

Total assets BmEE 44,469,589 37,330,314 34,456,594 29,818,851 28,008,771

Non-current liabilities FERBEE 6,245,568 6,600,964 5,594,284 3,854,076 4,013,211

Current liabilities EIIRE 19,585,740 15,078,373 14,828,479 12,822,529 11,704,716

Total liabilities FE=E 25,831,308 21,679,337 20,422,763 16,676,605 15,717,927
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ZR X FII& R fEAG IS

the Company 17,807,267 14,795,491 13,063,795 12,239,731 11,457,210

Non-controlling interests FEFE R R 831,014 855,486 970,036 902,515 833,634

Total equity ERBE 18,638,281 15,650,977 14,033,831 13,142,246 12,290,844

Total equity and liabilities EZREBEHAE 44,469,589 37,330,314 34,456,594 29,818,851 28,008,771
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